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PART 1

Item 1. Financial Statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017

2016

(in millions)

Interest income:

LLOBIIS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt se et et ete s e s s et et et s b et e st s e st e s ettt e s et et b et e ae s e st ees st et ess st et eteee et esesees $ 573 $ 569
SEOUTTEIES 1...vveeetietie et eette et ertee et e e st e et e e teeebe e beessbeesseeseseasaeasseessaaasseesseessseanseessseansaessssansaessseenseessseansenss 242 244
TTAQING SECUTIEICS ...e.vveutieeretieieeteeteeeetestestestesteestesteessesseessenseensesseanseeseensesseesesssessesnsessennsenseensenseensenns 58 85
ShOTt-tEIM INVESLMEILS .....etietirtirtitetetet ettt ettt ettt sttt et et e st et et ebeeb e s bttt sbesbesaebenaenaeneen 131 64
ORI ettt h b bttt b ettt et a e a e h e bbbt bbbt et ebe et et entenee 11 18
TOtAl INTEFEST IICOME ......................cooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e ettt e e et e e e et e e e s e satae e e e s eetaaeeessenaaees 1,015 980
Interest expense:
DIEPOSIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt he e et e en et e a e et e et e st et e ene e st enteaneeneeeseente st enteeneenteeneenteene 150 105
SHOT-tEITN DOTTOWIINES . .vevieuieiieiesiieieeiieteeteeieete e ete st esaesseesaesseensesseensesseensesssenseessenseensenseensesseensesses 23 18
|0 Y 1S 4 4 LS o PRSP USUUUPSRIT 242 197
ORI ettt b btttk b ettt a e ateh e bbbt bbbt et ebe st e e entenes 3 6
TOLAL TNTEFEST EXPENSE.............cc.eveeieeeieeieeeeieeeeeite et eete et esaeese e teeesbeeseessbeesseessseensaessseenseeassesnseesssaenseens 418 326
INEE INEETESE TICOIMIC ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e et e e et e et eaee bt e meesbeemeesbe e teebeenteeseenseeneeeeeneenseeneenees 597 654
ProviSion fOr CTEAIt LOSSES .....eeiiurieieeee ettt e e et e e e e e e e e et e e eeaeeeeeaeeeeenreeeeneeeeneeeans an 157
Net interest income after provision for credit lOSSes.....................ccoovevevvieieiiieieeiieieeieneeene e 674 497
Other revenues:
CrEdit CATA FEES. ...eveiteeitieteite ettt ettt b ettt ettt s e st eb e e bt eb e et e e b e sbe st e be b e e ensenee 11 14
Trust and investment MaNAgEMENt fEES ........coeeruirieriirienieeeeete ettt sttt 38 39
Other fees and COMMUESSIONS........eeuiruieiiiieie ettt ettt ettt et et ete et e teeseesaeeseesbeeneesbeensesseensesseeneeens 162 165
TTAQING TEVEIUE. .....etieiiieiieteeieete et ettt st e et et te st et e bt eete bt ense e st enseeseenseeseenseeneenseeneesseensenseensesseensesseanseans 70 16
Other SCCUTIHIES ZAINS, TICL ....eevieiieiieiieieeierteetesieete st ete st ete st eseeseessesseessesseensesssessesssessesnsesseensenseansenns 5 29
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates...........cccovieiiirieiiiiiieiieeceeeeeee e 82 54
Residential mortgage banking revVenue (EXPENSE)........ccverreerrereerreereerreeeesseeeesseesesseessesseessesseessessesssenns 2) 17
Gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives .........c.ccooeeeererienieienieneneeene 34 216
Other INCOME (I0SS) 1.vvvevrreiieiiiieitieeteertee st e et e st e et e sttt eteessbeesbeessbeesseessseesseessseansaassseesseesssaesseessseanseensss 161 (88)
TOIAL OTNEY FEVEIUES ................o..eeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt e et et e e st e e e e neesesneensesneesaesneenseeneennens 561 462
Operating expenses:
Salaries and eMPlOYEe DENETIS ......cceeriiriiiieieiieieie ettt b e e sse e e saeenaeeeas 265 241
Support services from HSBC affiliates ..........cooieiiriieiiiiieieieeie ettt eeas 339 320
OCCUPANCY EXPEIISE, TET ..euiiieiieniiiteeiestteteetten e eite bt ettesteestesteeateebeenteeueentesseenbeestesbeemtenbeensenbeensesseentene 54 59
OLHET EXPEIISES ...eeuveeieuiienieteeieeteeteette e st e ete e s tesaeeeee bt eete bt emteabeemteeseameeeaeeneeestenseemeesbeemseabeensenseensenseanseane 129 106
TOtAl OPEFALING EXPENSES...............c..oeceveeveeieeieieeeiieeteeetteeeteesaeeete e s taeebeesteesbeesseessbeessessseessassseeseessseeseens 787 726
INCOME DEfOTE INCOME TAX ...ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt et ettt et eb bt s besbe b b st et e b e e enees 448 233
TNICOIME tAX EXPEIISE ..euveeerienrieeiieeteeeteeteestteetee sttt esteesssessseesssaesseessseanseessseasseesssesnsaesssesnseessseenseessseesseenssennee 152 79
INELICOME ... e et e e e et e e e e e et e e e eae e e eteeeeeaeeeeeateeeeeeeeareeeeenes $ 296 $ 154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016
(in millions)
INEE IICOME ............o.o.eeeee ettt ettt a et e et e ae e et e nt e st es e e st e st et e eseesees et e asessensensensensenseneaneaneas $ 296 $ 154
Net change in unrealized gains (losses), net of tax:
INVESLMENE SECUTTTIES . ¢ eueuteuteneeiieiieitetcet ettt ettt ettt et et eb ettt et s b e b sbe sttt s e et et et et estebeeneenens 107 278
Fair value option liabilities attributable to credit SPread ............ccoevveviiveerierieniieieneeere e (79) —
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges .........ccoevviiiiiiieiiiiciic s 1 (45)
Total other COMPYERENSIVE THCOME....................cccoveeueieciieeeeeciiesieeieestie et esaeseteesaeeseessseesseessseeseesssesnsens 29 233

COMPICHENSIVE THCOME ....................oeoceeeeieecieeeieeeiie et eetee e eteesteeete et e st e s taeesbeeteessbeesseessbeesseessseenseasssennsens $ 325 § 387

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions, except share data)

Assets™”

Cash and dUE fTOIM DANIKS. ........ooouiiiiiiieeiieceieceee ettt et e e et e st e e e aeeesateeeaeeeeeseeessaeesnsteeenteesnseesnneeas $ 1,037 §$ 1,235
Interest bearing deposits With DANKS..........cceoiiiriiiiiee ettt 17,870 20,238
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell (includes $1.0 billion and $770

million designated under fair value option at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively)........... 30,550 30,023
TTAING ASSCLS ...vvveevreuieuieniesteetieteete et et etetetestestessesseeseeseeseestessassassesseaseesassaasaeseessensensensanseseaseaseessessessessansansensensn 22,823 16,850
Securities aVAIlable-TOT-SALE .........c..ooiiiiiiiiiii ettt et e et e et e e et e eteeeteeeeaaeeeseeenneeens 37,911 36,910
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value of $13.3 billion and $12.8 billion at March 31, 2017 and December

31,2016, TESPECHIVELY)....eeiviiietiieiietetete ettt ettt ettt b et b et eebe st et e s eseesensesesseneesenseseeseneesenseneesens 13,315 12,809
oY 4 TR 69,588 73,875
Less — alloWanCe fOI CTEAIL LOSSES ......cvuiiiviiieieieeeieceee ettt et eeae e e e et et e e et e e eaaeeeiaeeeeseeeenaeeeaeeeenreeenseeeaeeas 921 1,017

| o 4 T 1 =1 APPSR 68,667 72,858
Loans held for sale (includes $507 million and $725 million designated under fair value option at March 31,

2017 and December 31, 2016, TESPECTIVELY) ...uveuieiiriiriiriiitieiieiteteteteste ettt ettt sttt 806 1,809
Properties and equipment, net ... 193 202
GOOAWILL ...ttt et et et e e e e bt e e ae e be et e eabeeabeeaseesseessaesseessasseeassenseenseenseenseesseesseessenssenseas 1,612 1,612
OBNET @SSELS.....e.uviivieieiietieetieeteeeteeeteeeteeteeteeateetteetteeseeesseeseeeseeseesseeaseesseesseesseessaesseessaseesseseenseenseenseesseesseessesasenseas 6,799 6,755
TOUAL ASSELS ..............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et e e et e e et e e et e e et e e eaeeeaeeeeaseeeaseeeteeeeareeenteeeaeeeeareeenreeeneen $ 201,583 $ 201,301
Liabilities™
Debt:

Domestic deposits:
INONINEETESE DEATIIZ ... ivievieeieiieiieteiesie ettt ettt et e et et e et e etestesseesaeseensessesensesseesesseansessensensansensansenen $ 28,608 $ 26,932
Interest bearing (includes $7.6 billion and $7.5 billion designated under fair value option at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, TESPECHIVELY)........ovuveerieerceeeeceeeeeeeeee e sesee s sesse s enes e neesenaes 83,808 86,389
Foreign deposits:
Noninterest bearing 736 741
INEETEST DEATINE. ...ttt ettt ettt b e e bbbt e st et et et s bt bt s bt ebeebte st et e nbenbennes 16,106 15,186
TOLAL AEPOSIES. ..ottt s b e bbb e s et et et e st e s bt e bt eb e e st et et et e b e e bt e bt ebeeat et et et e nte e 129,258 129,248
Short-term borrowings (includes $3.1 billion and $2.7 billion designated under fair value option at March
31,2017 and December 31, 2016, TESPECIVELY) .....uvvvvrreieereeeeeeeieseeeeeeie s sesseeesee e ses s sesnasaesens 5,438 5,101
Long-term debt (includes $11.6 billion and $10.4 billion designated under fair value option at March 31,

2017 and December 31, 2016, TESPECHIVELY) .......cvverereceeeereeeeeieeee e teceesesaesesee e eneesesee e rae s sssesesaenan 37,803 37,739
TOLAL AEDL...uiieeiceieieeeeee ettt ettt ettt et ettt et et et e e be et e eteeteereesb e b e s b e b e bebeebeeteensessenbensenbabenteees 172,499 172,088
TTadING HADTIEIES ... .ceueeuieniiietieteet ettt b e bbbt bt et e b et e st bt e bt e bt e bt eateat et enbenbenbenee 4,024 4,908
Interest, taxes and Other HHADIIIIES ...........ooouiiiiiiiiiii ettt e et e et ae e e eateeeteeeaee s 4,386 3,950
TOLAL LIADIIILIES........................ooeveneereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeet ettt ettt et e b e st e e beeteetsess e st ess e b e saesaeeseeseeseensensensensensesas 180,909 180,946
Equity
Preferred stock (no par value; 40,999,000 shares authorized; 1,265 shares issued and outstanding at both

March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016) ......ccveriiriiriiriieiieieieieieieeste ettt ste e sae e se e eneeeensesenaenes 1,265 1,265
Common equity:

Common stock ($5 par; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 714 shares issued and outstanding at both March
31,2017 and December 31, 2016) ...cc.eeieierieriiiieiieiieieeiieiete ettt sttt ettt ettt bbb bt se ettt e aentente e — —
Additional Paid-in CAPILAL.......c.eeieieieieieeresee ettt ettt st b et ettt et nteeae e 18,142 18,148
REtAINEA CATMINES .....eeuveiiiiieiieiietieeee ettt et e b e e bt e st e st e st e s tenbensesbesbeeseeneeneeneensensensensensenee 1,682 1,560
Accumulated other COMPIENENSIVE 10SS......ccuiiiiriiiiiieiieieieeee ettt ettt eee (415) (618)
TOtAl COMIMON EQUILY .....veutentitietietietteie ettt e st ste sttt ettt et et et e b e besbe st e eseeseeseeneensensenseseseeseeneeneensensensansansensees 19,409 19,090
TOUAL @QUILY ...ttt sttt et et e et e b bt bt bten e n s et et e b e be ek e eheeseenee st e tentenbenbens 20,674 20,355
Total liabilities QRd @QUITY.....................ccoccoeeeueieiieeieeeeie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e s s e b e s besbesseeseeseenaensensensensens $ 201,583 $ 201,301

" The following table summarizes assets and liabilities related to our consolidated variable interest entities ("VIEs") at March 31,2017 and December 31,2016

which are consolidated on our balance sheet. Assets and liabilities exclude intercompany balances that eliminate in consolidation. See Note 15, "Variable
Interest Entities," for additional information.
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March 31, December 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
Assets
OTRET @SSELS ...uvveuiitetiatetetett ettt ettt ettt bbbt b et et b ettt b et bbbt st b bt a bt et be s et et be et enene $ 220§ 231
TOLAL ASSEES ...ttt ettt ettt et e e e et eeee e et e e eae e et e e eae e e et e eaaeeaaeeerteeaaeeeaaeeaeeeateeteeeateetee et e eteeeraeeaeeenaean $ 220 $ 231
Liabilities
LONG-teIM AL $ 79 S 79
Interest, taxes and Other LADIIITIES ...........coviiiuiiiiiiieiecee ettt et e e et eere e teeeaeeeteeenreeereeennean 54 60
TOLAL HADIIIEIES ...ttt ettt $ 133 § 139

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
Preferred stock
Balance at beginning and end Of PErIOQ........ccveverieriiiiririeieieeer ettt st st e e esbeebeeneens $ 1,265 $ 1,265

Common stock

Balance at beginning and end Of PETIOd.......ccuiiiiiriiiiiiiiee ettt — —

Additional paid-in capital

Balance at be@inning Of PEIIOM ........ccieiririeieieiereseseeet ettt e et e te st e s aessesseeseeneeneensensensesseeseeseenes 18,148 18,169
EMPIOYEE DENCTIL PLANS ....eviviiiieiieiieiieieteteeteete ettt ettt e st te et e st et e b e besbeebeeseesassaesaessessensesessenseeseaseas (6) 2)
Balance at €nd Of PETTOM. ......c.eiuiuiiiieirieee ettt ettt sttt ettt ne e enan 18,142 18,167
Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of period, as previously TePOrted...........ccceveoiririiiniiiiinieinenee et 1,560 1,498
Reclassification to accumulated other comprehensive loss of cumulative effect adjustment to initially apply
new accounting guidance for financial liabilities measured under the fair value option, net of tax.................. 174) —
Balance at beginning of period, adJUSTEA .........coueriiriiriiiiiiieeee e 1,386 1,498
INEE ITICOIMIC. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b e bt b e atea et et et e et e st e ebeebeebeestestenten b e b e bt ebeebeeaeensentenbenbenbesbesbenbene 296 154
Cash dividends declared on preferred STOCK ... ....coueiiiriiiriiiiiriicc ettt — (14)
Balance at €nd OF PETIOQ. ......cveiiiieiieieieieetetee ettt ettt et et e sa et et e tesaesseeseeseeneensensensensenseeseereenes 1,682 1,638
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Balance at beginning of period, as previously TePOTted.........cccevuevieriririniinirieieteeee s (618) (407)
Reclassification from retained earnings of cumulative effect adjustment to initially apply new accounting
guidance for financial liabilities measured under the fair value option, net of taX ...........coeveveveveeerevevrenenennnn. 174 —
Balance at beginning of period, adJUSIEd ........ccverieriiriiirieieieee ettt reeraens (444) (407)
Other comprehensive iNCOME, NET OF tAX ....c.eiuirieuirieietiieie ettt ettt te e enenean 29 233
Balance at nd Of PETIOA. ......c..oiiiiiiriiiee ettt ettt ettt bbbt et ettt b e b b eaes 415) (174)
TOtal COMMON EQUILY .................cc.ccoouieeiiiiieiiieiiitee ettt ettt ettt sttt et sttt a et a et besneseenens 19,409 19,631
TOLAL @QUILY ...ttt ettt ettt s et e e b e s e st e s aeese et e e st e st e st e s s e s e b e b e ebeeneenten s e st entetensensenteenene $ 20,674 $ 20,896

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



HSBC USA Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities
INCE ITICOIMIC. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e bt e bt ekt e st e st eatesten s et esseebeeseeseeneentensensensanbeebeebeeseereentensentensensensesseeneanean $ 296 $ 154
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and aMOTTIZALION ..........ceeeeeeieierterieriesteseeeeeetetestessessesseesessassaessessessessessessessesssessessessessessessensessenses 22) 3)

Provision for credit losses (i) 157

Net realized gains on securities available-for-sale...........ccoviririiiiiiiiieeeeeee e Q) (29)

Net change in other assets and HADIIILIES ......c.cc.ecueirieiriiriiineirte ettt erene 441 (206)

Net change in loans held for sale:

Originations and purchases of 10ans held fOr SAlE .........c.couiviiriiriniiiiieeeeeeee e (500) (388)
Sales and collections 0f 10ans held fOr SAle .........c.ccvovieiiirreiinicecre et 738 444

Net change in trading assets and HADIIEES «.......c.ooueririririiieiee ettt et (6,857) 152

Lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments on loans held for sale () 59

Gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives.............ccccecvvvvieiininiiiiinniinnciceeees 34) (216)
Net cash provided by OPErating aCtIVITIES ........eververererieieieriesiestestesteeeeeeeesaesessessessessesseeseeseeseessassessessessessessessassenns (6,028) 124
Cash flows from investing activities
Net change in interest bearing deposits With DanKS.........coceeiiviiiiiiiiininicee e 2,368 (6,732)
Net change in federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell..........cocevvieviirienenenenenenennen. (521) (5,282)
Securities available-for-sale:

Purchases of securities available-fOr-SAlE ..........c...ooviiiiiiiiieiciee ettt ete e et e e e eaeeeeaeeeennens (3,636) (6,279)

Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale 2,249 4,039

Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-sale..........ocoeeonrieioininiecnniieireccr e 528 346
Securities held-to-maturity:

Purchases of securities held-t0-MAtUIILY ........cccooueriiriiirieieee ettt ettt ettt s e saesiene (1,096) (88)

Proceeds from maturities of securities held-t0-MAatULILY .........cccerverierierirenerieeeee ettt 580 465
Change in loans:

Originations, NEt OF COLIECIONS ......cvicvieiiieiieieieieresese ettt et te e e te e b e b eaessessesseeseeseeseessessensansansensensenses 3,771 (211)

L0ans SOIA t0 thilrd PATTIES ......coueueeueieeiiteieteet ettt ettt ettt s et et e b be st et et e b e st ene e s e e esesteneseeneeneanan 1,319 16
Net cash used for acquisitions of properties and EqUIPMENL ........c..ccereririririeierieierereese ettt sieene 6) (6)
ORI, TICL ...ttt ettt e b e b bt e bt e heeates b en b et e besbesbeebeeb e eaten e et et e b e e bt e bt eh e ententen b et e ntentesbenaeene 230 (628
Net cash used in INVESHINEZ ACTIVITIES . ..c..c.eeveutruiieiirieirtiteiertet ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt st ebe e ebesaeseebesa bt ebe e ebesaeneenens 5,786 (13,783)
Cash flows from financing activities
NEt CHANGE TN AEPOSIES ...veuvenritietietieieietetetete e st et et eteeetestestestessesseeseesessessaessessessessessesesseaseaseaseassassessansensensessensansenns 11 7,557
Debt:

Net change in ShOTt-TeTM DOTTOWINZS ...c..ccueeuieuieieieiiteet ettt ettt sttt ettt s b e bt e bt bt et e st e sbesbesbesbesbene 338 4,908

Issuance of long-term debt 1,691 1,772

Repayment of long-term debt (1,990) (667)
Other increases (decreases) in CaAPItAl SUTPIUS .....c.eeveiirierieieieieteteterie ettt ettt et e st e besbeeaeeseeseeseensensensessessessasseans (6) 2)
DiIVIAENAS PAIA.....eeuveieiieiieiieeeeeteeert ettt ettt et e et e st e et e e teese e st essessessessessassesseaseessessensessaseaseeseassassessansansensessessansenns — 14)
Net cash provided by fINanCING ACTIVITIES ......euerveuirieietiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e st se et eaeeenenean 44 13,554
Net change in cash and due from DaNKS ........c..cooiiiiiiiiiii ettt s eae (198) (105)
Cash and due from banks at beginning Of PETIOQ.........ccueruiriririiiiieieere ettt ettt s saeene 1,235 968
Cash and due from banks at end of Period............................cccocovciviiviniiimiinieiiniieieiinieeteeeeee ettt $ 1,037 § 863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Note Page Note Page
1 Organization and Presentation........c..c..ccccoueue. 9 11 Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits....... 40
2 Trading Assets and Liabilities...........cccccecuenene. 10 12 Related Party Transactions ..........c.ccecceveeruenee 41
3 SECUIILICS. ..veeuvieerereeererieeeesieeteserete e eeeseenee e 11 13 Business SegmeNnts..........cceeeverreereerreesvereervenenens 44
4 LoAnS...ceiieieieeiee e 16 14 Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital 47

Requirements .........ccccoovveeiniiiiniiieiniieenieenn,
5 Allowance for Credit Losses ........cceceevereeennene. 26 15 Variable Interest Entities.........cccccevveierieninnncns 48
6 Loans Held for Sale.......c.cceevvvienieienieerenee, 27 16 Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and 50
Repurchase Agreements...........ccceceeevveeennenne.
7 GoodWill ..o 28 17 Fair Value Measurements ...........ccccceverueeruenneene 56
8 Derivative Financial Instruments...................... 29 18 Litigation and Regulatory Matters.................... 72
9 Fair Value Option........ccccceeveveieineninenenennns 36 19 New Accounting Pronouncements.................... 74
10 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss........ 39

1. Organization and Presentation

HSBC USA Inc. ("HSBC USA"), incorporated under the laws of Maryland, is a New York State based bank holding company and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC North America Holdings Inc. ("HSBC North America"), which is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc ("HSBC" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HSBC Group"). The accompanying unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements of HSBC US A and its subsidiaries (collectively "HUSI") have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial information
and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X, as well as in accordance with predominant practices
within the banking industry. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted
accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments
considered necessary for a fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods have
been made. HUSI may also be referred to in these notes to the consolidated financial statements as "we," "us" or "our." These
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2016 (the "2016 Form 10-K"). Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to
conform to the current period presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Interim results should not be considered
indicative of results in future periods. For the three months ended March 31, 2017, our income tax expense was impacted by an
out of period adjustment to our deferred tax asset balance which decreased tax expense by approximately $9 million.
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2. Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Trading assets:

ULS. TIOASULY .ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt et st st a e e e ea et ea s e bt et e ebe et e sueennesaeenaeeanen $ 3576 $ 3,560
U.S. Government agency issued or gUaranteed............ceceveriruirieneneniinienienieierereeeeee e 23 24
U.S. Government SpONSOTed ENEETPIISES. .....cveteuteuieiririirtirterieetentestestetesteseetestetestese et eseebesbesaeseennes 216 222
ASSEt-DACKEA SECUITLIES. .. .c.veeviiiiiieieiet ettt e 357 365
Corporate and foreign DONAS .......c..coivirieririiiiie ettt 7,288 6,481
OhET SECUTTTIES ....viiiiieiieiiee ettt ettt ettt st s sttt et et aeeae bt ebesbesaens 12 15
PrECIOUS METALS ....cuiiiiiiiiiiitiitiiteet ettt sttt ettt et ettt be bbb sbe e 7,770 1,772
DIEIIVALIVES, TICL ....e.tiiiiitieiiet ettt ettt ettt b et e b et e e b et e bt e bt eate s bt emtesbeemtesbeenaesbeenaesbeans 3,581 4,411
TOtA] trAQING ASSES....veutiuieiieiiitietiite ettt ettt et b e bbb sttt ettt eat et e bt bt ebe bt eaeenes $ 22823 $§ 16,850
Trading liabilities: -
Securities s0ld, N0t Yet PUIChASEA........c..coiriririiiiiciciet ettt e $ 85 § 1,060
Payables for precious MELals .........ccoeoiriiriiriiiiieieeeccee ettt — 62
DIETIVALIVES, TIET .. .vtuiieetiitiiteitiet ettt ettt et ettt et e b e bbbttt be b bbbt et et et ebeebtebeebeebeebesbenaens 3,169 3,786
Total trading HADIIIIES .....c.coveuerieuiriiirieiriciet ettt ettt $ 4024 S 4,908

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets is net of $3,783 million and
$4,462 million, respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the obligation to return cash collateral received under master
netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of derivatives included in trading liabilities is net of $3,184 million and
$3,826 million, respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral paid under master netting
agreements with derivative counterparties.

See Note 8, "Derivative Financial Instruments," for further information on our trading derivatives and related collateral.
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3. Securities

Our securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity portfolios consisted of the following:

Amortized
March 31, 2017 Cost

Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Gains Losses Value

Securities available-for-sale:
ULS. TICASUIY ettt ettt sttt et e s s $ 22,371

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:

(in millions)

$ 135 $§  (435) $ 22,071

3 (124) 5,093
— (32) 1,450
115 @4 3,839
64) 2,909

(18) 1,098

— 424

— (7 59
— — 507
— — 307
— 5) 154

Mortgage-backed SECUTITHIES .......ccuervirierieerieriieie et 5,214
Collateralized mortgage obligations ............cceververierienieriereeieeeieeenes 1,482
Direct agency obligations..........cecueveeiiireenienierie et 3,728
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUTITHIES .......ccuerueriirieerieniieie ettt 2,971
Collateralized mortgage obligations ............cceververierienieriereeieeeieeenes 1,114
Direct agency obligations..........cecuevueeiereenienierieniee e 419
Asset-backed securities collateralized by:
HOME @QUILY -.eveeniiiieteeieeeee et 66
ORNCT. .ttt st 507
Foreign debt SeCUTtEs' ............ovoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 307
EQUILY SECUITHIES ... eeviiiieiieeiiiieieeteeieeit ettt be e eeae b e esa e beenaeseens 159
Total available-for-sale SECUIILIES.........ccuevuerieieieieieicicicecece e $ 38,338

Securities held-to-maturity:

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:

$ 262 $ (689) $ 37,911

$ 11 $  (10) $ 2,383
56 (12) 1,553
7 (13) 2,428
33 (55) 6,949
1 — 15
— — 5

Mortgage-backed SECUTIHIES .......ecvervieiereieieeeierieseeieseeie e ee e e eneeees $ 2,382
Collateralized mortgage obligations ..........cccccevereeriiienenienenieneeieee 1,509

U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUTITHIES ......cecverviriereeieriieie et 2,434
Collateralized mortgage obligations ...........ccceeververierieniesienieeieeeeeeenns 6,971
Obligations of U.S. states and political SubdiviSions............ccceververenuenncne 14
Asset-backed securities collateralized by residential mortgages................... 5
Total held-to-maturity SECUITLIES........couevveruerieieieieieieieeeeeeee e $ 13,315

11
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Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2016 Cost Gains Losses Value

(in millions)

Securities available-for-sale:

ULS. TI@ASUIY .ttt sttt sttt sttt sttt ettt sttt sttt ee $ 21,366 $ 102 3 (559) $ 20,909
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:

Mortgage-backed SECUIILIES .......oervervirrereieieiieieieerere et 4,535 4 (122) 4,417

Collateralized mortgage obligations ..........cccveveeeeeereniineneneneneereenes 2,139 — (36) 2,103

Direct agency obligations .........ccceeererierienieieiiieieinereseee e 3,709 118 (10) 3,817
U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:

Mortgage-backed SECUITLIES .......c.evververreieieieieieieere et 3,102 2 (58) 3,046

Collateralized mortgage obligations ..........cccveveeeeeereniineneneneneereenes 1,370 2 1%5) 1,357

Direct agency Obligations .........ccccerueeieririienieiere ettt 423 1 4 420
Asset-backed securities collateralized by:

HOME EQUILY....cuveuiiiiiiiiieiieere ettt s 69 — (8) 61

OBRET ...ttt ettt 108 — 3) 105
Foreign debt SECUTTHES ! ............oveeeeeeeeee e 522 — @) 521
EQUILY SECUIILIES ...eovvivieiiieiieiieiicieeteeste ettt et ae bbb et sbeeseenne e 159 — 5) 154

Total available-for-sale SECUTIILIES. ......ceeieiieeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeee e $ 37,502 $ 229 $ (821) $ 36,910

Securities held-to-maturity:

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises:

Mortgage-backed SECUTTLIES .......c.eoveverveuirieuerieiricirieireteceeteeeieeeenaenene $ 2465 % 11 3 ) $ 2467
Collateralized mortgage obligations ........c..ccceceevevererienieninienenenenennenee 1,591 59 (12) 1,638

U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed:
Mortgage-backed SECUITLIES .......o.evververreieieieieieieeeese et 2,557 11 (10) 2,558
Collateralized mortgage obligations ..........cccveeveeeeeinerineneneneneereenes 6,176 34 (56) 6,154
Obligations of U.S. states and political subdiviSions .........c..ceceevererenenrenens 15 1 — 16
Asset-backed securities collateralized by residential mortgages................... 5 — — 5
Total held-to-maturity SECUTILIES .......covevvererveieiieieieiinerceeceere e $ 12,809 $ 116 $ (87) $ 12,838

M Foreign debt securities represent public sector entity, bank or corporate debt.

Net unrealized losses decreased within the available-for-sale portfolio in the first quarter of 2017 due primarily to the impact of
decreasing yields on intermediate-term U.S. Treasury securities.

12
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The following table summarizes gross unrealized losses and related fair values at March 31,2017 and December 31,2016 classified
as to the length of time the losses have existed:

One Year or Less Greater Than One Year
Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross Aggregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
March 31, 2017 Securities Losses of Investment Securities Losses of Investment

(dollars are in millions)

Securities available-for-sale:

U.S. TICASUIY .eveeveeereeeeieeieeieeeeeeeeeie e 36 $§ (318 $ 10,241 2888 (117) $ 2,867
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 408 (153) 6,468 17 @) 431
U.S. Government agency issued or
UArANteed ......ooveveieieieieeeeeee e 55 (75) 3,663 6 @) 151
Asset-backed securities..........ccoovvererevennennen. — — — 6 @) 107
Foreign debt securities.........c.ccoveeveereennennen. 2 — 107 1 — 175
Equity SECUITtIES.....cvvereereereieiieiercriceicnieneene — — — 1 Q) 154
Securities available-for-sale.............c..ccoova.... 501 $ (546) $ 20479 59§ (143) $ 3,885
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 449 $ 22) $ 2,053 43 3 — 3 21
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed ..o 182 67) 4,798 491 1) 61
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ... 1 — — 3 — —
Securities held-to-maturity ..............cccceeuvnenee. 632 $ 39 $ 6,851 537 $ 1 s 82
One Year or Less Greater Than One Year
Number Gross Aggregate Number Gross Aggregate
of Unrealized Fair Value of Unrealized Fair Value
December 31, 2016 Securities Losses of Investment Securities Losses of Investment
(dollars are in millions)
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. TTCASUTIY .evevveverierienieeieeieereeeeeeeie e v 40 $ (378) $ 13,707 32 8 (181) § 3,908
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 316 (155) 6,474 18 (13) 427
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed ... 57 (66) 3,941 7 (11) 252
Asset-backed securities.........cccceeeeererennenne. — — — 8 11 166
Foreign debt securities.........cccecevvererenennene 7 — 343 1 (1 178
Equity SECUTTHES.....coververereieieiiricriceienieene 1 5) 154 — — —
Securities available-for-sale...........c.ccccoeevenaee. 421 $ (604) $ 24,619 66 § (217) § 4,931
Securities held-to-maturity: -
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises...... 434 $ 21 s 2,013 45 3 — § 21
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed ... 179 (65) 4,734 503 (1) 112
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ...covenveneciieiceciiececececsc e 1 — — 3 — —
Securities held-to-maturity ............c.ccccceeeennee 614 $ (86) $ 6,747 551 $ 1 s 133

Although the fair value of a particular security may be below its amortized cost, it does not necessarily result in a credit loss and
hence an other-than-temporary impairment. The decline in fair value may be caused by, among other things, the illiquidity of the
market. We have reviewed the securities for which there is an unrealized loss for other-than-temporary impairment in accordance
with our accounting policies, discussed further below. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, we do not consider any of our
debt securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired as we expect to recover their amortized cost basis and we neither intend nor
expect to be required to sell these securities prior to recovery, even if that equates to holding securities until their individual
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maturities. However, other-than-temporary impairments may occur in future periods if the credit quality of the securities
deteriorates.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment On a quarterly basis, we perform an assessment to determine whether there have been any
events or economic circumstances to indicate that a security with an unrealized loss has suffered other-than-temporary impairment.
A debt security is considered impaired if its fair value is less than its amortized cost at the reporting date. If impaired, we assess
whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.

If we intend to sell the debt security or if it is more-likely-than-not that we will be required to sell the debt security before the
recovery of its amortized cost basis, the impairment is considered other-than-temporary and the unrealized loss is recorded in
earnings. An impairment is also considered other-than-temporary if a credit loss exists (i.e., the present value of the expected future
cash flows is less than the amortized cost basis of the debt security). In the event a credit loss exists, the credit loss component of
an other-than-temporary impairment is recorded in earnings while the remaining portion of the impairment loss attributable to
factors other than credit loss is recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income.

For all securities held in the available-for-sale or held-to-maturity portfolios for which unrealized losses attributed to factors other
than credit existed, we do not have the intention to sell and believe we will not be required to sell the securities for contractual,
regulatory or liquidity reasons as of the reporting date. For a complete description of the factors considered when analyzing debt
securities for impairments, see Note 4, "Securities," in our 2016 Form 10-K. There have been no material changes in our process
for assessing impairment during 2017.

During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, none of our debt securities were determined to have either initial other-
than-temporary impairment or changes to previous other-than-temporary impairment estimates relating to the credit component,
as such, there were no other-than-temporary impairment losses recognized related to credit loss.

Other securities gains, net The following table summarizes realized gains and losses on investment securities transactions
attributable to available-for-sale securities:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
GrOSS TEALZEM GAINS ...vovvieiieieteeieitetet ettt ettt s et a st e b e e et enese e rnenes $ 5 S 31
GTOSS TEALIZEA 1OSSES ...ttt ettt b ettt et ettt ebeebesbe b — )
NEt TEALIZEA ZAINS ...eueevteniietete ettt ettt ettt b et s et s e b s e e b et et sesesene s $ 5§ 29
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Contractual Maturities and Yields The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair values of securities available-for-
sale and securities held-to-maturity at March 31,2017 by contractual maturity. Expected maturities differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties in certain cases. Securities available-for-sale
amounts exclude equity securities as they do not have stated maturities. The table below also reflects the distribution of maturities
of debt securities held at March 31,2017, together with the approximate taxable equivalent yield of the portfolio. The yields shown
are calculated by dividing annualized interest income, including the accretion of discounts and the amortization of premiums, by
the amortized cost of securities outstanding at March 31, 2017. Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a taxable
equivalent basis using applicable statutory tax rates.

After One After Five
Within But Within But Within After Ten
One Year Five Years Ten Years Years
Taxable Equivalent Basis Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(dollars are in millions)

Available-for-sale:

U.S. TIeasury.....cocecereererereereneererieennene $ — —% $ 8566 1.67% $ 9,670 1.96% § 4,135 2.93%
U.S. Government sponsored
ENLETPTISES .vovveeverrerienieseeienieeeeeeeereeenes 299 325 3,006 2.89 1,165 2.48 5,864  2.57
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed........coceveveeeienieieinenceene, — — 115 2.93 92 247 4,297 2.39
Asset-backed securities ...........c.ccecenenee. — — 400 2.38 — — 173 3.62
Foreign debt securities..........c.ceceecerennene 62 .00 245 .93 — — — —
Total amortized COSt........ccvveeeviieeiieennee. $ 361 2.70% $ 12,422  2.00% $ 10,927 2.02% $ 14,469 2.63%
Total fair ValUe.........eveeeeeeeeerreeeerererseeeeenne $ 363 $ 12,552 $ 10,682 $ 14,160

Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government sponsored

ENLETPIISES wevvvevererrererrererereeereeeeennaes $ — —% $ 299 217% $ 391 2.78% $ 3,201 2.85%
U.S. Government agency issued or
guaranteed........cocooveveeeieneeiieinenceenne. — — 5 194 35 3.1 9,365 2.33
Obligations of U.S. states and political
SUDAIVISIONS ..cevenvenieicieiecciiniceiceiene 2 395 3 375 5 337 4 5.64
Asset-backed securities ...........cccevennee — — — — — — 5 6.85
Total amortized COSt.......ooevrveerrerireienennes $ 2 395% $ 307 2.19% $ 431 2.85% §$ 12,575 2.47%
Total fair value......cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 2 $ 308 $ 435 $ 12,588

Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock of $302 million and $631 million, respectively,
were included in other assets at March 31, 2017. Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank stock and Federal Reserve Bank stock
of $338 million and $631 million, respectively, were included in other assets at December 31, 2016.
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4. Loans

Loans consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Real estate, inCluding CONSIIUCTION. ......ccuerueriiiiieieieieeet ettt $ 10802 $ 10,890
Business and corporate DanKing ...........coeeereieieieieinineeesese sttt 13,152 14,080
G1ODAL BANKING P ...t r e 22,527 23,481
Other commercial® 3,515 5,765
Total COMMETCIAL.......couiitiriiiiriietiee ettt 49,996 54,216
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTEGAZES .....coevueruirririerieieteteeceetet ettt st sr ettt sae b 17,219 17,181
HOME EqUILY MOTEZAZES ..c.vevieiiiierieieietet ettt ettt sttt sttt ettt et et be et ebe b b 1,344 1,408
CIEAIt CATAS ..vveeiieiieieiieetee ettt et sttt et e ettt et ae bt 646 638
OFRET COMSUIMET .....viniiiieiiteiirtetet ettt ettt sttt st s a et st b et b et b e b e b e sae e e nnene 383 382
TOtAL COMSUIMIET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st et e e st e bt esee et emeeeaeeneeeseensesseeneeneenseeneens 19,592 19,659
TOtAL LOANS .....evieieeiieieeieieet ettt ettt ettt e e s te e besse e bessa et e esaenseessenseessesseenseaseessesseensesssensesssessenssans $ 69588 §$§ 73875

o Represents large multinational firms including globally focused U.S. corporate and financial institutions, U.S. dollar lending to multinational banking clients

managed by HSBC on a global basis and complex large business clients supported by GB&M relationship managers.

2 During the first quarter of 2017, in conjunction with the creation of the new Corporate Center segment as discussed further in Note 13, "Business Segments,"
we reclassified loans to HSBC affiliates from global banking to other commercial and revised the prior period to conform with the current year presentation.
As aresult, other commercial includes loans to HSBC affiliates which totaled $939 million and $3,274 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively. All tables below have been restated to reflect this reclassification, as applicable. See Note 12, "Related Party Transactions," for additional
information regarding loans to HSBC affiliates.

Net deferred origination fees totaled $39 million and $48 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. At
March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016, we had a net unamortized premium (discount) on our loans of $7 million and $(5) million,
respectively.
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Aging Analysis of Past Due Loans The following table summarizes the past due status of our loans, excluding loans held for sale,
at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. The aging of past due amounts is determined based on the contractual delinquency
status of payments under the loan. An account is generally considered to be contractually delinquent when payments have not been
made in accordance with the loan terms. Delinquency status is affected by customer account management policies and practices
such as re-age, which results in the re-setting of the contractual delinquency status to current.

Past Due Total Past Due
At March 31, 2017 30-89Days 90+ Days 30 Days or More Current”  Total Loans
(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Real estate, including construction............ceeceeeeererrencnnens $ 57 $ 3 8 60 $ 10,742 $ 10,802
Business and corporate banking ..............cceeveeverieiieneennnns 94 2 96 13,056 13,152
Global banking............ccceeverieiinieniienceereeeeeeee e — 64 64 22,463 22,527
Other commErcial ..........oocvvvieriieieieiee e 1 7 8 3,507 3,515
Total commercial.............cooouiiiiiiiieiiiceee e 152 76 228 49,768 49,996
Consumer loans:
Residential mortgages........coceevveveieniinieninieneeieneeeeseeene 350 353 703 16,516 17,219
Home equity mortgages. ........cccceeverenenienenienieieneeeeennenne 10 39 49 1,295 1,344
Credit CardS ...uuviiiiiiieeiie e 8 9 17 629 646
Other CONSUIMET .......eeveriieieeiieieeeieie et eee e eee e eeeseeeneens 5 6 11 372 383
Total CONSUMET.........eevvieiieeieeiieeie et eve e ae e e 373 407 780 18,812 19,592
TOtal 1OANS ..c.veeeeeiieiecieeieeiee et $ 525 § 483 § 1,008 $ 68,580 $ 69,588
Past Due Total Past Due
At December 31, 2016 30-89Days 90+ Days 30 Days or More  Current” Total Loans
(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Real estate, including construction............coeceeeeeveereneennene $ 17 $ 6 $ 23 $ 10,867 $ 10,890
Business and corporate banking ..............cccoevveeeerieriereennnns 35 9 44 14,036 14,080
Global banking............ccceeeirierinienieere et 1 64 65 23,416 23,481
Other coOmMMETCial .......cceeevieiieiieieiieiee e 4 7 11 5,754 5,765
Total commercial...........cceevvievieriienieie e 57 86 143 54,073 54,216
Consumer loans:
Residential mOrtgages........coovevveeeeenieieneeiereeereee e 402 317 719 16,462 17,181
Home equity mortgages. ........coceeereruervenienenienieieceeeennenne 10 43 53 1,355 1,408
Credit Cards.......cuvevieeieeiieeieeee et 9 10 19 669 688
Other CONSUMET .......cccveriieieetieiieeiereeeenteeee e eee e eeesseeneens 7 7 14 368 382
Total CONSUMET..........ooeeuiiieeiieecee e 428 377 805 18,854 19,659
TOtAl LOANS ....c.vevevivieeeeeeeeeeee et enes $ 485 $ 463 $ 948 $ 72,927 $ 73,875
m

Loans less than 30 days past due are presented as current.
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Nonaccrual Loans Nonaccrual loans, including nonaccrual loans held for sale, and accruing loans 90 days or more delinquent
consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial:
Real estate, iINCIUdINg CONSIIUCTION. ........iivieiiieieiiiieteeieie ettt e et eaeereeaesreesaesseessessaessessnens $ 53§ 56
Business and corporate DanKing ...........ccooeeriiieriiieieeeeeeee e 208 187
GlODAL DANKING ......vevieieeiieiieieie ettt ettt e et e et e ess e seensesseensesseensesseensesssensennnens 490 546
Other COMIMETCIAL.......ccviiiiiiieiiciieieete ettt ettt et e b e e et e esa e beessesseesseeseessesseessesseessesssessenssens 1 1
Commercial nonaccrual loans held for Sale ..........ccocciiiiieciiiricciee e 5 11
TOtal COMMETCIAL.......eetieeieiieeieti ettt ettt et e et et e e e e st ensesseensesneensesseensesssensennnens 757 801
Consumer:
Residential mortgages' @) e 446 435
Home equity Mort@ages'™® ... .. ..o 71 75
Consumer nonaccrual 10ans held for Sale..........covvieriiiiiiiieiiiicccccce e 39 369
TOTAl COMSUIMET ... vieiieeeiieiieeieeiteete et e et e etee st e e teeeabeeteeasbeesteesssaesseessseesssaesseessseanseeseesnsanseenssens 556 879
Total NONACCIUING LIOANS............cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiieiec ettt et e et e veeeaee e ve e taeeaseenes 1,313 1,680
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more:
Commercial:
Business and corporate DANKINg ...........ccooovereriereriereeeieeeeee et 1 1
TOtal COMMETCIAL.......eivieiieiieiieiieieete ettt ete st e et e e e te et e esaeseesseeseensesseessesseensesseessesssensenssens 1 1
Consumer:
CTEAIE CATAS ..veovvieieiieiie ettt ettt et et e e e s v e e te e et e e teeesbeesteessbe e seessseesssaasseessaessseesaesssaaseenasens 9 10
OthET COMSUIMIET .....vitiiiieiietieiteeteeteeteete st eteseeesaesteesbesssesseessesseesseseassanssensesseessesssensesssensesssessenssens 7 7
TOTAl COMSUIMET .....utieuiieiiiieiieeteeteeete et e ete et et esteeeebeeteeesbeestaesssaeseessseesseasseessaeanseeseesnsaenseesnsens 16 17
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more..................cccoeevvieirieneeecreenreeneenne 17 18
Total NonPerforming LOANS..............c.occveviiiiiiiiiieicieeeee ettt seeeae e sessaesseesnens $ 1,330 $ 1,698
m

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, nonaccrual consumer mortgage loans held for investment include $396 million and $382 million, respectively,
of loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ Nonaccrual consumer mortgage loans held for investment include all loans which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as loans discharged
under Chapter 7 bankruptcy and not re-affirmed and second lien loans where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually
delinquent.

® Nonaccrual consumer mortgage loans for all periods does not include guaranteed loans purchased from the Government National Mortgage Association.

Repayment of these loans are predominantly insured by the Federal Housing Administration and as such, these loans have different risk characteristics from
the rest of our consumer loan portfolio.

The following table provides additional information on our nonaccrual loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)

Interest income that would have been recorded if the nonaccrual loans had been current in
accordance with contractual terms during the period...........cccoevveeiieiieniecienieee e $ 20 $ 21

Interest income that was recorded on nonaccrual loans and included in interest income during the
PEIIOM ..ttt ettt et et este et esbe e b et e esb et e ess e e s e esseesees b e ese e beera e beerb e ke enbeateenbeessenseeseenseeneenreenes 11 6
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Impaired Loans A loan is considered to be impaired when it is deemed probable that not all principal and interest amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will be collected. Probable losses from impaired loans are quantified and
recorded as a component of the overall allowance for credit losses. Commercial and consumer loans for which we have modified
the loan terms as part of a troubled debt restructuring are considered to be impaired loans. Additionally, commercial loans in
nonaccrual status, or that have been partially charged-off or assigned a specific allowance for credit losses are also considered
impaired loans.

Troubled debt restructurings TDR Loans represent loans for which the original contractual terms have been modified to provide
for terms that are less than what we would be willing to accept for new loans with comparable risk because of deterioration in the
borrower's financial condition.

Modifications for consumer or commercial loans may include changes to one or more terms of the loan, including, but not limited
to, a change in interest rate, extension of the amortization period, reduction in payment amount and partial forgiveness or deferment
of principal, accrued interest or other loan covenants. A substantial amount of our modifications involve interest rate reductions
on consumer loans which lower the amount of interest income we are contractually entitled to receive in future periods. Through
lowering the interest rate and other loan term changes, we believe we are able to increase the amount of cash flow that will ultimately
be collected from the loan, given the borrower's financial condition. TDR Loans are reserved for either based on the present value
of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans' original effective interest rates which generally results in a higher reserve
requirement for these loans or in the case of certain secured loans, the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. Once a
consumer loan is classified as a TDR Loan, it continues to be reported as such until it is paid off or charged-off. For commercial
loans, if subsequent performance is in accordance with the new terms and such terms reflect current market rates at the time of
restructure, they will no longer be reported as a TDR Loan beginning in the year after restructuring. During the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016 there were no commercial loans that met this criteria and were removed from TDR Loan classification.

The following table presents information about loans which were modified during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016 and as a result of this action became classified as TDR Loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
Commercial loans:
Business and corporate DANKING ...........cceocverierieriirieieeiestieie ettt et e st sesaesseesaesseensenseens $ — 3 114

TOtal COMIMIETCIAL.....cvviiiieiiiiceeie ettt ettt e et e e e e ste e e e aeeeeenaeesenaeessnneeeenneessneeeaas — 114

Consumer loans:

ReSidential MOTEZAZES ......vevvieieriieieeiieiesterte sttt ettt et et e et e te e e e sseesseeseesesseesesnsessesssensennsenseans 6 27

HOME EQUILY MOTEZAZES ..oovieeviiieiiieiieiecttete ettt ste et e steesaesteesbesseessesseesseeseessessaessesssesseessessenssensenns 2 2

CTEAIL CATAS ..eevvieeeieeiieiie ettt et eeee et e st e et e st e e tbe e bt e ebeebeessbaesseessseessaeasseassaasssaesseesssaasseessseenseenssenn 1 1

TOtAL COMSUITICT ......vetieuiieiieieeeieete ettt ete st etesetetestaebeesae s eesaeseensenseensesseensesseensesssensesnsensesnsensennsensenns 9 30
TORAL ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et e e te e b e s te e be e et e be et b e be et b et e erb e b e e s b e eaeenbeereesbeentenbeessebeesaeteessanreans $ 9

$ 144

The weighted-average contractual rate reduction for consumer loans which became classified as TDR Loans during the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 was 1.63 percent and 2.29 percent, respectively. The weighted-average contractual rate
reduction for commercial loans was not significant in either the number of loans or rate.
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The following table presents information about our TDR Loans and the related allowance for credit losses for TDR Loans:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Unpaid Unpaid
Carrying  Principal Carrying Principal
Value Balance Value Balance

(in millions)

TDR Loans:"*®
Commercial loans:
Real estate, including CONStIUCHION .......eoverieeeieieieiieiececeee e $ 31 § 33 8§ 32 93 33
Business and corporate banking ...........c.ccoeeevveveeneeieinienineniencneseneneeneeennen 269 340 300 363
G1ODAL DANKING. ....coveeiiiiieiietiitieteetee ettt ettt 88 920 150 152
Total COMMETCIAL®) ... een 388 463 482 548
Consumer loans:
Residential MOrtgages™..............coo.vviiveiereeeceeeee e 712 809 708 797
Home equity MOortgages'™ ...........cocoovivveeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeese e 30 61 27 59
CIEAIt CATAS ..evviieiieeeieiee ettt e ettt e e e et et e e e s et aeeeesessaareeeseeaareeeeas 4 4 5 5
TOtAl CONSUIMET......c.ueiiitieiiietietietteste e steetesteeaesteeaesteeseessesseessesseessaseessesseesseses 746 874 740 861
Total TDR LOANS™ ...t $ 1,134 $ 1,337 § 1,222 $ 1,409

Allowance for credit losses for TDR Loans:©

Commercial loans:

Real estate, including CONSIUCHON .......ceevervieieiieieeiieie et $ 5 $ —
Business and corporate banking ............cceccevieiiiieiinieneeeeeeeee e 15 37
Total COMMETCIAL.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 20 37
Consumer loans:

Residential MOTtZAZES. ... ccvevieriieieriieierieete ettt ete et be e sre e sseesaeeseesseseas 8 9
Home equity MOItZAZES ... .ccueeeieeiereieierieeie ettt e eees
CrEdit CATAS -.ueenienieiieiieieetet ettt b bbbt sttt 1 1
TOtAl CONSUIMET.......ueeiiiieiieeieeiee e et et e et et eeteestaeebeesebeebeesaseebeesaseesseessseenseens 10 11

Total allowance for credit losses for TDR LOaAns ...........ooovvvvveuveeieveeiieieeeieeeeieeeennen. $ 30 $ 48

(" TDR Loans are considered to be impaired loans. For consumer loans, all such loans are considered impaired loans regardless of accrual status. For commercial
loans, impaired loans include other loans in addition to TDR Loans which totaled $540 million and $571 million at March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively.

@ The carrying value of TDR Loans includes basis adjustments on the loans, such as unearned income, unamortized deferred fees and costs on originated
loans, partial charge-offs and premiums or discounts on purchased loans.

®  Additional commitments to lend to commercial borrowers whose loans have been modified in TDR Loans totaled $232 million and $184 million at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

@ At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the carrying value of consumer mortgage TDR Loans held for investment includes $681 million and $672
million, respectively, of loans that are recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

® At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the carrying value of TDR Loans includes $515 million and $645 million, respectively, of loans which are
classified as nonaccrual.

(©)

Included in the allowance for credit losses.
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The following table presents information about average TDR Loans and interest income recognized on TDR Loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
Average balance of TDR Loans:
Commercial loans:

Real estate, iINCIUding CONSIIUCTION. .......ccuiiieriiiieriieteieet ettt esae e e saeeeesbeessesbeessesseens $ 31 $ 93
Business and corporate DanKing ...........cocoiieriiiiniiieieeee e 285 199
(€2 e] 021 I 0T 11 1 =S PRUSPTRSP 119 112
TOtal COMMETCIAL......ccuieiieeieiieeieeie ettt ettt et ettt et e e b esteesseeseesbeeseessesseessesssessaessessenssensenns 435 404
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTEZAZES .....eevveriieieriieieeiieie sttt ettt et et e st et e sseensesseensesnnessesssensennsenseans 715 1,047
HOME ©QUILY MOTTZAZES ... veeiuveerieitieeiieriieeteesteeteesteeteesteeesaeeseessbeeseessseeseesssessseessaesnseesssessseenes 29 24
CTEAIL CATAS....uveeiieeiieeiie et eete ettt ettt e et e st e et e e teeeaaeebeaesseesseessbeesseessseensaassseesseassseanseesssannsennes 4 5
TOtAl COMSUIMET .....couveiiiiteie ettt ee e et e e e e et e e e enteeeeseeeeeaseeeeseeeeenneeeeaeeeenneeeeannees 748 1,076
Total average balance of TDR LOANS.......ccccccueriiiiriiiieiiieieiteeteete ettt ereeae e e steeaaestesaesaeessesaeessasseens $ 1,183 $ 1,480

Interest income recognized on TDR Loans:
Commercial loans:

Real estate, iINClUdiNg CONSIIUCTION......c.eeuiiuiiiitiitiitieieete ettt ettt s $ — § 1

Business and corporate DANKINg ...........coceeieiiiiiniiieieeeeee e 3 1

Total COMMETCIAL......c.eiuiiiiiieiiicicrc ettt sttt 3 2
Consumer loans:

Residential MOTEZAZES .....ecuvereieeieiieieeit ettt ettt ettt et e st entesseesaesaeesseeneesseeneenseans 7 10

TOtAL COMSUIMET ..ottt ettt ettt st a ettt e s ne 7 10

Total interest income recognized on TDR LO@NS........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiisiee e $ 10 § 12

The following table presents consumer loans which were classified as TDR Loans during the previous 12 months which
subsequently became 60 days or greater contractually delinquent during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
Consumer loans:
ReSIAENtIal MOTTZAZES ....ovivevieietieietiieticieteet ettt ettt ettt et bt s s s st seas b easeseasessasesessesesesessenis $ 3 5 11

TOtA] COMSUIMET .....evvviiiiiiieiee ettt e e et e e e et e e e e e ettt e e e e e eeataeeeesseaaseeessenasaeeeseennraneeas 3 11

During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no commercial TDR Loans which were classified as TDR
Loans during the previous 12 months which subsequently became 90 days or greater contractually delinquent.
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Impaired commercial loans The following table presents information about impaired commercial loans and the related impairment
reserve for impaired commercial loans:

Amount Amount
with without Total Impaired Unpaid
Impairment Impairment Commercial Impairment Principal
Reserves®™ Reserves®™ Loans"® Reserve Balance
(in millions)

At March 31, 2017
Real estate, including construction............coceeeeeeeceenennene $ 33 §$ 11 S 4 $ 6 S 46
Business and corporate banking...........ccccoeeeeveeerccrenennenn 148 176 324 36 392
Global DanKing ..........c.cceeeererienenesieeee e 425 128 553 223 564
Other commercial...........ccevveeierieiieriee e 1 6 7 1 7
Total commercial...........c..cooveeviiiieeiieeieeeeee e $ 607 $ 321 $ 928 $§ 266 $ 1,009
At December 31, 2016 -
Real estate, including construction...........ccoeeeeververvennenennns $ 23 41 3 43 $ 1 3 45
Business and corporate banking...........cccccceeveeeeceecrenennenn 176 166 342 55 397
Global banKing ..........coceeeeerereneneneneeeeeee e 417 244 661 251 674
Other commercial..........coooveeeiieiiieieec e 1 6 7 1 7
Total COMMETCIAL.....cceiieirieeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 596 $ 457 $ 1,053 § 308 $ 1,123
m

Reflects the carrying value of impaired commercial loans and includes basis adjustments on the loans, such as partial charge-offs, unamortized deferred fees
and costs on originated loans and any premiums or discounts on purchased loans.

@ Includes impaired commercial loans that are also considered TDR Loans which totaled $388 million and $482 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31,

2016, respectively.

The following table presents information about average impaired commercial loans and interest income recognized on impaired
commercial loans:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)

Average balance of impaired commercial loans:

Real estate, iNCIUdIng CONSIIUCTION. ......c.eiieriirieiieiesieeiett et et et te st eae e essessaessessaessesssensesssenseens $ 4 107
Business and corporate banking 333 262
GlODAL DANKING ..ottt ettt ettt et e et e e s st et e e st e st eneenseeneesseeneenseennenneens 607 139
Other COMIMETICIAL.........eciiiiiiiiieiiieee ettt 7 7
Total average balance of impaired commercial 10ans.............cccccveeieriieieriieiene e $ 9291 § 515
Interest income recognized on impaired commercial loans: -

Real estate, iNCIUdIng CONSIIUCTION. .......eiieriiiieiieieieeieste ettt et etesteeaeseeesseseaessesssessesssessesssensenns $ — $ 1
Business and corporate DANKING ...........ccueoerieieieieietieieeie ettt ettt ae bt seen 4

Total interest income recognized on impaired commercial 10ans...........coccoeeeevireieiineninereeeee $ 4 3 3

22



HSBC USA Inc.

Commercial Loan Credit Quality Indicators The following credit quality indicators are monitored for our commercial loan
portfolio:

Criticized loans Criticized loan classifications presented in the table below are determined by the assignment of various criticized
facility grades based on the risk rating standards of our regulator. The following table summarizes criticized commercial loans:

Special Mention  Substandard Doubtful Total
(in millions)

At March 31, 2017

Real estate, including coONStruction ..........ccocceeverveeeieneecieneeieeeeeenes $ 423 $ 9% $ 6 $ 525
Business and corporate banking............ccoccevereeninieniinienieencee 588 789 37 1,414
Global DANKING.......eoeririiiiriiieteteeet ettt 749 2,527 250 3,526
Other cOmMMETCIal........cceeeiiiiiieeieeiiereee e — 6 1 7
Total COMMETCIAL ......ccveueieiiiiiirieieieeee e $ 1,760 $ 3,418 $ 294§ 5,472
At December 31, 2016 -
Real estate, including CONStrUCHION ......c.ecuveveereeeriieieieeecee e $ 445 $ 152 $ 1 $ 598
Business and corporate banking...........c.ccoeeeeeeeirerinienienenenenenenen 597 803 58 1,458
Global banking...........ccooveiriiiniiiiieeeecece e 899 2,478 298 3,675
Other COMMETCIAL.......c.ecieriieieirieie et e — 6 1 7
Total coMMEICial ........cceevuiiiiieiieciiecieee e $ 1,941 $ 3439 § 358 $ 5,738

Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of our commercial loan portfolio, excluding loans held for sale:

Accruing Loans

Performing Nonaccrual Contractually Past
Loans Loans Due 90 days or More Total
(in millions)

At March 31, 2017

Real estate, including construction..........cccceeceeveereieereeneennnne $ 10,749 $ 53 § — 3 10,802
Business and corporate banking ............cccceceverenenienieniecenenne, 12,943 208 1 13,152
Global banking ..........cceceeeeiiirienieiee et 22,037 490 — 22,527
Other commercial ........c..ccevieiririnininene e 3,514 1 — 3,515
Total commercial...........ccceeveiieiiiiieieeee e $ 49243 § 752§ 1 $ 49,99
At December 31, 2016

Real estate, including construction..........cccccecevererenrienennnne $ 10,834 § 56 $ — 3 10,890
Business and corporate banking .............ccoecveeverieeierennieneennnne 13,892 187 1 14,080
Global banking .........c.ceceveeiinieniiiieeeeeeee e 22,935 546 — 23,481
Other cOmMMETCIal ........cccvrvieiieiieiieiee e 5,764 1 — 5,765
Total cOMMETCIAL.......coovviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 53,425 $ 790 $ 1 9 54,216
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Credit risk profile The following table shows the credit risk profile of our commercial loan portfolio:

Investment lnvlzsoti;ent
Grade' Grade Total
(in millions)

At March 31, 2017
Real estate, including CONSIIUCTION........ceueiuiiuiriiiriirerie et $ 7,787 $ 3,015 $ 10,802
Business and corporate Danking ............cecceceeeeererinenenenienienieneeeeteeeeeese e 5,701 7,451 13,152
Global banking ...... 8,521 22,527
Other commercial 1,200 3,515
Total commercial $ 20,187 $ 49,996
At December 31, 2016 -
Real estate, including CONSIIUCTION........cceiiririririirienierteee et $ 7,857 $ 3,033 $ 10,890
Business and corporate Danking ............cccoeierierieieiieiieeseeeee s 6,348 7,732 14,080
GlODAl DANKING .....eevviiieiiieiieiieiett ettt ettt e sttt ea et et et e essesseessesseessesseensesseensensnas 14,205 9,276 23,481
Other COMMETCIAL ......cceiiiiiiiecie et et et beeae e s beeteestaeebeessneenns 4,473 1,292 5,765
Total COMMETCIAL......ccueeiieeieiieiiete ettt ettt be st e bt e b e e te et e eseesbeesaeeseessesseessessaensensnas $ 32,883 $ 21,333 $ 54,216

M Investment grade includes commercial loans with credit ratings of at least BBB- or above or the equivalent based on our internal credit rating system.

Consumer Loan Credit Quality Indicators The following credit quality indicators are utilized for our consumer loan portfolio:

Delinquency The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and as a percent of total

loans and loans held for sale ("delinquency ratio") for our consumer loan portfolio:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Delinquent  Delinquency  Delinquent  Delinquency
Loans Ratio Loans Ratio
(dollars are in millions)
Residential mortgages ™ ...........cooiviieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 434 2.51% $ 765 4.23%
Home equity mort@ages'™™@ ..........c.ooviiiiioeeeeeeeeeeeee e 40 2.98 46 3.26
Credit CardS ...oouevvieieeeriecieeeeete ettt 12 1.86 14 2.03
Other CONSUIMET ........eiuiiiiiiciiietetee ettt 10 2.20 11 243
TOtal CONSUMET.......eiiiiiirieieiiiintet ettt ettt $ 496 251% $ 836 4.05%

M At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, consumer mortgage loan delinquency includes $395 million and $711 million, respectively, of loans that are
carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell, including $41 million and $358 million, respectively, relating to loans

held for sale.

@ AtMarch 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, consumer mortgage loans and loans held for sale include $241 million and $474 million, respectively, of loans

that were in the process of foreclosure.
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Nonperforming The following table summarizes the status of our consumer loan portfolio, excluding loans held for sale:

Accruing Loans
Performing Nonaccrual Contractually Past
Loans Loans Due 90 days or More Total

(in millions)

At March 31, 2017

Residential mOTtZages ......ccceevvieriienieeriieiieeee et $ 16,773 $ 446 $ — $ 17,219
Home equity MOTtZages ........cocevveruereriinrenienienieieeeeeeeeeeeieeienes 1,273 71 — 1,344
CIEIt CATAS ...vvviiieeeee e 637 — 9 646
Other CONSUIMET .....eevieiieeiieieeeieiieteie ettt ee e eesseeeesseennens 376 — 7 383
TOtAl COMSUIMET ...t eaeaeas $ 19,059 $ 517 $ 16 $ 19,592
At December 31, 2016 - -
Residential MOTtZAZES ........oveveveririerereeiirieieieieierereseeeseseseeseaesenas $ 16,746 $ 435 § — $ 17,181
Home equity MOItZages .......cccverueeierieeienieeiere e 1,333 75 — 1,408
Credit CArdS ....vivveeieieieiecieieeeete ettt ettt e e saeennens 678 — 10 688
Other CONSUIMET .....vieuviiiiieiieeiieeieeete et e ereereesbeereeseaeebeesaneenseas 375 — 7 382
TOtAl CONSUMET .....euveeeeenietinietieetetereeie ettt se e ss e eeene $ 19,132 $ 510 $ 17 $ 19,659

Troubled debt restructurings See discussion of impaired loans above for further details on this credit quality indicator.

Concentration of Credit Risk At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, our loan portfolios included interest-only residential
mortgage and home equity mortgage loans totaling $3,594 million and $3,589 million, respectively. An interest-only residential
mortgage loan allows a customer to pay the interest-only portion of the monthly payment for a period of time which results in
lower payments during the initial loan period. However, subsequent events affecting a customer's financial position could affect
the ability of customers to repay the loan in the future when the principal payments are required which increases the credit risk of
this loan type.
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5. Allowance for Credit Losses

The following table summarizes the changes in the allowance for credit losses by product and the related loan balance by product
during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016:

Commercial Consumer
Business
Real Estate, and Home
including Corporate Global Other Residential Equity Credit Other
Construction  Banking® Banking" Comm'l Mortgages  Mortgages Cards Consumer Total

(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017

Allowance for credit losses — beginning

Of PEriod....c.cevveueuiririeiirieecreeee $ 92 S 317  $ 508 $ 13 § 26 $ 20 §$ 34 § 7 $ 1,017
Provision charged (credited) to income..... 1 42) 39) 2 — ?2) 3 — 77
Charge-offS.....cccovveeeiirieeereeeeene (0)) 21 — — A3) ?2) 3) 1) (36)
RECOVETIES ... — 12 1 — 1 1 2 — 17
Net (charge-offs) recoveries............c....... a) ) 1 — ?2) ) (6) 1) 19)
Allowance for credit losses — end of
PEHOd o $ 92 $ 26 $ 470 $ 15§ 24§ 17 $ 31 § 6 $ 921
Ending balance: collectively evaluated -
for impairment ..........ccoeveverneeerenneene $ 86 § 230§ 247 $ 14 $ 16 $ 16 $ 30 § 6 $ 645
Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment .............ccceeeeveeeeieeennne 6 36 223 1 8 1 1 — 276
Total allowance for credit losses............... $ 9 S 266 $ 470 $ 15 S 24 $ 17 $ 31 $ 6 $ 921
Loans:
Collectively evaluated for impairment®... § 10,758 $ 12,828 $ 21,974 $ 3,508 $ 16,181 $ 1271 $ 642 $ 383 $67,545
Individually evaluated for impairment™ .. 44 324 553 7 57 4 4 — 993

Loans carried at lower of amortized cost

or fair value less cost to sell — — — — 981 69 — — 1,050
Total 10ans ...c.ovvveveeiiiiciiicene $ 10,802 $ 13,152 § 22,527 $§ 3,515 $§ 17,219 $§ 1344 § 646 $ 383  $69,588
Three Months Ended March 31, 2016
Allowance for credit losses — beginning

Of PEriod......cccoveveueninieieircirccee $ 86 $ 407 $ 267 $ 19 $ 68 $ 24§ 32 % 9 § 912
Provision charged (credited) to income..... 9 47 197 3) ) 3 5 2 157

Charge-offs.......ccoveevnncinrcccene — (28) (7) — 9) 3) ®) 1) (56)
RECOVETIES ..o — 2 — — 5 1 2 — 10
Net (charge-offs) recoveries.........coceueun... — (26) (@) — 4) 2) (6) (1) (46)

Allowance for credit losses — end of

PEIIOA ...ttt $ 95 $ 334§ 457 § 16 $ 55§ 25§ 31§ 10§ 1,023
Ending balance: collectively evaluated -

for Impairment ... $ 94 $ 251 $§ 285 § 15 °$ 25 % 24 $ 30 $ 10 $ 734
Ending balance: individually evaluated

for impairment .............ccccceeveveeeerenennne. 1 83 172 1 30 1 1 — 289
Total allowance for credit losses $ 95 §$ 334§ 457  $ 16 $ 55§ 25§ 31 $ 10 $ 1,023
Loans:

Collectively evaluated for impairment® ... §$ 10,067 $ 14364 § 28,304 §$ 8,164 $ 16244 § 1467 $ 655 $ 395 $79,660
Individually evaluated for impairment™ ... 103 306 297 7 191 5 5 — 914
Loans carried at lower of amortized cost

or fair value less cost to sell.................. — — — — 1,086 72 — — 1,158

Total 10anS ....ovvieiiiiciciciiie $ 10,170 $ 14,670 $ 28,601 $ 8,171 $ 17,521 § 1,544 § 660 $ 395 $81,732

M During the fourth quarter of 2016, we transferred certain client relationships from CMB to GB&M as discussed further in Note 13, "Business Segments."

As a result, we reclassified $4.7 billion of loans and $28 million of allowance for credit losses from business and corporate banking to global banking at
March 31, 2016 to conform with the current year presentation.

26



HSBC USA Inc.

@ During the first quarter of 2017, in conjunction with the creation of the new Corporate Center segment as discussed further in Note 13, "Business Segments,"
we reclassified loans to HSBC affiliates from global banking to other commercial and revised the prior period to conform with the current year presentation.
As a result, other commercial includes loans to HSBC affiliates totaling $939 million and $5,107 million at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, for
which we do not carry an associated allowance for credit losses.

®  For consumer loans and certain small business loans, these amounts represent TDR Loans for which we evaluate reserves using a discounted cash flow
methodology. Each loan is individually identified as a TDR Loan and then grouped together with other TDR Loans with similar characteristics. The discounted
cash flow analysis is then applied to these groups of TDR Loans. Loans individually evaluated for impairment exclude TDR Loans that are carried at the
lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell which totaled $681 million and $771 million at March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

6. Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Commercial loans:

Real estate, INClUdING CONSIIUCTION. ...c..euveieieieiieieiceteete ettt $ — 3 17
Business and corporate DAnKINg ...........ccooiererieieiiee ettt 5 —
G1ODAL DANKING ...ttt ettt ettt st b e sttt e e ettt e st eae e st ebeebeenes 632 827
TOtal COMMETCIAL. ... .eetieieiieiiete ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et et eseeeeeeneesesseesesneenseennens 637 844
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTEZAZES ......verveeuieetieieeii ettt ettt e et et e s et et e sneesesseeneeseenseennens 99 890
Home equity mortgages — 4
(0131 a1 ¢707 113 1111 1<) SRS 70 71
TOtal CONSUMET ....c..eiiieiiiiiiie e 169 965
Total 10ans NEld fOr SAIE .......eiciiiiiicieee ettt ve et e s beesaeesabe e sseesseenees $ 806 $ 1,809

Commercial Loans Commercial loans held for sale primarily consists of certain global banking loans that we have elected to
designate under the fair value option which include loans that we originate in connection with our participation in a number of
syndicated credit facilities with the intent of selling them to unaffiliated third parties as well as loans that we purchase from the
secondary market and hold as hedges against our exposure to certain total return swaps. The fair value of these loans totaled $507
million and $725 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. See Note 9, "Fair Value Option," for additional
information.

Commercial loans held for sale also includes certain loans that we no longer intend to hold for investment and transferred to held
for sale which totaled $130 million and $102 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. During the three
months ended March 31,2017 and 2016, we recorded lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments associated with the write-
down of commercial loans held for sale of $1 million and $26 million, respectively, as a component of other income (loss) in the
consolidated statement of income.

Consumer Loans As previously disclosed, during the first quarter of 2016, we determined we no longer have the intent to hold
for investment certain residential mortgage loans which had been written down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the
collateral less cost to sell (generally 180 days past due) in accordance with our existing charge-off policies. These loans were
largely originated by us prior to the implementation of our Premier strategy. As a result of this decision, during 2016, we transferred
residential mortgage loans to held for sale with a total unpaid principal balance of approximately $568 million at the time of
transfer. The carrying value of these loans prior to transfer, after considering the fair value of the property less costs to sell, was
approximately $473 million, including related escrow advances. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, we recorded an
initial lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment of $33 million associated with these loans transferred to held for sale, all
of which was attributed to non-credit factors and recorded as a component of other income (loss) in the consolidated statement of
income.

In March 2017, we completed the sale of these residential mortgage loans which had an unpaid principal balance of $364 million
(aggregate carrying value of $276 million) at the time of sale to a third party and recognized a loss on sale of approximately $2
million, largely reflecting transaction costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we reversed $5 million of the lower
of amortized cost or fair value adjustment previously recorded on these loans as a component of other income (loss) in the
consolidated statement of income as a result of an increase in fair value due to improved pricing.
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In addition to the residential mortgage loans discussed above, during the third quarter of 2016, we determined we no longer have
the intent to hold for investment a portfolio of residential mortgage loans that we previously purchased from HSBC Finance
Corporation ("HSBC Finance"), along with any home equity mortgage balances associated with these loans. As a result of this
decision, during the third quarter of 2016, we transferred residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans to held for sale
with a total unpaid principal balance of approximately $648 million at the time of transfer. The carrying value of these loans prior
to transfer, after considering the fair value of the property less costs to sell, as applicable, was approximately $628 million, including
accrued interest.

During the first quarter of 2017, we sold a portion of this portfolio of residential mortgage loans which had an unpaid principal
balance of $471 million (aggregate carrying value of $445 million) at the time of sale to a third party and recognized a gain on
sale of approximately $43 million, including transaction costs. At March 31, 2017, the carrying amount of the remaining loans in
this held for sale portfolio totaled $93 million. During the three months ended March 31,2017, we recorded $1 million of additional
lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on this portfolio of loans as a component of other income (loss) in the consolidated
statement of income as a result of changes in the pricing of the portion of loans which were sold and in the estimated pricing on
the remaining loans which were not sold. As we plan to sell the remaining loans to third party investors, fair value represents the
price we believe a third party investor would pay to acquire the loans.

We also continue to sell all our agency eligible residential mortgage loan originations servicing released directly to PHH Mortgage
Corporation ("PHH Mortgage"). Gains and losses from the sale of these residential mortgage loans are reflected as a component
of residential mortgage banking revenue (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statement of income. Residential mortgage
loans held for sale also includes subprime residential mortgage loans with a fair value of $2 million and $3 million at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, which were previously acquired from unaffiliated third parties and from HSBC Finance
with the intent of securitizing or selling the loans to third parties.

Loans held for sale are subject to market risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, in that their value will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market conditions, as well as the credit environment. PHH Mortgage is obligated to purchase agency eligible loans
from us as of the earlier of when the customer locks the mortgage loan pricing or when the mortgage loan application is approved.
As such, we retain none of the risk of market changes in mortgage rates for these loans purchased by PHH Mortgage.

Other consumer loans held for sale reflects student loans which we no longer originate.

Valuation Allowances Excluding the commercial loans designated under fair value option discussed above, loans held for sale are
recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair value, with adjustments to fair value being recorded as a valuation allowance through
other revenues. The valuation allowance on consumer loans held for sale was $10 million and $57 million at March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectively. The valuation allowance on commercial loans held for sale was $58 million and $55 million at
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

7.  Goodwill

Goodwill was $1,612 million at both March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. Included in goodwill for these periods were
accumulated impairment losses of $670 million. During the first quarter of 2017, there were no events or changes in circumstances
to indicate that it is more likely than not the fair values of any of our reporting units have reduced below their respective carrying
amounts.
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8. Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the derivative instruments entered into are for trading, market making and risk management
purposes. For financial reporting purposes, derivative instruments are designated in one of the following categories: (a) hedging
instruments designated as qualifying hedges under derivative and hedge accounting principles, (b) financial instruments held for
trading or (c) non-qualifying economic hedges. The derivative instruments held are predominantly swaps, futures, options and
forward contracts. All derivatives are stated at fair value. Where we enter into enforceable master netting agreements with
counterparties, the master netting agreements permit us to net those derivative asset and liability positions and to offset cash
collateral held and posted with the same counterparty.

The following table presents the fair value of derivative contracts by major product type on a gross basis. Gross fair values exclude
the effects of both counterparty netting as well as collateral, and therefore are not representative of our exposure. The table below
presents the amounts of counterparty netting and cash collateral that have been offset in the consolidated balance sheet, as well as
cash and securities collateral posted and received under enforceable master netting agreements that do not meet the criteria for
netting. Derivative assets and liabilities which are not subject to an enforceable master netting agreement, or are subject to a netting
agreement where an appropriate legal opinion to determine such agreements are enforceable has not been either sought or obtained,
have not been netted in the table below. Where we have received or posted collateral under netting agreements where an appropriate
legal opinion to determine such agreements are enforceable has not been either sought or obtained, the related collateral also has
not been netted in the table below.
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March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
(in millions)
Derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges”
OTC-CLeared® ... 167 $ 314§ 142§ 341
— 183 — 196
167 497 142 537
Derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges""

Foreign exchange contracts - bilateral OTC® ... 1 12 —
OTC-CIEArEA ..........oooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 65 6 57
Bilateral OTC® ...ttt — 87 — 94

Interest rate COMIACES ..............ceiiiiiiiiiiriiiiec ettt ettt 3 152 6 151

Total derivatives accounted for as hedges....................cccocooveiiiiniiiiiiiicceceee e 174 650 160 688
Trading derivatives not accounted for as hedges®
EXChANEE-ATAACAD ... e ee e ee e s eees e s s e eereese e 43 95 35 84
OTC-CLeared® ... 8,945 7,965 15,248 14,189
Bilateral OTC® ...ttt 14,360 15,373 16,045 17,480

INterest rate COMITACES ................ocoiiiiiieii ettt eaeeeaee e 23,348 23,433 31,328 31,753
EXChan@e-traded® .............oooeceeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeee e eee e eeeee e s e s s 37 7 24 6
Bilateral OTC®) .........oooivvvoooeeesecoeoeeeseessosesse s 18,697 17,529 24,020 22,645

Foreign exchange CONtracts ...................c.ccooooviiiiiiiiciieeeeececeeeee et 18,734 17,536 24,044 22,651

Equity contracts - bilateral OTC® 1,774 1,768 1,658 1,653
Exchange-traded(2> ...................... 43 29 81 13
Bilateral OTC® .......ooooooiiiiiieieseeseeseesessssseesess sttt 439 710 1,038 867

Precious Metals COMEIACES...................ocoiiuiiiiiiiie ettt e 482 739 1,119 880
OTC-ClEArEd® ... 169 226 227 289
Bilateral OTC® ...........ovvveeooeceveeeoess oo sssssss s 1,080 856 1,291 1,076

Credit COMEIACES ...........ooiiii e 1,249 1,082 1,518 1,365

Other derivatives not accounted for as hedges'"
OTC-CLeared® ...t 270 38 287 41
Bilateral OTC® .......ooouuuoiieeeeeeceeeeeeessss e ssesesssssss s 420 168 437 170

Interest rate COMIACES ..............ccoiiiiiiiiieieii ettt ettt 690 206 724 211

Foreign exchange contracts - bilateral OTC® ... — 19 — 31

Equity contracts - bilateral OTC oo 876 170 672 222

Credit contracts - bilateral OTC® __..........cccoooooiirvvvvvvooooieeeeeeeeeeeeeseeesese s 3 4 32 4

Other contracts - bilateral OTC®® 6 32 5 14

Total derivatives 47,336 45,639 61,260 59,472
Less: Gross amounts of receivable / payable subject to enforceable master netting

agreements 38,532 38,532 51,111 51,111
Less: Gross amounts of cash collateral received / posted subject to enforceable master

netting agreements®” ... 4,754 3,185 5,145 3,826
Net amounts of derivative assets / liabilities presented in the balance sheet ..................... 4,050 3,922 5,004 4,535
Less: Gross amounts of financial instrument collateral received / posted subject to

enforceable master netting agreements but not offset in the consolidated balance

SHEEL ...ttt 698 608 787 1,050
Net amounts of derivative assets / liabilities 3,352 § 3314 §$ 4217 $ 3,485

Derivative assets / liabilities related to cash flow hedges, fair value hedges and derivative instruments held for purposes other than for trading are recorded

Over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives include derivatives executed and settled bilaterally with counterparties without the use of an organized exchange or

central clearing house. The credit risk associated with bilateral OTC derivatives is managed through master netting agreements and obtaining collateral.
OTC-cleared derivatives are executed bilaterally in the OTC market but then novated to a central clearing counterparty, whereby the central clearing
counterparty becomes the counterparty to both of the original counterparties. Exchange traded derivatives are executed directly on an organized exchange
that provides pre-trade price transparency. Credit risk is minimized for OTC-cleared derivatives and exchange traded derivatives through daily margining

[0)]

in other assets / interest, taxes and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.
@)

required by central clearing counterparties.
3)
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@ Consists of swap agreements entered into in conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Inc. ("Visa") Class B common shares ("Class B Shares™).
®  Represents the netting of derivative receivable and payable balances for the same counterparty under enforceable netting agreements.
©®  Represents the netting of cash collateral posted and received by counterparty under enforceable netting agreements.

(™ Netting is performed at a counterparty level in cases where enforceable master netting agreements are in place, regardless of the type of derivative instrument.
Therefore, we have not attempted to allocate netting to the different types of derivative instruments shown in the table above.

See Note 16, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Repurchase Agreements," for further information on offsetting related
to resale and repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending arrangements.

Derivatives Held for Risk Management Purposes Our risk management policy requires us to identify, analyze and manage risks
arising from the activities conducted during the normal course of business. We use derivative instruments as an asset and liability
management tool to manage our exposures in interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks in existing assets and liabilities,
commitments and forecasted transactions. The accounting for changes in fair value of a derivative instrument will depend on
whether the derivative has been designated and qualifies for hedge accounting.

We designate derivative instruments to offset the fair value risk and cash flow risk arising from fixed-rate and floating-rate assets
and liabilities as well as forecasted transactions. We assess the hedging relationships, both at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, using a regression approach to determine whether the designated hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting
changes in the fair value or the cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Accounting principles for qualifying hedges require us
to prepare detailed documentation describing the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, including, but
not limited to, the risk management objective, the hedging strategy and the methods to assess and measure the ineffectiveness of
the hedging relationship. We discontinue hedge accounting when we determine that the hedge is no longer highly effective, the
hedging instrument is terminated, sold or expired, the designated forecasted transaction is not probable of occurring, or when the
designation is removed by us.

Fair Value Hedges In the normal course of business, we hold fixed-rate loans and securities and issue fixed-rate senior and
subordinated debt obligations. The fair value of fixed-rate (U.S. dollar and non-U.S. dollar denominated) assets and liabilities
fluctuates in response to changes in interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates. We utilize interest rate swaps, forward and
futures contracts and foreign currency swaps to minimize the effect on earnings caused by interest rate and foreign currency
volatility. The changes in the fair value of the hedged item designated in a qualifying hedge are captured as an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the hedged item (basis adjustment). If the hedging relationship is terminated and the hedged item continues to
exist, the basis adjustment is amortized over the remaining life of the hedged item.

We recorded basis adjustments for active fair value hedges which decreased the carrying amount of our debt by $117 million and
$104 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016,
we amortized $2 million and $2 million, respectively, of basis adjustments related to terminated and/or re-designated fair value
hedges of our debt. The total accumulated unamortized basis adjustments related to terminated and-or re-designated fair value
hedges amounted to increases in the carrying amount of our debt of $10 million and $12 million at March 31,2017 and December 31,
2016, respectively.

We recorded basis adjustments for active fair value hedges of available-for-sale ("AFS") securities which increased the carrying
amount of the securities by $183 million and $258 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.
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The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as hedging
instruments in fair value hedges and the hedged items in fair value hedges and their location on the consolidated statement of
income:

Net Ineffective
Gain (Loss)
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Items Recognized
Interest Income Other Income Interest Income Other Income Other Income
(Expense) (Loss) (Expense) (Loss) (Loss)
(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017
Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ 31 $ 86 $ 89 $ @83 $ 3
Interest rate contracts/long-term debt ................ 8 (13) (66) 14
0] 7Y R $ 23) $ 73 S 23 $ 69 $ 4
Three Months Ended March 31, 2016
Interest rate contracts/AFS Securities................ $ 48) $ (656) $ 93 3 626 $ (30)
Interest rate contracts/long-term debt ................ 8 66 (30) (65) 1
L DO $ (40) $ (590) $ 63 $ 561 $ (29)

Cash Flow Hedges We own or issue floating rate financial instruments and enter into forecasted transactions that give rise to
variability in future cash flows. As a part of our risk management strategy, we use interest rate swaps, currency swaps and futures
contracts to mitigate risk associated with variability in the cash flows. Changes in fair value of a derivative instrument associated
with the effective portion of a qualifying cash flow hedge are recognized initially in other comprehensive income. When the cash
flows being hedged materialize and are recorded in income or expense, the associated gain or loss from the hedging derivative
previously recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss ("AOCI") is reclassified into earnings in the same accounting period
in which the designated forecasted transaction or hedged item affects earnings. If a cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction is
de-designated because it is no longer highly effective, or if the hedge relationship is terminated, the cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging derivative to that date will continue to be reported in AOCI unless it is probable that the hedged forecasted transaction
will not occur by the end of the originally specified time period as documented at the inception of the hedge, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is released into earnings.

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, active cash flow hedge relationships extend or mature through July 2036. During the
three months ended March 31,2017, $3 million of losses related to terminated and/or re-designated cash flow hedge relationships
were amortized to earnings from AOCI compared with losses of $4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016. During
the next twelve months, we expect to amortize $11 million of remaining losses to earnings resulting from these terminated and/
or re-designated cash flow hedges. The interest accrual related to the hedging instruments is recognized in interest income.

The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges (including amounts recognized in AOCI from all terminated cash flow hedges) and their locations
on the consolidated statement of income:

Gain (Loss)

Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) . . Recognized
Recognized . Reclassed Location of Gain in Income
in AOCI on Logatlon of From AOCI (Los's) Recognized on the
Derivative Gain (Loss) into Income in Income Derivative
(Effective Reclassified (Effective on the Derivative (Ineffective
Portion) from AOCI Portion) (Ineffective Portion and Portion)

into Income Amount Excluded from —0 oA—
2017 2016 (Effective Portion) 2017 2016 Effectiveness Testing) 2017 2016

(in millions)

Three Months Ended March 31,

Interest income
Interest rate contracts.............. $ (@ $ (76) (expense) $ (3) $ (4) Otherincome (loss)

$
Total..ccoveeireircincircieene $ (2 § (76) $ (3 “) $ —
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Trading Derivatives and Non-Qualifying Hedging Activities In addition to risk management, we enter into derivative instruments,
including buy- and sell-protection credit derivatives, for trading and market making purposes, to repackage risks and structure
trades to facilitate clients' needs for various risk taking and risk modification purposes. We manage our risk exposure by entering
into offsetting derivatives with other financial institutions to mitigate the market risks, in part or in full, arising from our trading
activities with our clients. In addition, we also enter into buy-protection credit derivatives with other market participants to manage
our counterparty credit risk exposure. Where we enter into derivatives for trading purposes, realized and unrealized gains and
losses are recognized in trading revenue. Prior to the sale of our remaining Mortgage Servicing Rights ("MSRs") portfolio during
the fourth quarter of 2016, we used forward purchases or sales of to-be-announced ("TBA") securities to economically hedge our
MSRs. Changes in the fair value of TBA positions, which were considered derivatives, were recorded in residential mortgage
banking revenue (expense). Credit losses arising from counterparty risk on over-the-counter derivative instruments and offsetting
buy protection credit derivative positions are recognized as an adjustment to the fair value of the derivatives and are recorded in
trading revenue.

Our non-qualifying hedging and other activities include:

»  Derivative contracts related to the fixed-rate long-term debt issuances and hybrid instruments, including all structured
notes and deposits, for which we have elected fair value option accounting. These derivative contracts are non-qualifying
hedges but are considered economic hedges.

*  Credit default swaps which are designated as economic hedges against the credit risks within our loan portfolio. In the
event of an impairment loss occurring in a loan that is economically hedged, the impairment loss is recognized as provision
for credit losses while the gain on the credit default swap is recorded as other income.

»  Swap agreements entered into in conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Class B Shares to a third party to retain the
litigation risk associated with the Class B Shares sold until the related litigation is settled and the Class B Shares can be
converted into Class A common shares ("Class A Shares"). See Note 16, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and
Repurchase Agreements," for additional information.

Derivative instruments designated as economic hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recorded at fair value through
profit and loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on economic hedges are recognized in gain on instruments designated at
fair value and related derivatives, other income (loss) or residential mortgage banking revenue (expense) while the derivative asset
or liability positions are reflected as other assets or other liabilities.

The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments held for trading purposes and their locations
on the consolidated statement of income:

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income on
Derivatives

Location of Gain (Loss) Three Months Ended March 31,

Recognized in Income on Derivatives 2017 2016

(in millions)

Interest rate contracts.........coecveeeveerieeeveeneen. Trading revenue $ 20) $ (277)
Interest rate CONtracts........ccovveerveereeeruennnes Residential mortgage banking revenue (expense) — 32
Foreign exchange contracts ..............coceenee.. Trading revenue 57 97
Equity cONtracts .........ccceeeeeeeeveenererieeenenens Trading revenue 1 —
Precious metals contracts ..............ccccocceueee. Trading revenue 60 —
Credit CONIactS.......ccevveerveeeererrreeereiereneenes Trading revenue — 37)
Total....ocooiiiiiiii $ 16) $ (185)
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The following table presents information on gains and losses on derivative instruments held for non-qualifying hedging and other
activities and their locations on the consolidated statement of income:

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income on
Derivatives

Location of Gain (Loss) Three Months Ended March 31,
Recognized in Income on Derivatives 2017 2016

(in millions)

Interest rate contracts.........ccoceeeveeneenucenneene Gain on instruments designated at fair value and

related derivatives $ 3 8 214
Foreign exchange contracts.............cccueenuee. Gain on instruments designated at fair value and

related derivatives 9 12
Equity contracts ........cccoeeeveecenencenceeenen. Gain on instruments designated at fair value and

related derivatives 360 (49)
Credit contracts........coecveeeeereeeeeneeieseeeenens Other income (loss) 32) 12)
TOtal .o $ 340 $ 165

Credit-Risk Related Contingent Features We enter into total return swap, interest rate swap, cross-currency swap and credit
default swap contracts, amongst others, which contain provisions that require us to maintain a specific credit rating from each of
the major credit rating agencies. Sometimes the derivative instrument transactions are a part of broader structured product
transactions. If our credit ratings were to fall below the current ratings, the counterparties to our derivative instruments could
demand us to post additional collateral. The amount of additional collateral required to be posted will depend on whether we are
downgraded by one or more notches. The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk related contingent
features that were in a liability position at March 31, 2017 was $860 million, for which we had posted collateral of $567 million.
The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that were in a liability position
at December 31, 2016 was $586 million, for which we had posted collateral of $581 million. Substantially all of the collateral
posted is in the form of cash or securities available-for-sale. See Note 16, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Repurchase
Agreements," for further details.

The following table presents the amount of additional collateral that we would be required to post (from the current collateral
level) related to derivative instruments with credit-risk related contingent features if our long term ratings were downgraded by
one or two notches. A downgrade by a single rating agency that does not result in a rating lower than a preexisting corresponding
rating provided by another rating agency will generally not result in additional collateral.

One-notch Two-notch
downgrade downgrade

(in millions)

Amount of additional collateral to be posted upon downgrade ............cccecvecvecerrereniencnenieniennens $ 48 % 48
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Notional Value of Derivative Contracts The following table summarizes the notional values of derivative contracts:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

(in millions)

Interest rate:

Futures and fOrWardS............ooouiiiuiiiiiiiii ettt s e enae s $ 353,125 § 501,635
SWADS .veeuveereeriertertietesteetesteete st etesseestesseessesseessasseesseeseesseeseesseeseesseeseesseeseebeesaeseessereas 2,090,495 2,142,183
OPHIONS WITEEETI....e.etieitietieie et ettt sttt st e e st e bt e e e st et e st et e eseeeseeneesneeneeeees 64,531 74,741
OptioNS PUICRASEA ......ovieieiieieiieiee ettt et se s e eneeneeenas 82,923 87,020
2,591,074 2,805,579
Foreign exchange:

Swaps, futures and fOrwards ...........ccoeeeririerieeceeeeeee e 1,172,134 965,301
OPHONS WITEETI....evvivietieiietieeieeteeteeteete e etesteeseseeessesseessesssesseessesseessesseessesseensesseensenses 28,500 52,845
Options PUICRASEA ......cuiieieiieiieie et 28,801 53,260
610 USRS 48,522 34,565
1,277,957 1,105,971

Commodities, equities and precious metals:
Swaps, futures and fOrwards ...........ccoeceririeiireeeeeee e 49,595 49,555
OPHONS WITEETI . .euvivierieeietieeieteeeeeteete e etesteeaeseeesbesseessesssessesssesseesseseessesseessesseensenses 18,853 19,495
Options PUICRASEA ......cuiieieiieiieit et 30,623 30,632
99,071 99,682
CIEAIt AEIIVALIVES ....vveeieiieeceeie et eee et e e et eeae e e e eaaeeeeaaeeestaeesnneessenneessneeeans 119,537 123,714
Oher COMIIACTS ™ ... e e e e eeane 380 184
1] 1 TR PP $ 4,088,019 $ 4,135,130

M Consists of swap agreements entered into in conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Class B Shares.
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9. Fair Value Option

We report our results to HSBC in accordance with HSBC Group accounting and reporting policies ("Group Reporting Basis"),
which apply International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and as endorsed by the European Union ("EU"). We typically have elected to apply fair value option ("FVO") accounting
to selected financial instruments to align the measurement attributes of those instruments under U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting
Basis and to simplify the accounting model applied to those financial instruments. We elected to apply FVO accounting to certain
commercial loans held for sale, certain securities sold under repurchase agreements, certain fixed-rate long-term debt issuances
and all of our hybrid instruments, including structured notes and deposits. Prior to January 1, 2017, changes in the fair value of
these assets and liabilities, including changes in fair value related to interest rate, credit and other risks, as well as the mark-to-
market adjustment on the related derivatives and the net realized gains or losses on these derivatives are reported in gain on
instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives in the consolidated statement of income. As discussed more fully in
Note 19, "New Accounting Pronouncements," beginning January 1, 2017, the fair value movement on fair value option liabilities
attributable to credit spread is recorded in other comprehensive income.

Loans We elected to apply FVO accounting to certain commercial syndicated loans which are originated with the intent to sell
and certain commercial loans that we purchased from the secondary market and hold as hedges against our exposure to certain
total return swaps and include these loans as loans held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet. The election allows us to account
for these loans at fair value which is consistent with the manner in which the instruments are managed. Where available, fair value
is based on observable market consensus pricing obtained from independent sources, relevant broker quotes or observed market
prices of instruments with similar characteristics. Where observable market parameters are not available, fair value is determined
based on contractual cash flows adjusted for estimates of prepayment rates, expected default rates and loss severity discounted at
management's estimate of the expected rate of return required by market participants. We also consider loan specific risk mitigating
factors such as collateral arrangements in determining the fair value estimate. Interest from these loans is recorded as interest
income in the consolidated statement of income. Because a substantial majority of the loans elected for the fair value option are
floating rate assets, changes in their fair value are primarily attributable to changes in loan-specific credit risk factors. The
components of gain (loss) related to loans designated at fair value are summarized in the table below. At March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, no loans for which the fair value option has been elected were 90 days or more past due or in nonaccrual
status.

Resale and Repurchase Agreements We elected to apply FVO accounting to certain securities purchased and sold under resale
and repurchase agreements which are trading in nature. The election allows us to account for these resale and repurchase agreements
at fair value which is consistent with the manner in which the instruments are managed. The fair value of the resale and repurchase
agreements is determined using market rates currently offered on comparable transactions with similar underlying collateral and
maturities. Interest on these resale and repurchase agreements is recorded as interest income or expense in the consolidated statement
ofincome. The components of gain (loss) related to these resale and repurchase agreements designated at fair value are summarized
in the table below.

Long-Term Debt (Own Debt Issuances) We elected to apply FVO accounting for certain fixed-rate long-term debt for which we
had applied or otherwise would elect to apply fair value hedge accounting. The election allows us to achieve a similar accounting
effect without having to meet the hedge accounting requirements. The own debt issuances elected under FVO are traded in secondary
markets and, as such, the fair value is determined based on observed prices for the specific instruments. The observed market price
of these instruments reflects the effect of changes to our own credit spreads and interest rates. Interest on the fixed-rate debt
accounted for under FVO is recorded as interest expense in the consolidated statement of income. The components of gain (loss)
in the consolidated statement of income related to long-term debt designated at fair value are summarized in the table below.

Hybrid Instruments We elected to apply FVO accounting to all of our hybrid instruments issued, including structured notes and
deposits. The valuation of the hybrid instruments is predominantly driven by the derivative features embedded within the instruments
and own credit risk. Cash flows of the hybrid instruments in their entirety, including the embedded derivatives, are discounted at
an appropriate rate for the applicable duration of the instrument adjusted for our own credit spreads. The credit spreads applied to
structured notes are determined with reference to our own debt issuance rates observed in the primary and secondary markets,
internal funding rates, and structured note rates in recent executions while the credit spreads applied to structured deposits are
determined using market rates currently offered on comparable deposits with similar characteristics and maturities. Interest on this
debt is recorded as interest expense in the consolidated statement of income. The components of gain (loss) in the consolidated
statement of income related to hybrid instruments designated at fair value are summarized in the table below.
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The following table summarizes the fair value and unpaid principal balance for items we account for under FVO:

Fair Value
over (under)

Unpaid Unpaid
Principal Principal
Fair Value Balance Balance
(in millions)
At March 31, 2017
Commercial loans held for sale...........cccvviiiiiniiinineeeee e 507 $ 513 $ 6)
Securities purchased under resale agreements.............ccoeeeeeereeerieneeeneneeneeceeenes 1,033 1,026 7
Securities sold under repurchase agreements ...........ccoceeevereerierienceeeenenesesenans 3,079 3,077 2
Fixed rate long-term debt...........cooiiiiiieiiee e 2,068 1,750 318
Hybrid instruments:
Sructured dePOSIES .....eueeeireeeie ettt 7,562 7,562 —
SHIUCTUIEA NOTES...c.vieuviieieiieieie ettt ettt et b e te e e e reessesseessesseessesaeessesenas 9,491 8,871 620
At December 31, 2016
Commercial loans held for sale...........cccooiiiiiiiiinineee e 725§ 728 $ 3)
Securities purchased under resale agreements..............cccoeeveencincrnccncncnenne 770 767 3
Securities sold under repurchase agreements ...........ccoeeevereerierienceeeenenesesesene 2,672 2,670 2
Fixed rate long-term debt...........cooiiiiiieiee e 2,012 1,750 262
Hybrid instruments:
Sructured dePOSIES .....evueeeieeieie ettt s 7,526 7,881 (355)
SHIUCTUIEA NOTES...e.vieuiieeieiieitete ettt ettt te e e reessesseessesreessesaeessesenas 8,372 8,067 305
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Components of Gain on Instruments at Fair Value and Related Derivatives The following table summarizes the components
of gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives reflected in the consolidated statement of income for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016:

Securities
Purchased Securities
Under Sold Under
Resale Repurchase Long-Term Hybrid
Loans Agreements Agreements Debt Instruments Total

(in millions)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017

Interest rate and other components™")............. $ — S 6 $ 1S 19 $ 363) $ (337)
Credit risk component® _.............ccccooorneen.. 1)) — — — — 1)
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments
designated at fair value..........cceccevvevnnenen. 4] 6 1 19 (363) (338)
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives....... — — — (24) 381 357
Net realized gain on the related long-term
debt derivatives .........ccceeveeeereeneeieieceeeeee, — — — 15 — 15
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives.........ccceeeeuen.... $ @ s 6 $ 1 S 10 § 18 § 34
Three Months Ended March 31, 2016
Interest rate and other components'’............. $ — 3 53 5 9% (127) $ (34) $ (@151
Credit risk component ...........cceeeevueerueennene. ?3) — — 149 44 190
Total mark-to-market on financial instruments
designated at fair value...........cccooeeiiinnn 3) 5 5 22 10 39
Mark-to-market on the related derivatives....... — — 127 34 161

Net realized gain on the related long-term

debt derivatives ........ccecveeveeieerieieeeeeeenennn. — — 16 — 16
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair
value and related derivatives.......c.c..c.cccc..... $ 3 $ 593 5% 165 § 44 S 216

M As it relates to hybrid instruments, interest rate and other components primarily includes interest rate, foreign exchange and equity contract risks.

@ As discussed more fully in Note 19, "New Accounting Pronouncements," beginning January 1, 2017, the fair value movement on fair value option liabilities

attributable to credit spread is recorded in common equity as a component of other comprehensive income.

38



HSBC USA Inc.

10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes certain items that are reported directly within a separate component of equity.
The following table presents changes in accumulated other comprehensive loss balances:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)

Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities:
Balance at beginning 0f PEIIOQ. ........cooveuiuiriiieiiiriiciie ettt ettt a ettt et sttt a et e e ee $ “461) $ (234)

Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:

Net unrealized gains arising during period, net of tax of $64 million and $173 million, respectively ......c..cccccvveerirercenencrcnnns 106 292
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net of tax of $(2) million and $(11) million, respectively".......... (&) (18)
Amortization of net unrealized losses on securities transferred from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity realized in net
income, net of tax of $3 million and $3 million, respectively(z) ................................................................................................ 4 4
Total other comprehensive iNCOME fOr PETIOM. ........veiiuiriiieiierieieitee ettt sttt s e e seebe st e e esessesaeseesesseneesensensans 107 278
Balance at end Of PEIIOQ........c.oiuiiiiiiiiiiii e (354) 44
Unrealized gains (losses) on fair value option liabilities attributable to credit spread:
Balance at beginning of period, as previously reported — —
Cumulative effect adjustment to initially apply new accounting guidance for financial liabilities measured under the fair value
option, net of tax of $103 million® 174 —
Balance at beginning of period, adjusted 174 —
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Net unrealized losses arising during the period, net of tax of $(46) MIllION.........c.couiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiceeceeeec e (79) —
Total other comprehensive 10ss fOr PETIOd ... (79) —
Balance at €A O PETIOM ........ccueieiriiieetere ettt ettt ettt e st et e st et e e st e s e s en e e s e s e s en et e b en e e Rt es et e Rt e he et enteneete st eneenetenes 95 —
Unrealized losses on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:
Balance at beginning Of PEIIOd..........cciviiiiiiiiiiii s (157) (170)
Other comprehensive income (loss) for period:
Net unrealized losses arising during period, net of tax of less than $(1) million and $(28) million, respectively............cccccuue..e. (6)) (48)
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net of tax of $1 million and $1 million, respectively®................ 2 3
Total other comprehensive income (10SS) fOr PEIIO.........c.ooueueiririiuiririeiiirieicteteete ettt ettt es e nene 1 (45)
Balance at €nd Of PEIIOQ..........viuiiiiiiiiicc e (156) (215)
Pension and postretirement benefit liability:
Balance at beginning and end Of PEIIOA .........e.eirieueuiriiieiiiee ettt b ettt b ettt sttt e bt ee — 3)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of period......................ococoooiii $ 15) $ (174)

M Amount reclassified to net income is included in other securities gains, net in our consolidated statement of income.

@ Amount amortized to net income is included in interest income in our consolidated statement of income. During 2014, we transferred securities from available-
for-sale to held-to-maturity. At the date of transfer, AOCI included net pretax unrealized losses of $234 million related to the transferred securities which
will be amortized over the remaining contractual life of each security as an adjustment of yield in a manner consistent with the amortization of any premium
or discount.

®  See Note 19, "New Accounting Pronouncements," for additional discussion.

(€]

Amount reclassified to net income is included in interest income (expense) in our consolidated statement of income.
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11. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Defined Benefit Pension Plan The table below reflects the portion of pension expense and its related components of the combined
HSBC North America Pension Plan (either the "HSBC North America Pension Plan" or the "Plan") which has been allocated to
us and is recorded in our consolidated statement of income. We have not been allocated any portion of the Plan's net pension
liability.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
Interest cost on projected benefit ObIIGALION ........covevveriiriiieiiiiiirr e $ 18 3 18
Expected return on Plan @SSELS .........cceiviririirerieniiieieeeieret ettt ettt 21) (20)
Amortization 0f Net ACtUATIAL 0SS.......covuiiiiiriiiieiieeeere e 10 10
AdMINISEIATIVE COSES ..vviiiiiiiiiiiiiitietiie sttt ettt et ettt st st et ae e a e n et ene e e et eueebe b 1 1
PENSION EXPEIISE. ... ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt es et e bbbt besb e bt e b bt b et et et e st et ebe e bt ebe bt ebeebes $ 8 3 9

Postretirement Plans Other Than Pensions Our employees also participate in plans which provide medical and life insurance
benefits to retirees and eligible dependents. These plans cover substantially all employees who meet certain age and vested service

requirements. We have instituted dollar limits on payments under the plans to control the cost of future medical benefits. The
following table reflects the components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
Interest cost on accumulated benefit OblIGAtioN ..........c.eecveriieiirieieeiee e $ 1 $ 1
Net periodic postretirement Benefit COSt........ccuevuiriiriiiiiiiiiiirirere et $ 1 3 1
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12. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, we conduct transactions with HSBC and its subsidiaries. HSBC policy requires that these
transactions occur at prevailing market rates and terms and include funding arrangements, derivative transactions, servicing
arrangements, information technology support, centralized support services, banking and other miscellaneous services and where
applicable, these transactions are compliant with United States banking regulations. All extensions of credit by (and certain credit
exposures of) HSBC Bank USA, National Association ("HSBC Bank USA") to other HSBC affiliates (other than Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insured banks) are legally required to be secured by eligible collateral. The following tables and
discussions below present the more significant related party balances and the income (expense) generated by related party
transactions:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Assets:
Cash and due from DANKS........c.cocvieiiiiiiieiiecie ettt ere e beesaeebeessaeesseessseesseessnennne $ 233 § 364
Interest bearing deposits With DanKS............ccevirieririeiieeee e 797 980
Securities purchased under agreements to reSell!) ..............coooivivieieeeeeeeeee e — 949
TTAQINZ ASSELS ..euvetienieetieie ettt ettt ettt ee et e st e s bt e bt sbte bt sstenbeestesbeestenbeentesbeeneeene 30 74
) QY s LR 939 3,274
OHET™ oottt 388 291
TOLAL ASSELS. ....eeiieeieeieiie ettt et e et e e et e e aa e e e eaaeeeeteeeeaseesanteessteeeenaseeeenaeee e taeeeateeeanreesaraeeans $ 2,387 $ 5,932
Liabilities:
DIEPOSIES ...vviiveeiteeieteeeet ettt ettt ettt ete et te et ete et te et e st et ese et e se b et et e e et et ete s ete et ete et easesete et ereerensereaeane $ 24,026 $ 23,999
TTading HADIIEIES ....ceuveeieneieeieie ettt ettt sttt be et e b estesbeeneeeae 701 510
SHOT-tEIMN DOTTOWINES .....veveeteeiieitieiieettete et et et ettt e et et e seeeneesseentesseentesseenseeseenteeneesseeneesneeneesnes 2,047 2,148
00 ) Y 1< 4 4 <1 o | AU PUSRUPUPSRUP 4,836 4,834
ONET™ oottt 333 247
TOtAL LHADIIIEIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt eete et e ete et e eteeveeaeeeseessesseesseateensesssenseessenreens $ 31,943 $§ 31,738

M Reflects overnight purchases of U.S. Treasury securities which HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. ("HSI") has agreed to repurchase.

@ Other assets and other liabilities primarily consist of derivative balances associated with hedging activities and other miscellaneous account receivables and

payables.
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016
(in millions)

Income/(Expense):

INEETESE INCOMIC ...ttt sttt sttt ettt e b et bbb sae et ae e ennene $ 24§ 30

INEEIEST EXPEIISE ...ttt ettt sttt ettt ettt et bt et eae et saee bt eaaesbe e s enbeeenesbeennesueenneene (66) (29)
Net Interest NCOME (EXPEIISE) .....cuveureureurereieiieiiritettetese st etestestessetesesessessestentesteueeueeseesessessessessesaensensennens (42) 1
TTadINg TEVENUE (EXPEIISE) ..c.vevirririrriterterteteetet et ett et eteeue et e sbe st ettt et et et et esteseebeebeebesbesbesbesbe st e stenaeneennen 85 (157)
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates:

HSBC BANK PIC ..ttt ettt ettt st b e st 24 22

HSBC FINance COrporation ........c.cocoueeueieieieirteiieiene sttt seessetesteeesesnesteseesesaesaesressesaesaessessessensenne 34 13

HSBC Markets (USA) INC. ("HMUS™) ....cuooiiiiiiieircereceeeeet et 5 6

Other HSBC affIlIAtes ......c.coiriiiiiieieicieieieieetcese sttt st s et eee 19 13
Total servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates.........c.ccveiniiniiiniiniiniccceeeeeeenceeee 82 54
Gain (loss) on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives..........ccoceveveninencnincncnenne. 360 (44)
Support services from HSBC affiliates:

HMIUS ottt ettt ettt h et h et bbbt sttt b ettt n e 12) (53)

HSBC Technology & Services (USA) ("HTSU™).c.ovuiiiiiniinieeecteeeeeer e (285) (229)

Other HSBC affIlIAtes ......c.coiriiiiiieieieieiccectee sttt ettt st s e (42) (38)
Total support services from HSBC affiliates..........ccooeivieinieinieiniiiiiicinieeeeeeeeeeseeee e (339) (320)
Stock based compensation expense with HSBC™ ...............cooooiiriierieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e @) (6)

M Employees may participate in one or more stock compensation plans sponsored by HSBC. These expenses are included in salaries and employee benefits

in our consolidated statement of income. Certain employees are also eligible to participate in a defined benefit pension plan and other postretirement plans
sponsored by HSBC North America which are discussed in Note 11, "Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits."

Funding Arrangements with HSBC Affiliates:

We use HSBC affiliates to fund a portion of our borrowing and liquidity needs. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, long-
term debt with affiliates reflected $4.9 billion of floating rate borrowings from HSBC North America. The outstanding balances
include $2.0 billion of senior debt which matures in August 2021, $0.9 billion of subordinated debt which matures in May 2025
and $2.0 billion of senior debt which matures in August 2026.

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, we had a $150 million uncommitted line of credit with HSBC North America. There
was no outstanding balance under this credit facility at either March 31, 2017 or December 31, 2016.

We have also incurred short-term borrowings with certain affiliates, largely securities sold under repurchase agreements with HSI.
In addition, certain affiliates have also placed deposits with us.

Lending and Derivative Related Arrangements Extended to HSBC Affiliates:
At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, we have the following loan balances outstanding with HSBC affiliates:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
HSBC FINance COPOTAtiOnN ..........c.ceueurueiruirieuiriesirieseriestrtesestestesetesesesessesessesessenessenesseneeseseesensesensens $ — 3 2,501
HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS") and SubSIAIaries ..........cccveverriereeneerieneeieseeeeseeseseesesenens 609 563
HSBC MEXICO S.A. 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt b e 300 195
Other short-term affiliate 1ending..........cocevereriiiiiniiiiiii et 30 15
TOLAL LOAIIS ...ttt et ettt et e et e et e e et et e eate et et esasetesaeeaesatenaesatesesesesseeneans $ 939 § 3,274

HSBC Finance Corporation We have extended a $5.0 billion, 364-day uncommitted unsecured revolving credit agreement to
HSBC Finance which expires during the fourth quarter of 2017. The credit agreement allows for borrowings with maturities of
up to 5 years. During the first quarter of 2017, HSBC Finance prepaid the $2.5 billion that was outstanding under this credit
agreement, including loan prepayment fees of $28 million which is included in servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates.
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HMUS and subsidiaries We have extended loans and lines, some of them uncommitted, to HMUS and its subsidiaries in the
amount of $5.9 billion at both March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, of which $609 million and $563 million, respectively, was
outstanding. The maturities of the outstanding balances range from overnight to three months. Each borrowing is re-evaluated
prior to its maturity date and either extended or allowed to mature.

HSBC Mexico S.A. We have extended an uncommitted line of credit to HSBC Mexico S.A. in the amount of $1.2 billion at both
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, of which $300 million and $195 million was outstanding at March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectively. The outstanding balance matures in 2019.

We have extended lines of credit to various other HSBC affiliates totaling $2.3 billion which did not have any outstanding balances
at either March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Other short-term affiliate lending In addition to loans and lines extended to affiliates discussed above, from time to time we may
extend loans to affiliates which are generally short term in nature. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, there were $30
million and $15 million, respectively, of these loans outstanding.

As part of a global HSBC strategy to offset interest rate or other market risks associated with certain securities, debt issues and
derivative contracts with unaffiliated third parties, we routinely enter into derivative transactions with HSBC Finance, HSBC Bank
plc and other HSBC affiliates. The notional value of derivative contracts related to these transactions was approximately $865.5
billion and $878.5 billion at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The net credit exposure (defined as the net fair
value of derivative assets and liabilities, including any collateral received) related to the contracts was approximately $38 million
and $29 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. Our Global Banking and Markets business accounts for
these transactions on a mark to market basis, with the change in value of contracts with HSBC affiliates substantially offset by the
change in value of related contracts entered into with unaffiliated third parties.

Services Provided Between HSBC Affiliates:

Under multiple service level agreements, we provide services to and receive services from various HSBC affiliates. The following
summarizes these activities:

» Servicing activities for residential mortgage loans across North America are performed both by us and HSBC Finance. As a
result, we receive servicing fees from HSBC Finance for services performed on their behalf and pay servicing fees to HSBC
Finance for services performed on our behalf. The fees we receive from HSBC Finance are reported in servicing and other
fees from HSBC affiliates. Fees we pay to HSBC Finance are reported in support services from HSBC affiliates. This includes
fees paid for the servicing of residential mortgage loans (with a carrying amount of $93 million and $558 million at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively) that we purchased from HSBC Finance in 2003 and 2004. During 2016, we
transferred these residential mortgage loans to held for sale. See Note 6, "Loans Held for Sale," for additional information.

+ HSBC North America's technology and certain centralized support services including human resources, corporate affairs, risk
management, legal, compliance, tax, finance and other shared services that are centralized within HTSU. HTSU also provides
certain item processing and statement processing activities to us. The fees we pay HTSU for the centralized support services
and processing activities are included in support services from HSBC affiliates. We also receive fees from HTSU for providing
certain administrative services to them. The fees we receive from HTSU are included in servicing and other fees from HSBC
affiliates. In certain cases, for facilities used by HTSU, we may guarantee their performance under the lease agreements.

*  We use HSBC Global Services Limited, an HSBC affiliate located outside of the United States, to provide various support
services to our operations including among other areas, customer service, systems, collection and accounting functions. The
expenses related to these services are included in support services from HSBC affiliates.

*  We utilize HSI, a subsidiary of HMUS, for broker dealer, debt underwriting, customer referrals, loan syndication and other
treasury and traded markets related services, pursuant to service level agreements. Debt underwriting fees charged by HSI are
deferred as a reduction of long-term debt and amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt. Fees charged by
HSI for the other services are included in support services from HSBC affiliates.

*  We receive fees from other subsidiaries of HSBC, including HSBC Bank plc and HSI, for providing them with banking and
other miscellaneous services as well as support for certain administrative and global business activities. These fees are reported
in servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates.

Other Transactions with HSBC Affiliates

We received revenue from our affiliates for rent on certain office space, which has been recorded as a component of support services
from HSBC affiliates. Rental revenue from our affiliates totaled $13 million and $16 million during the three months ended March
31,2017 and 2016, respectively.

Atboth March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016, we had $1,265 million of non-cumulative preferred stock issued and outstanding
to HSBC North America. See Note 17, "Preferred Stock," in our 2016 Form 10-K for additional information.
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13. Business Segments

We have five distinct business segments that we utilize for management reporting and analysis purposes, which are aligned with
HSBC's global business strategy: Retail Banking and Wealth Management ("RBWM"), Commercial Banking ("CMB"), Global
Banking and Markets ("GB&M") and Private Banking ("PB") and a Corporate Center ("CC") which was created in 2017 and is
discussed further below.

We previously announced that we made the decision to implement changes to our internal management reporting for certain
activities and functions and report them within a new CC segment beginning in January 2017. These activities and functions include
Balance Sheet Management and our legacy structured credit products which historically were both reported in GB&M, as well as
a portfolio of residential mortgage loans previously purchased from HSBC Finance, including certain loan servicing activities
performed on behalf of HSBC Finance, which were historically reported in RBWM. In addition, we have reviewed central costs
historically reported in the Other segment and have reallocated these costs to the global businesses where appropriate. Remaining
residual costs are reported in the CC along with all other remaining items historically reported in the Other segment. As a result,
beginning in the first quarter of 2017, we have aligned our segment reporting with the changes made to our internal management
reporting and are reporting these changes as part of the newly created CC segment for all periods presented.

The following table summarizes the impact on reported segment total assets, total deposits and profit before tax as of and for the
three months ended March 31, 2016:

2016

(in millions)

Increase (decrease) in segment profit before tax during the three months ended March 31:

RBWM ..ottt sttt stttk etk ek ekt e h ekt eh et h et h etttk ne et e ene et $ 3
CMB .t h bbbttt etttk ek e b e bt b et b bbb st et ae bt ekt eb et b st bt st ebenteben 4
GBEM ...tttk ek a ettt a ettt ettt eb et e enenaenen ®)
CC (as compared with previously 1eported Other)..........coiiiiiieiiiie e 1

RBWM ...ttt $  (672)
GBEM ..o (93,516)
CC (as compared with previously reported Other).........c.coeviriiiiiiiiiiniiee ettt 94,188

Our segment results are presented in accordance with HSBC Group accounting and reporting policies, which apply IFRSs as issued
by the IASB and as endorsed by the EU, and, as a result, our segment results are prepared and presented using financial information
prepared on the Group Reporting Basis as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are evaluated and decisions about
allocating resources, such as employees, are primarily made on this basis. However, we continue to monitor capital adequacy and
report to regulatory agencies on a U.S. GAAP basis.

We continue to evaluate the financial information used to manage our businesses, including the presentation of financial data being
reported to our Management and our Board. To the extent we make changes to this reporting in the future, we will evaluate any
impact such changes may have on our segment reporting.

During the first quarter of 2017, we adopted new accounting guidance under the Group Reporting Basis which, for financial
liabilities measured under the fair value option, requires recognizing the change in fair value attributable to our own credit in other
comprehensive income consistent with the new accounting guidance also adopted under U.S. GAAP. The adoption of this guidance
did not require periods prior to 2017 to be restated. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, total other revenues under the
Group Reporting Basis included a gain of $149 million from the change in fair value of our own debt attributable to credit spread
for which we have elected fair value option accounting.

There have been no additional changes in the basis of our segmentation or measurement of segment profit as compared with the
presentation in our 2016 Form 10-K.
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A summary of differences between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting Basis as they impact our results are presented in Note
22, "Business Segments," in our 2016 Form 10-K. Other than the change discussed below, there have been no other significant
changes since December 31, 2016 in the differences between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting Basis impacting our results.

Structured notes and deposits - Structured notes and deposits are classified as trading liabilities under the Group Reporting Basis
and are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. We elected to apply fair value option accounting to
these structured notes and deposits under U.S. GAAP. Beginning January 1, 2017, the adoption of new accounting guidance under
U.S. GAAP requires the fair value movement on fair value option liabilities, including structured notes and deposits, attributable
to credit spread to be recorded in other comprehensive income.
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The following table summarizes the results for each segment on a Group Reporting Basis, as well as provides a reconciliation of
total results under the Group Reporting Basis to U.S. GAAP consolidated totals:

Group Reporting Basis Consolidated Amounts

Group
Group ReBpor.ting
Adjustments/ Reporting asis U.S. GAAP
Reconciling Basis Reclassi- C lidated
RBWM  CMB®  GB&MY PB cC Items Total Adjustments®  fications® Totals
(in millions)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017
Net interest income"........ $ 213 § 180 $ 152 $ 53§ 8 3 — $ 606 $ a3 s 4 9 597
Other operating income.... 137 52 121 21 94 — 425 140 “) 561
Total operating income..... 350 232 273 74 102 — 1,031 127 — 1,158
Loan impairment charges . 9 36) 35) 2 (€)] — (61) 27 11 ()
341 268 308 72 103 — 1,092 154 (480) 1,235
Operating expenses(z) ........ 275 139 203 61 110 — 788 10 an 787
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense...... $ 66 $ 129 § 105 $ 11 $ @ $ — S 304 $ 144 $ — 3 448
Balances at end of -
period:
Total asSets......ocuvvverrrenns $19,057 $24,175 $ 84,949 $7,808 $103,804 $ — $239,793 $ (38,255) $ 45 § 201,583
Total loans, net. 16,802 23,170 21,108 5,928 3,564 — 70,572 (323) (1,582) 68,667
GoodWill....c.ovveveiieienene 581 358 — 325 — — 1,264 348 — 1,612
Total deposits.........ccueue.. 34,811 19,914 22,960 11,355 6,638 — 95,678 (4,430) 38,010 129,258
Three Months Ended March 31, 2016
Net interest income"........ $ 202 $ 190 $ 149 $ 51§ 44§ 2 $ 634 $ 19) $ 39§ 654
Other operating income..... 74 62 260 23 153 2 574 (70) (42) 462
Total operating income..... 276 252 409 74 197 — 1,208 (89) 3) 1,116
Loan impairment charges . 14 12 205 (1) 2 — 232 (69) 6) 157
262 240 204 75 195 — 976 (20) 3 959
Operating expenses®........ 253 147 223 58 48 — 729 (6) 3 726
Profit (loss) before
income tax expense...... $ 9 S 93 $ a9 $ 17 $ 147 § — 3 247 $ (14) $ — 3 233
Balances at end of -
period:
Total assets........ccccevveveuenne $20,051 $26,877 $104,090 $8,221 $ 94,650 $ — $253889 § (50,109) $ 4 $ 203,784
Total loans, net.................. 17,033 23,905 25,989 6,461 3,461 — 76,849 4 3,856 80,709
GoodWill....c.ovvvveeiiieiiinne 581 358 — 325 — — 1,264 348 — 1,612
Total deposits........ccceeuenee 32,506 19,699 21,942 13,813 8,940 — 96,900 (5,195) 34,598 126,303

M Net interest income of each segment represents the difference between actual interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities of the segment adjusted
for a funding charge or credit. Segments are charged a cost to fund assets (e.g. customer loans) and receive a funding credit for funds provided (e.g. customer
deposits) based on equivalent market rates. The objective of these charges/credits is to transfer interest rate risk from the segments to one centralized unit
in Balance Sheet Management and more appropriately reflect the profitability of the segments.

@ Expenses for the segments include fully apportioned corporate overhead expenses.

® " During the fourth quarter of 2016, we transferred certain client relationships from CMB to GB&M as discussed further in Note 22, "Business Segments,"
in our 2016 Form 10-K. As a result, we reclassified $22 million of profit before tax from the CMB segment to the GB&M segment during the three months
ended March 31, 2016 to conform with the current year presentation. In addition, we reclassified $4,733 million of loans and $2,789 million of deposits
from the CMB segment to the GB&M segment at March 31, 2016.

@ Represents adjustments associated with differences between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting Basis.
® Represents differences in financial statement presentation between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting Basis.
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14. Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital Requirements

Bank dividends are one of the sources of funds used for payment of shareholder dividends and other HSBC USA cash needs. Any
non-contractual dividend from HSBC Bank USA would require the approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
("the OCC"). Approval is also required if the total of all dividends HSBC Bank USA declares in any year exceeds the cumulative
net profits for that year, combined with the profits for the two preceding years reduced by dividends attributable to those years.
Under a separate restriction, payment of dividends is prohibited in amounts greater than undivided profits then on hand, after
deducting actual losses and bad debts. Bad debts are debts due and unpaid for a period of six months unless well secured, as
defined, and in the process of collection.

HSBC Bank USA is also required to maintain reserve balances either in the form of vault cash or on deposit with the Federal
Reserve Bank, based on a percentage of deposits. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, HSBC Bank USA was required to
maintain $3,113 million and $3,139 million, respectively, of reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank.

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of HSBC USA and HSBC Bank USA, calculated in accordance
with banking regulations in effect at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Capital Well-Capitalized Actual Capital Well-Capitalized Actual
Amount Ratio® Ratio Amount Ratio® Ratio

(dollars are in millions)

Common equity Tier 1 ratio:

HSBC USA ..o $ 17,899 45% @ 14.9% $ 17,544 45% % 13.7%

HSBC Bank USA.......cccooviniriieennne 19,750 6.5 16.7 19,577 6.5 15.7
Tier 1 capital ratio:

HSBC USA. ...ttt 19,140 6.0 16.0 18,640 6.0 14.5

HSBC Bank USA......cccccovinninnenns 22,222 8.0 18.7 21,971 8.0 17.6
Total capital ratio:

HSBC USA ..ot 23,709 10.0 19.8 23,549 10.0 18.3

HSBC Bank USA.......cccooviiriiennne 26,467 10.0 22.3 26,325 10.0 21.1
Tier 1 leverage ratio:

HSBC USA oo 19,140 40 @ 96 18,640 40 @ 92

HSBC Bank USA......cccccovinninnenns 22,222 5.0 11.4 21,971 5.0 11.1
Risk weighted assets:

HSBC USA ..ot 119,889 128,482

HSBC Bank USA.......cccoovineiiennne 118,554 124,666
Adjusted quarterly average assets:®

HSBC USA. ..ot 199,619 203,000

HSBC Bank USA......cccccovinninnenns 195,531 197,944

(" HSBC USA and HSBC Bank USA are categorized as "well-capitalized," as defined by their principal regulators. To be categorized as well-capitalized under
regulatory guidelines, a banking institution must have the ratios reflected in the above table, and must not be subject to a directive, order, or written agreement
to meet and maintain specific capital levels.

@ There are no common equity Tier 1 or Tier 1 leverage ratio components in the definition of a well-capitalized bank holding company. The ratios shown are
the regulatory minimum ratios.

®  Represents the Tier 1 leverage ratio denominator which reflects quarterly average assets adjusted for amounts permitted to be deducted from Tier 1 capital
for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

In 2013, U.S. banking regulators issued a final rule implementing the Basel III capital framework in the U.S. ("the Basel III final

rule") which, for banking organizations such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, became effective in 2014 with certain

provisions being phased in over time through the beginning of 2019. As a result, the capital ratios in the table above are reported

in accordance with the Basel III transition rules within the final rule. In addition, risk weighted assets in the table above are

calculated using the Basel III Standardized Approach.
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15. Variable Interest Entities

In the ordinary course of business, we have organized special purpose entities ("SPEs") primarily to structure financial products
to meet our clients' investment needs, to facilitate clients to access and raise financing from capital markets and to securitize
financial assets held to meet our own funding needs. For disclosure purposes, we aggregate SPEs based on the purpose, risk
characteristics and business activities of the SPEs. An SPE is a VIE if it lacks sufficient equity investment at risk to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support or, as a group, the holders of the equity investment at risk lack either
a) the power through voting or similar rights to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impacts the entity's economic
performance; or b) the obligation to absorb the entity's expected losses, the right to receive the expected residual returns, or both.

Variable Interest Entities We consolidate VIEs in which we hold a controlling financial interest as evidenced by the power to
direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact its economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of, or the
right to receive benefits from, the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE and therefore are deemed to be the primary
beneficiary. We take into account our entire involvement in a VIE (explicit or implicit) in identifying variable interests that
individually or in the aggregate could be significant enough to warrant our designation as the primary beneficiary and hence require
us to consolidate the VIE or otherwise require us to make appropriate disclosures. We consider our involvement to be potentially
significant where we, among other things, (i) enter into derivative contracts to absorb the risks and benefits from the VIE or from
the assets held by the VIE; (ii) provide a financial guarantee that covers assets held or liabilities issued by a VIE; (iii) sponsor the
VIE in that we design, organize and structure the transaction; and (iv) retain a financial or servicing interest in the VIE.

We are required to evaluate whether to consolidate a VIE when we first become involved and on an ongoing basis. In almost all
cases, a qualitative analysis of our involvement in the entity provides sufficient evidence to determine whether we are the primary
beneficiary. In rare cases, a more detailed analysis to quantify the extent of variability to be absorbed by each variable interest
holder is required to determine the primary beneficiary.

Consolidated VIEs The following table summarizes assets and liabilities related to our consolidated VIEs at March 31,2017 and
December 31,2016 which are consolidated on our balance sheet. Assets and liabilities exclude intercompany balances that eliminate
in consolidation.

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

(in millions)
Low income housing limited liability partnership:

OthET @SSELS .veveevieeieiieieete ettt ettt sttt ettt enee e nseeneenee e $ 220 $ — S 231 $ —
Long-term debt.........cccoriieieieeieeee e — 79 — 79
Interest, taxes and other liabilities..........cccccvvveviereririeeieieeeee — 54 — 60
TOtAL .ot $ 220 $ 133 $ 231 $ 139

Low income housing limited liability partnership In 2009, all low income housing investments held by us at the time were
transferred to a Limited Liability Partnership ("LLP") in exchange for debt and equity while a third party invested cash for an
equity interest that is mandatorily redeemable at a future date. The LLP was created in order to ensure the utilization of future tax
benefits from these low income housing tax projects. The LLP was deemed to be a VIE as it does not have sufficient equity
investment at risk to finance its activities. Upon entering into this transaction, we concluded that we are the primary beneficiary
of the LLP due to the nature of our continuing involvement and, as a result, consolidate the LLP and report the equity interest
issued to the third party investor in other liabilities and the assets of the LLP in other assets on our consolidated balance sheet. The
investments held by the LLP represent equity investments in the underlying low income housing partnerships. The LLP does not
consolidate the underlying partnerships because it does not have the power to direct the activities of the partnerships that most
significantly impact the economic performance of the partnerships.

As a practical expedient, we amortize our low income housing investments in proportion to the allocated tax benefits under the
proportional amortization method and present the associated tax benefits net of investment amortization in income tax expense.
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Unconsolidated VIEs We also have variable interests in other VIEs that are not consolidated because we are not the primary
beneficiary. The following table provides additional information on these unconsolidated VIEs, including the variable interests
held by us and our maximum exposure to loss arising from our involvements in these VIEs, at March 31, 2017 and December 31,
2016:

Variable Interests Variable Interests Total Assets in Maximum
Held Classified Held Classified Unconsolidated Exposure
as Assets as Liabilities VIEs to Loss

(in millions)

At March 31, 2017
Structured Note VEhICIES ......ccuvvvveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 2,884 $ 6 $ 5866 $ 5,860
Limited partnership investments............cccceeeveerueenenennns 387 230 1,407 387
Refinancing SPE ..o 324 — 494 323
0] 721 USRS $ 3595 § 236 $ 7,767 $ 6,570
At December 31, 2016
Structured note vehicles........coovvevvieieerieiecrieeeereee $ 2,888 $ 7 9 5908 $ 5,896
Limited partnership investments.........c..c.ccocevereneennene 427 227 1,853 427
Refinancing SPE ... 353 — 659 353
TOtal . $ 3,668 $ 234§ 8,420 § 6,676

Information on the types of variable interest entities with which we are involved, the nature of our involvement and the variable
interests held in those entities is presented below.

Structured note vehicles We provide derivatives, such as interest rate and currency swaps, to structured note vehicles and, in
certain instances, invest in the vehicles' debt instruments. We hold variable interests in these structured note vehicles in the form
of total return swaps under which we take on the risks and benefits of the structured notes they issue. The same risks and benefits
are passed on to third party entities through back-end total return swaps. We earn a spread for facilitating the transaction. Since
we do not have the power to direct the activities of the VIE and are not the primary beneficiary, we do not consolidate them. Our
maximum exposure to loss is the notional amount of the derivatives wrapping the structured notes. The maximum exposure to
loss of $5,860 million at March 31, 2017 will occur in the unlikely scenario where the value of the structured notes is reduced to
zero and, at the same time, the counterparty of the back-end swap defaults with zero recovery. In certain instances, we hold credit
default swaps with the structured note vehicles under which we receive credit protection on specified reference assets in exchange
for the payment of a premium. Through these derivatives, the vehicles assume the credit risk associated with the reference assets
which are then passed on to the holders of the debt instruments they issue. Because they create rather than absorb variability, the
credit default swaps we hold are not considered variable interests. We record all investments in, and derivative contracts with,
unconsolidated structured note vehicles at fair value on our consolidated balance sheet.

Limited partnership investments We invest as a limited partner in partnerships that operate qualified affordable housing, renewable
energy and community development projects. The returns of these investments are generated primarily from the tax benefits,
including Federal tax credits and tax deductions from operating losses in the project companies. In addition, some of the investments
also help us comply with the Community Reinvestment Act. Certain limited partnership structures are considered to be VIEs
because either (a) they do not have sufficient equity investment at risk or (b) the limited partners with equity at risk do not have
substantive kick-out rights through voting rights or substantive participating rights over the general partner. As a limited partner,
we are not the primary beneficiary of the VIEs and do not consolidate them. Our investments in these partnerships are recorded
in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. The maximum exposure to loss shown in the table above represents our recorded
investments.

Refinancing SPE We organized and provided loans to a SPE to purchase a senior secured financing facility from the originator
designed to finance a third party borrower's acquisition of a portfolio of commercial real estate loans in Mexico. Interest and
principal repayments of the prepayable financing facility are dependent on and are secured by the rental cash flows generated from
the underlying commercial real estate properties. The financing facility contains additional credit enhancements, including a 15
percent equity subordination in the borrower's capital structure and a financial guarantee over 25 percent of the outstanding balance
provided by the borrower's parent.

The SPE is a refinancing vehicle designed to secure term financing from external investors to repay our loans. The loans issued
to the SPE are supported by the financing facility and the security interests in the commercial real estate loans and the credit
enhancements. The refinancing vehicle is a VIE because it does not have sufficient equity investment at risk to permit the entity
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to finance the activities without additional subordination provided by any parties. We have a variable interest in the VIE through
our ownership of the loans. In view of the purpose and design of the SPE, the overall funding structure, the additional credit
enhancements and the risks inherent in the VIE, we concluded the investors absorb an insignificant amount of expected loss and/
or benefit in the VIE. Rather, the borrower and its parent take on the risks and benefits in the VIE through the credit enhancements
provided to the holder of the financing facility. In addition, the investors do not have the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance of the VIE and, therefore, we are not the primary beneficiary of the VIE. The
maximum exposure to loss shown in the table above represents our investment in the loans without consideration of any recovery
benefits from the credit enhancements.

Third-party sponsored securitization entities We invest in asset-backed securities issued by third party sponsored securitization
entities which may be considered VIEs. The investments are transacted at arm's-length and decisions to invest are based on a credit
analysis of the underlying collateral assets or the issuer. We are a passive investor in these issuers and do not have the power to
direct the activities of these issuers. As such, we do not consolidate these securitization entities. Additionally, we do not have other
involvements in servicing or managing the collateral assets or provide financial or liquidity support to these issuers which potentially
giverise to risk of loss exposure. These investments are an integral part of the disclosure in Note 2, "Trading Assets and Liabilities,"
Note 3, "Securities," and Note 17, "Fair Value Measurements," and, therefore, are not disclosed in this note to avoid redundancy.

16. Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Repurchase Agreements

Guarantee Arrangements As part of our normal operations, we enter into credit derivatives and various off-balance sheet guarantee
arrangements with affiliates and third parties. These arrangements arise principally in connection with our lending and client
intermediation activities and include standby letters of credit and certain credit derivative transactions. The contractual amounts
of these arrangements represent our maximum possible credit exposure in the event that we are required to fulfill the maximum
obligation under the contractual terms of the guarantee.

The following table presents total carrying value and contractual amounts of our sell protection credit derivatives and major off-
balance sheet guarantee arrangements at March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016. Following the table is a description of the various
arrangements.

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Notional / Notional /
Maximum Maximum
Carrying Exposure to Carrying Exposure to
Value Loss Value Loss

(in millions)

Credit derivatives™"™ ..o $ (345 $ 55969 $  (627) $ 58,329
Financial standby letters of credit, net of participations®® ..........ccc.c...... — 5,136 — 5,423
Performance standby letters of credit, net of participations®® _................. — 3,109 — 2,969
TOLAL ..t $ (345) $ 64,214 $ (627) $ 66,721

M Includes $33,751 million and $29,999 million of notional issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

@ Includes $1,393 million and $1,315 million of both financial and performance standby letters of credit issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March

31,2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

®  For standby letters of credit, maximum loss represents losses to be recognized assuming the letters of credit have been fully drawn and the obligors have

defaulted with zero recovery.

@ For credit derivatives, the maximum loss is represented by the notional amounts without consideration of mitigating effects from collateral or recourse

arrangements.

Credit-Risk Related Guarantees

Credit derivatives Credit derivatives are financial instruments that transfer the credit risk of a reference obligation from the credit
protection buyer to the credit protection seller who is exposed to the credit risk without buying the reference obligation. We sell
credit protection on underlying reference obligations (such as loans or securities) by entering into credit derivatives, primarily in
the form of credit default swaps, with various institutions. We account for all credit derivatives at fair value. Where we sell credit
protection to a counterparty that holds the reference obligation, the arrangement is effectively a financial guarantee on the reference
obligation. Under a credit derivative contract, the credit protection seller will reimburse the credit protection buyer upon occurrence
of a credit event (such as bankruptcy, insolvency, restructuring or failure to meet payment obligations when due) as defined in the
derivative contract, in return for a periodic premium. Upon occurrence of a credit event, we will pay the counterparty the stated
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notional amount of the derivative contract and receive the underlying reference obligation. The recovery value of the reference
obligation received could be significantly lower than its notional principal amount when a credit event occurs.

Certain derivative contracts are subject to master netting arrangements and related collateral agreements. A party to a derivative
contract may demand that the counterparty post additional collateral in the event its net exposure exceeds certain predetermined
limits and when the credit rating falls below a certain grade. We set the collateral requirements by counterparty such that the
collateral covers various transactions and products, and is not allocated to specific individual contracts.

We manage our exposure to credit derivatives using a variety of risk mitigation strategies where we enter into offsetting hedge
positions or transfer the economic risks, in part or in entirety, to investors through the issuance of structured credit products. We
actively manage the credit and market risk exposure in the credit derivative portfolios on a net basis and, as such, retain no or a
limited net sell protection position at any time. The following table summarizes our net credit derivative positions at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Carrying / Fair Carrying / Fair
Value Notional Value Notional

(in millions)

Sell-protection credit derivative POSIHIONS ........ccceeerererererenueneneennes $ (345) $ 55969 $ (627) $§ 58,329
Buy-protection credit derivative positions............ceceeevverervenrenveneennnn 552 63,568 845 65,385
NEt POSTON ... $ 207 $ 7,599 $ 218 $ 7,056

(" Ppositions are presented net in the table above to provide a complete analysis of our risk exposure and depict the way we manage our credit derivative portfolio.

The offset of the sell-protection credit derivatives against the buy-protection credit derivatives may not be legally binding in the absence of master netting
agreements with the same counterparty. Furthermore, the credit loss triggering events for individual sell protection credit derivatives may not be the same
or occur in the same period as those of the buy protection credit derivatives thereby not providing an exact offset.

Standby letters of credit A standby letter of credit is issued to a third party for the benefit of a client and is a guarantee that the
client will perform or satisfy certain obligations under a contract. It irrevocably obligates us to pay a specified amount to the third
party beneficiary if the client fails to perform the contractual obligation. We issue two types of standby letters of credit: performance
and financial. A performance standby letter of credit is issued where the client is required to perform some non-financial contractual
obligation, such as the performance of a specific act, whereas a financial standby letter of credit is issued where the client's
contractual obligation is of a financial nature, such as the repayment of a loan or debt instrument. At March 31, 2017, the total
amount of outstanding financial standby letters of credit (net of participations) and performance guarantees (net of participations)
were $5,136 million and $3,109 million, respectively. At December 31, 2016, the total amount of outstanding financial standby
letters of credit (net of participations) and performance guarantees (net of participations) were $5,423 million and $2,969 million,
respectively.

The issuance of a standby letter of credit is subject to our credit approval process and collateral requirements. We charge fees for
issuing letters of credit commensurate with the client's credit evaluation and the nature of any collateral. Included in other liabilities
are deferred fees on standby letters of credit amounting to $51 million and $49 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively. Also included in other liabilities is an allowance for credit losses on unfunded standby letters of credit of $33 million
and $39 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the credit ratings related to guarantees including the ratings of counterparties against which we
sold credit protection and financial standby letters of credit at March 31, 2017 as an indicative proxy of payment risk:

Credit Ratings of the Obligors or the Transactions

Average
Life Investment Non-Investment
Notional/Contractual Amounts (in years) Grade Grade Total
(dollars are in millions)

Sell-protection Credit Derivatives"

Single name credit default swaps ("CDS").....ccceevevvvervecreennnne. 2.4 $ 28,421 $ 15,278  $ 43,699

Structured CDS....o..oiiiiieeeece e 0.4 2,965 145 3,110

Index credit derivatives ........c.ecvvevveeieniieeenieeeesie e 3.2 3,363 2,728 6,091

Total TetUIN SWaPS.....coveveieieieiirerertestere et 2.1 2,735 334 3,069
SUDLOLAL ...ttt 37,484 18,485 55,969
Standby Letters of Credit® .............cco.ccovoivvieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens 1.3 5,430 2,814 8,245
0] 721 USROS $ 42914 % 21,299 $ 64,214

(" The credit ratings in the table represent external credit ratings for classification as investment grade and non-investment grade.

@ External ratings for most of the obligors are not available. Presented above are the internal credit ratings which are developed using similar methodologies
and rating scale equivalent to external credit ratings for purposes of classification as investment grade and non-investment grade.

Our internal credit ratings are determined based on HSBC's risk rating systems and processes which assign a credit grade based
on a scale which ranks the risk of default of a client. The credit grades are assigned and used for managing risk and determining
level of credit exposure appetite based on the client's operating performance, liquidity, capital structure and debt service ability.
In addition, we also incorporate subjective judgments into the risk rating process concerning such things as industry trends,
comparison of performance to industry peers and perceived quality of management. We compare our internal risk ratings to outside
external rating agency benchmarks, where possible, at the time of formal review and regularly monitor whether our risk ratings
are comparable to the external ratings benchmark data.

A non-investment grade rating of a referenced obligor has a negative impact to the fair value of the credit derivative and increases
the likelihood that we will be required to perform under the credit derivative contract. We employ market-based parameters and,
where possible, use the observable credit spreads of the referenced obligors as measurement inputs in determining the fair value
of the credit derivatives. We believe that such market parameters are more indicative of the current status of payment/performance
risk than external ratings by the rating agencies which may not be forward-looking in nature and, as a result, lag behind those
market-based indicators.

Non Credit-Risk Related Guarantees and Other Arrangements

Visa covered litigation In 2008, we received Class B Shares as part of Visa's initial public offering ("IPO"). Pursuant to the IPO,
we, along with all the other Class B shareholders, agreed to indemnify Visa for the claims and obligations arising from certain
specific covered litigation. The Class B Shares are not eligible to be converted into publicly traded Class A Shares until settlement
of the covered litigation as described in Note 27, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in our 2016 Form 10-K. Accordingly, the
Class B Shares are considered restricted and are only transferable under limited circumstances, which include transfers to other
Class B sharcholders. Visa used a portion of the IPO proceeds to establish an escrow account to fund future claims arising from
those covered litigation. From 2009 to 2011, Visa exercised its rights to sell shares of existing Class B shareholders and deposited
the proceeds in order to increase the escrow account. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, we estimated the shares held in
the Visa escrow account were sufficient to cover any anticipated liabilities that may arise as a result of settlements or other resolutions
of still-pending cases, therefore, no liability was recorded relating to this litigation.

During the first quarter of 2017, we sold 1,161,897 Visa Class B Shares to a third party resulting in a net pre-tax gain of approximately
$146 million. During the fourth quarter of 2016, we sold 638,219 Visa Class B Shares to a third party resulting in a net pre-tax
gain of approximately $71 million. The net pre-tax gains associated with these sales were recorded as a component of other income
(loss) in the consolidated statement of income. Under the terms of the sale agreements, we entered into swap agreements with the
purchaser to retain the litigation risk associated with the Class B Shares sold until the related litigation is settled and the Class B
Shares can be converted into Class A Shares. These swaps had a carrying value of $32 million (of which $17 million related to
the sale during the first quarter of 2017) and $14 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The swap
agreements we entered into with the purchaser requires us to (a) make periodic fixed payments, calculated by reference to the
market price of Class A Shares and (b) make or receive payments based on subsequent changes in the conversion rate of Class B
Shares into Class A Shares. The payments under the derivative will continue until the Class B Shares are able to be converted into
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Class A Shares. The fair value of the swap agreements is estimated using a discounted cash flow methodology and is dependent
upon the final resolution of the related litigation. Changes in fair value between periods are recognized in other income (loss). As
of March 31, 2017, we continued to hold approximately 1,230,039 Visa Class B Shares, which are recorded at their original cost
basis of zero and have an estimated fair value of approximately $150 million.

Clearing houses and exchanges We are a member of various exchanges and clearing houses that trade and clear securities and/
or derivatives contracts. Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, members of a clearing
house may be required to contribute to a guaranty fund to backstop members' obligations to the clearing house. As a member, we
may be required to pay a proportionate share of the financial obligations of another member who defaults on its obligations to the
exchange or the clearing house. Our guarantee obligations would arise only if the exchange or clearing house had exhausted its
resources. Any potential contingent liability under these membership agreements cannot be estimated.

Mortgage Loan Repurchase Obligations Historically, we originated and sold mortgage loans, primarily to government sponsored
enterprises, and provided various representations and warranties related to, among other things, the ownership of the loans, the
validity of the liens, the loan selection and origination process, and the compliance to the origination criteria established by the
agencies. In the event of a breach of our representations and warranties, we may be obligated to repurchase the loans with identified
defects or to indemnify the buyers. Our contractual obligation arises only when the breach of representations and warranties are
discovered and repurchase is demanded. As a result of settlements with the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation during 2013 and 2014, the repurchase exposure associated with these sales has been substantially
resolved. In addition, with the conversion of our mortgage processing and servicing operations to PHH Mortgage in 2013, new
agency eligible originations are sold directly to PHH Mortgage and PHH Mortgage is responsible for origination representations
and warranties for all loans purchased.

In estimating our repurchase liability arising from breaches of representations and warranties, we consider historical losses on
residual risks not covered by settlement agreements adjusted for any risk factors not captured in the historical losses as well as the
level of outstanding repurchase demands received. Outstanding repurchase demands received totaled $5 million and $6 million
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

The following table summarizes the change in our estimated repurchase liability during the three months ended March 31, 2017
and 2016 for obligations arising from the breach of representations and warranties associated with mortgage loans sold:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
Balance at beginning Of PEriod .......cccoiviiiririiiineiieceeee ettt $ 12§ 17
Increase (decrease) in liability recorded through €arnings ...........cccveevevvievienieiienieiereee e — —
REAIIZEA LOSSES .....evvemeeneiieiieiteiteeet ettt ettt sttt et et a ettt et ettt e e ebeeneeaesaen 4)) €))
Balance at €nd Of PEIIOQ.......c.ooiiuiiiiiiiie ettt ettt eb et sae $ 1 3 16

Our repurchase liability of $11 million at March 31, 2017 represents our best estimate of the loss that has been incurred, including
interest, arising from breaches of representations and warranties associated with mortgage loans sold. Because the level of mortgage
loan repurchase losses is dependent upon economic factors, investor demand strategies and other external risk factors such as
housing market trends that may change, the level of the liability for mortgage loan repurchase losses requires significant judgment.
We continue to evaluate our methods of determining the best estimate of loss based on recent trends. As these estimates are
influenced by factors outside our control, there is uncertainty inherent in these estimates making it reasonably possible that they
could change. The range of reasonably possible losses in excess of our recorded repurchase liability is between zero and $25
millionatMarch31,2017. This estimated range of reasonably possible losses was determined based upon modifying the assumptions
utilized in our best estimate of probable losses to reflect what we believe to be reasonably possible adverse assumptions.

Securitization Activity In addition to the repurchase risk described above, we have also been involved as a sponsor/seller of loans
used to facilitate whole loan securitizations underwritten by our affiliate, HSI. In this regard, we began acquiring residential
mortgage loans in 2005 which were warehoused on our balance sheet with the intent of selling them to HSI to facilitate HSI's
whole loan securitization program which was discontinued in 2007. During 2005-2007, we purchased and sold $24 billion of such
loans to HSI which were subsequently securitized and sold by HSI to third parties. See "Mortgage Securitization Matters" in Note
27, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in our 2016 Form 10-K and in Note 18, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in this Form
10-Q for additional discussion of related exposure. The outstanding principal balance on these loans was approximately $4.5 billion
and $4.6 billion at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.
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Pledged Assets

Pledged assets included in the consolidated balance sheet consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
Interest bearing deposits With Danks ...........cccoeviiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e $ 2,969 $ 3,034
Trading BSSEES ) ettt et ee e 3,054 2,772
SeCUTIHES AVATIADIE-TOT-SALED ... e e e ees s 7,356 7,503
Securities Neld-t0-MAUTIEY ........cceiiiiieiieie ettt ettt e e et sre et e se e e sseensesseensesseenes 2,411 2,551
LOANS™) ..o 18,598 18,260
Other assets¥ 2,013 1,958

.$ 36401 $ 36,078

M Trading assets are primarily pledged against liabilities associated with repurchase agreements.

@ Securities available-for-sale are primarily pledged against derivatives, public fund deposits, trust deposits and various short-term and long term borrowings,
as well as providing capacity for potential secured borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLB") and the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York.

®  Loans are primarily residential mortgage loans pledged against current and potential borrowings from the FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York.

@ Other assets represent cash on deposit with non-banks related to derivative collateral support agreements.

Debt securities pledged as collateral that can be sold or repledged by the secured party continue to be reported on the consolidated
balance sheet. The fair value of securities available-for-sale that could be sold or repledged was $1,042 million and $892 million
at March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The fair value of trading assets that could be sold or repledged was $3,054
million and $2,772 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

The fair value of collateral we accepted under security resale agreements but not reported on the consolidated balance sheet was
$31,391 million and $30,784 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, discussed further below. Of this
collateral, $28,401 million and $29,835 million could be sold or repledged at March 31,2017 and December 31,2016, respectively,
of which $814 million and $769 million, respectively, had been sold or repledged as collateral under repurchase agreements or to
cover short sales.

Repurchase Agreements

We enter into purchases of securities under agreements to resell (resale agreements) and sales of securities under agreements to
repurchase (repurchase agreements) identical or substantially the same securities. Resale and repurchase agreements are accounted
for as secured lending and secured borrowing transactions, respectively.

Repurchase agreements may require us to deposit cash or other collateral with the lender. In connection with resale agreements,
it is our policy to obtain possession of collateral, which may include the securities purchased, with market value in excess of the
principal amount loaned. The market value of the collateral subject to the resale and repurchase agreements is regularly monitored,
and additional collateral is obtained or provided when appropriate, to ensure appropriate collateral coverage of these secured
financing transactions.
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The following table provides information about resale and repurchase agreements that are subject to offset at March 31, 2017 and

December 31, 2016:

Gross Amounts Not Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Gross Gross Amounts Net Amounts Cash Collateral
Amounts Offset in the Presented in the Financial Received /
Recognized Balance Sheet” Balance Sheet Instruments® Pledged Net Amount®
(in millions)
At March 31, 2017:
Assets:
Securities purchased under
resale agreements............. $ 31,391  § 841 $ 30,550 $ 30,546 $ — $ 4
Liabilities:
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements..... $ 4,910 $ 841 $ 4,069 $ 4,069 $ — —
At December 31, 2016:
Assets:
Securities purchased under
resale agreements............. $ 30,784 $ 761 $ 30,023 $ 29945 $ — 3 78
Liabilities:
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements..... $ 4,433 § 761 $ 3,672 §$ 3,661 $ — 3 11

(O]

applicable netting criteria as permitted by generally accepted accounting principles.

2
3)

Represents securities received or pledged to cover financing transaction exposures.

Represents the amount of our exposure that is not collateralized / covered by pledged collateral.

Represents recognized amount of resale and repurchase agreements with counterparties subject to legally enforceable netting agreements that meet the

The following table provides the class of collateral pledged and remaining contractual maturity of repurchase agreements accounted
for as secured borrowings at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

Overnight Greater
and Up to 30 31to0 90 91 Days to Than One
Continuous Days Days One Year Year Total
(in millions)
At March 31, 2017:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agency and
sponsored entity SECUTItieS .....c.ccvevverrrieriererrenennen $ 691 $ — 517 $ 1,952 § 1,750 $ 4,910
At December 31, 2016:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agency and
sponsored entity SECUrities ........cvevvrveerveerreerrennns $ 761 $ — — $ 1,272 $§ 2400 $ 4,433
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17. Fair Value Measurements

Accounting principles related to fair value measurements provide a framework for measuring fair value that focuses on the exit
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal market (or in the absence of the principal
market, the most advantageous market) accessible in an orderly transaction between willing market participants (the "Fair Value
Framework"). Where required by the applicable accounting standards, assets and liabilities are measured at fair value using the
"highest and best use" valuation premise. Fair value measurement guidance clarifies that financial instruments do not have
alternative use and, as such, the fair value of financial instruments should be determined using an "in-exchange" valuation premise.
However, the fair value measurement literature provides a valuation exception and permits an entity to measure the fair value of
a group of financial assets and financial liabilities with offsetting credit risks and/or market risks based on the exit price it would
receive or pay to transfer the net risk exposure of a group of assets or liabilities if certain conditions are met. We elected to apply
the measurement exception to a group of derivative instruments with offsetting credit risks and market risks, which primarily relate
to interest rate, foreign currency, debt and equity price risk, and commodity price risk as of the reporting date.

Fair Value Adjustments The best evidence of fair value is quoted market price in an actively traded market, where available. In
the event listed price or market quotes are not available, valuation techniques that incorporate relevant transaction data and market
parameters reflecting the attributes of the asset or liability under consideration are applied. Where applicable, fair value adjustments
are made to ensure the financial instruments are appropriately recorded at fair value. The fair value adjustments reflect the risks
associated with the products, contractual terms of the transactions, and the liquidity of the markets in which the transactions occur.
The fair value adjustments are broadly categorized by the following major types:

Credit risk adjustment - The credit risk adjustment is an adjustment to a group of financial assets and financial liabilities,
predominantly derivative assets and derivative liabilities, to reflect the credit quality of the parties to the transaction in arriving at
fair value. A credit valuation adjustment to a financial asset is required to reflect the default risk of the counterparty. A debit
valuation adjustment to a financial liability is recorded to reflect the default risk of HUSI. See "Valuation Techniques - Derivatives"
below for additional details.

Liquidity risk adjustment - The liquidity risk adjustment (primarily in the form of bid-offer adjustment) reflects the cost that would
be incurred to close out the market risks by hedging, disposing or unwinding the position. Valuation models generally produce
mid-market values. The bid-offer adjustment is made in such a way that results in a measure that reflects the exit price that most
represents the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability under consideration or, where applicable, the fair value of the
net market risk exposure of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities. These adjustments relate primarily to Level 2 assets.

Model valuation adjustment - Where fair value measurements are determined using an internal valuation model based on observable
and unobservable inputs, certain valuation inputs may be less readily determinable. There may be a range of possible valuation
inputs that market participants may assume in determining the fair value measurement. The resultant fair value measurement has
inherent measurement risk if one or more parameters are unobservable and must be estimated. An input valuation adjustment is
necessary to reflect the likelihood that market participants may use different input parameters, and to mitigate the possibility of
measurement error. In addition, the values derived from valuation techniques are affected by the choice of valuation model and
model limitation. When different valuation techniques are available, the choice of valuation model can be subjective. Furthermore,
the valuation model applied may have measurement limitations. In those cases, an additional valuation adjustment is also applied
to mitigate the measurement risk. Model valuation adjustments are not material and relate primarily to Level 2 instruments.

We apply stress scenarios in determining appropriate liquidity risk and model risk adjustments for Level 3 fair values by reviewing
the historical data for unobservable inputs (e.g., correlation, volatility). Some stress scenarios involve at leasta 95 percent confidence
interval (i.e., two standard deviations). We also utilize unobservable parameter adjustments when instruments are valued using
internally developed models which reflects the uncertainty in the value estimates provided by the model.

Funding Fair Value Adjustment ("FFVA") - The FFVA reflects the estimated present value of the future market funding cost or
benefit associated with funding uncollateralized derivative exposure at rates other than the Overnight Indexed Swap ("OIS") rate.
See "Valuation Techniques - Derivatives" below for additional details.

Fair Value Hierarchy The Fair Value Framework establishes a three-tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 quoted market price - Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuation technique using observable inputs - Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive, and measurements determined using
valuation models where all significant inputs are observable, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly
quoted intervals.
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Level 3 valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs - Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
and include situations where fair values are measured using valuation techniques based on one or more significant unobservable
inputs.

Classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on whether the lowest hierarchical level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable. As such, the classification within the fair value hierarchy is dynamic and can be transferred to
other hierarchy levels in each reporting period. Transfers between leveling categories are assessed, determined and recognized at
the end of each reporting period.

Valuation Control Framework We have established a control framework which is designed to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by a function independent of the risk-taker. To that end, the ultimate responsibility for the determination
of fair values rests with Finance. Finance has established an independent price validation process to ensure that the assets and
liabilities measured at fair value are properly stated.

A valuation committee, chaired by the Head of Product Control, meets monthly to review, monitor and discuss significant valuation
matters arising from credit and market risks. The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving valuation policies and
procedures including any valuation adjustments pertaining to, among other things, independent price verification, market liquidity,
unobservable inputs, model uncertainty and counterparty credit risk. All valuation models are reviewed by the valuation committee
interms of model development, enhancements and performance. All models are independently reviewed by the Markets Independent
Model Review function and applicable valuation model recommendations are reported to and discussed with the valuation
committee. Significant valuation risks identified in business activities are corroborated and addressed by the committee members
and, where applicable, are escalated to the Chief Financial Officer of HUSI and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Where fair value measurements are determined based on information obtained from independent pricing services or brokers,
Finance applies appropriate validation procedures to substantiate fair value. For price validation purposes, quotations from at least
two independent pricing sources are obtained for each financial instrument, where possible.

The following factors are considered in determining fair values:

* similarities between the asset or the liability under consideration and the asset or liability for which quotation is received;

= collaboration of pricing by referencing to other independent market data such as market transactions and relevant benchmark
indices;

=  consistency among different pricing sources;

= the valuation approach and the methodologies used by the independent pricing sources in determining fair value;

= the elapsed time between the date to which the market data relates and the measurement date;

= the source of the fair value information; and

= whether the security is traded in an active or inactive market.

Greater weight is given to quotations of instruments with recent market transactions, pricing quotes from dealers who stand ready
to transact, quotations provided by market-makers who structured such instrument and market consensus pricing based on inputs
from a large number of survey participants. Any significant discrepancies among the external quotations are reviewed and
adjustments to fair values are recorded where appropriate. Where the transaction volume of a specific instrument has been reduced
and the fair value measurement becomes less transparent, Finance will apply more detailed procedures to understand and challenge
the appropriateness of the unobservable inputs and the valuation techniques used by the independent pricing service. Where
applicable, Finance will develop a fair value estimate using its own pricing model inputs to test reasonableness. Where fair value
measurements are determined using internal valuation models, Finance will validate the fair value measurement by either developing
unobservable inputs based on the industry consensus pricing surveys in which we participate or back testing by observing the
actual settlements occurring soon after the measurement date. Any significant valuation adjustments are reported to and discussed
with the valuation committee.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value estimates, methods and assumptions set forth below for our financial
instruments, including those financial instruments carried at cost, are made solely to comply with disclosures required by generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes
included in this report.

The following table summarizes the carrying value and estimated fair value of our financial instruments at March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016:

Carrying Fair
March 31, 2017 Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Financial assets:
Short-term financial assets ...........cceeeeiciieriieciieiieeeeeee e $ 18931 $ 18931 § 1,037 $ 17,870 $ 24
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to
TESELL. e 29,517 29,517 — 29,517 —
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to
resell designated under fair value option .........c.ccceeceverincnennnne 1,033 1,033 — 1,033 —
Non-derivative trading assets .........cecevereererrererieeneeie e 19,242 19,242 3,576 12,598 3,068
DETIVALIVES......eeeerieeeeeeee et eeeee e eeee e e e eeeaeeeeenneeeenneeean 4,050 4,050 10 4,010 30
SECUTTLIES ....eevetieiiitietieterte ettt ettt st ees 51,226 51,244 26,333 24,804 107
Commercial loans, net of allowance for credit losses................... 49,153 50,780 — — 50,780
Commercial loans designated under fair value option and held
1) g (ST 507 507 — 507 —
Commercial loans held for sale..........ccccooeeiiinnininiice 130 130 — 130 —
Consumer loans, net of allowance for credit losses ...................... 19,514 18,800 — — 18,800
Consumer loans held for sale:
Residential mortgages and home equity mortgages ................. 99 99 — 4 95
Other CONSUMET .......coceruiriiriiriiriinierienteeeeeeeit et 70 70 — — 70
Financial liabilities:
Short-term financial liabilities ..........ccccccveeveeeciierieeieeeie e $ 2384 § 2412 § — $ 2,388 $ 24
Deposits:
Without fixed mMaturitie€s......cccuvveeeveviuverieieiieeeee e 112,721 112,721 — 112,721 —
Fixed maturities .........cccueeeiuieeeiee e 8,975 9,014 — 9,014 —
Deposits designated under fair value option ........c..cccceceverenenene 7,562 7,562 — 6,346 1,216
Non-derivative trading 1iabilities..........ccccoervecievirvneninicnincnenens 855 855 762 93 —
DETIVALIVES.....eeeerieeeeeee et eeeee e e e eeee e e eeaeeeeenneeeenneeean 3,922 3,922 11 3,896 15
Short-term borrowings designated under fair value option........... 3,079 3,079 — 3,079 —
Long-term debt .........cooviiieiiiieie e 26,244 27,122 — 27,122 —
Long-term debt designated under fair value option ...........c..c...... 11,559 11,559 — 11,001 558
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Carrying Fair
December 31, 2016 Value Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Financial assets:
Short-term fINancial ASSELS ......veeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 21,500 $ 21,500 $ 1,235 §$ 20,238 27
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to
TESCLL .ttt 29,253 29,253 — 29,253 —
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to
resell designated under fair value option ...........ccceeeveeienneicne 770 770 — 770 —
Non-derivative trading aSsets .........cccveevereeriereerieneerreseereeeeeneeenes 12,439 12,439 3,560 5,811 3,068
DETIVALIVES. ..ottt sttt et 5,004 5,004 12 4,961 31
SECUITEICS ..euveviveeiteiieteeetete ettt 49,719 49,748 25,145 24,498 105
Commercial loans, net of allowance for credit losses.................... 53,286 54,938 — — 54,938
Commercial loans designated under fair value option and held
OT SAL.....eneieieiiecrtcc s 725 725 — 725 —
Commercial loans held for sale...........ccoccevoieiinieniecirieeeee 119 119 — 119 —
Consumer loans, net of allowance for credit 10Sses ........c..c.c........ 19,572 18,833 — — 18,833
Consumer loans held for sale:
Residential mortgages and home equity mortgages ................. 894 912 — 9 903
Other CONSUMET .......ccceviriirrinienieicieiceeieeeeeee e 71 71 — — 71
Financial liabilities:
Short-term financial Habilities ........c.cooveeviiiiciiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee $§ 2456 $ 2489 $ — $ 2462 27
Deposits:
Without fixed maturities ..........cceevvveeeieeiieeieecie e 112,009 112,009 — 112,009 —
FiXed Maturiti€s ........ooovviviveieeeeiie e 9,713 9,749 — 9,749 —
Deposits designated under fair value option ...........cccceceveneniennee 7,526 7,526 — 6,119 1,407
Non-derivative trading 1iabilities..........cccoceevercvererierinieseeiees 1,122 1,122 1,060 62 —
DIEIIVALIVES . ...eeiieeieeeeeeee ettt e e s e s eae e s eaaeeennaeeeas 4,535 4,535 8 4,511 16
Short-term borrowings designated under fair value option........... 2,672 2,672 — 2,672 —
Long-term debt .........ccoeoiriiiiniiiieincecree e 27,355 28,093 — 28,093 —
Long-term debt designated under fair value option ...........c.c........ 10,384 10,384 — 9,885 499
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Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis The following table presents information about our assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, and indicates the fair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine such fair value:

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Gross Net
March 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting®" Balance
(in millions)
Assets:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell® ...............coovovvvevevverer $ — 3 1,033 §$ — 3 1,033 $ — 3 1,033
Trading securities, excluding derivatives:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 3,576 239 — 3,815 — 3,815
Collateralized debt Obligations.........c.ceeveeeererierieieiineee e — — 184 184 — 184
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOTtEages .........ccoevevieeriirieieereieeeeeee st eeeeeee — 88 — 88 — 88
StUAEnt 10ANS ......veviirieieiieicceerecec e — 85 — 85 — 85
Corporate and other domestic debt SECurities..........ocevevrereereeerereenenns — — 2,884 2,884 — 2,884
Debt securities issued by foreign entities..........ocevevereeevreneereeerenereeenns — 4,404 — 4,404 — 4,404
Equity securities .. . — 12 — 12 — 12
Precious metals trading .........occeoveevveerieieenieieceeeeee s — 7,770 — 7,770 — 7,770
Derivatives:®
INtErest rate CONTIACTS.....ccuieiieriieeiieeiieeieeete et eee e aeebeeseae e saeeeneeens 42 24,166 — 24,208 — 24,208
Foreign exchange CONractS ...........evuevririeieirerieeeieeeee e eeeenes 37 18,684 17 18,738 — 18,738
EQUItY CONEIACES ....veuvevietiieieiieieieee ettt st enenne — 2,522 128 2,650 — 2,650
Precious metals CONLIACES ........cevirueueiriereueiriereinieetee et neeeneene 43 439 — 482 — 482
Credit CONMTACES. ......ecveeeieieitieeieie et eete et et e steete b e steese e b e re e e e ssesseessesseennn — 1,060 192 1,252 — 1,252
Other CONrACtS™ ...........oovveeceeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeese e eseeeeees — — 6 6 — 6
DErivatives NEHINE .....oevveeerieiiieieieeeeeiieeste ettt et see e neenenes — — — — (43,286) (43,286)
TOtal AETIVALIVES ...t 122 46,871 343 47,336 (43,286) 4,050
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 26,333 10,551 — 36,384 — 36,884
Asset-backed securities:
— 59 — 59 — 59
— 400 107 507 — 507
— 307 — 307 — 307
— 154 — 154 — 154
. — 507 — 507 — 507
TOAl ASSELS.....vuiiierieireeieetetei ettt et $ 30,031 $ 72,480 $ 3,518 § 106,029 $ (43,286) $ 62,743
Liabilities: -
DOMESHE AEPOSIES™......vvvveeeerreraeeeeerreesesesssssssssseeeesssssssesssssssssssseeesssssenes $ — $ 6346 $ 1216 $ 7,562 $ — 8§ 7562
Trading liabilities, excluding derivatives .. 762 93 — 855 — 855
Derivatives:®
INtErest rate CONTIACTS.....ccuieiierieeiieeieeiee et see et e eeebeeseae e e saaeeneeens 96 24,192 — 24,288 — 24,288
Foreign eXchange CONractS ...........evvevreirieieirienieceteeceee s eeeenes 7 17,532 17 17,556 — 17,556
EQUItY CONEIACES ....veuvevietiieieiieieieeee ettt ettt see e neenenee — 1,831 107 1,938 — 1,938
Precious metals CONLIACES ........cervrueueiriereuiiriereeneeeiee et seseeeseeneeeneene 29 710 — 739 — 739
Credit CONMTACES. ......ecveeeieieitieeieie et eeeere et et e ste et beeteesee b e sree e e ssesssessenseenen — 1,075 11 1,086 — 1,086
Other contracts™ ..... . — — 32 32 — 32
DErivatives NEHINE ....couevveeereeiirieieirierieiiee ettt st see e neenenes — — — — (41,717) (41,717)
TOtal AETIVALIVES ...t 132 45,340 167 45,639 (41,717) 3,922
ShOTt-term BOTOWINES™ .......coovrrreeesreeeseeeeseeeseisss s — 3,079 — 3,079 — 3,079
LONZAEIM AEBD ...ooooooeeeeieeeeei et — 11,001 558 11,559 — 11,559
Total Habilities. ......cueuevirieueiniereiieiecietcceee e $ 894 $§ 65859 $ 1,941 $ 68,694 $ (41,717) $ 26,977

60



HSBC USA Inc.

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Gross Net
December 31, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Balance Netting™ Balance
(in millions)
Assets:
Securities purchased under agreements to resell® $ — 3 770 8 $ 770 $ — 3 770
Trading securities, excluding derivatives:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 3,560 246 3,806 — 3,806
Collateralized debt obligations...........coeueueervereirnieiirinereirreiceneeecens — — 184 184 — 184
Asset-backed securities:
Residential MOTtZAZES .......cvevevvrveveiririeinirieiirinieecereeteeseeieee e — 96 96 — 96
Student loans ........c.cccoeveeeeunnneee. . — 85 85 — 85
Corporate and other domestic debt securities...........cecvververveereriereenenene — — 2,884 2,884 — 2,884
Debt securities issued by foreign entities..........c.cocveeeeereccrnccnneenens — 3,597 3,597 — 3,597
EQUILY SECUTTHIES w.ovvevveviiinierieteieierietetetee sttt se et eaesnenaeseesensens — 15 15 — 15
Precious metals trading .........cooeeeeririeenniecrnieccreniecerece e — 1,772 1,772 — 1,772
Derivatives:®
INtErest rate CONTIACTS.....ccvievieriieeiieiieete et ettt e et eere et e eveeaeeeeaeens 36 32,163 1 32,200 — 32,200
Foreign eXchange CONtIACES ........c.coueurueueririeueenieteeninieitereereteeeeeresesaenenens 24 24,014 18 24,056 — 24,056
EQUILY CONTACES ...evvevveiiiiieiieteieieit ettt et se b nnens — 2,171 159 2,330 — 2,330
Precious metals contracts . 81 1,038 1,119 — 1,119
Credit CONMTACES.......ccvievieierieteeeeete ettt et ets v ere s sbeereeene e — 1,342 208 1,550 — 1,550
Other CONtracts™ ............ccoooorveeiieireceeseee e — — 5 5 — 5
Derivatives NELHNE .....c.cccoveueuiririereinirieicrieeeieenetee sttt saeaenens — — — (56,256) (56,256)
TOtAl AETIVALIVES ... 141 60,728 391 61,260 (56,256) 5,004
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies and sponsored enterprises..... 25,145 10,924 36,069 — 36,069
Asset-backed securities:
HOME QUILY ...ttt — 61 61 — 61
OBhET ..ottt sttt — — 105 105 — 105
Debt securities issued by foreign entities..........cccocveveeeerercccnnecnneenens — 521 521 — 521
EQUILY SECUTTTIES ..euvevveviiinieiieteieietteteteecee sttt se et eaesnenaeseesenaens — 154 154 — 154
LOANS™ ..ot reevecimsesses s esses st st st e — 725 725 — 725
TOLAl ASSELS...c.vvineierieirieteietreet ettt $ 28846 $§ 79,694 $ 3564 $ 112,104 $ (56,256) $ 55,848
Liabilities: -
DOMESHE AEPOSTES ... oo eenean $ — $ 6119 $ 1407 $ 7526 $ — $ 7,526
Trading liabilities, excluding derivatives ...........c.coeccerereennecrnnccnnnenes 1,060 62 1,122 — 1,122
Derivatives:®
INtErest rate CONTIACTS.....ccuieiieiieeiieiie et e et et et eeere et e eveeaeeeeaeens 84 32,568 32,652 — 32,652
Foreign exchange contracts. 6 22,658 18 22,682 — 22,682
EQUILY CONTACES ...cvvevveiiiiieiieteieieetetei ettt naens — 1,714 161 1,875 — 1,875
Precious metals CONIACES ........cvveveeriruereririeieinieiecninetceneetceeeeeieesaenenens 13 867 880 — 880
Credit CONMIACES.......ccvieveeeietieteeee ettt ettt et ereere s sbeeae s e — 1,354 15 1,369 — 1,369
Other CONtracts™ ............ccooooiveeeeeereceeseee e — — 14 14 — 14
Derivatives NELHNE .....c.cccoveueuiririereinirieicrieeeieenetee sttt saeaeaens — — — (54,937) (54,937)
TOtAl AETIVALIVES ... 103 59,161 208 59,472 (54,937) 4,535
Short-term BOrTOWINES? ..........oervveereeeeeeeeseeeesseeeeses s eeseesesseessseens — 2,672 2,672 — 2,672
Long-term debt@ ..........ovvevveeeeeeeeeeeseeee e — 9,885 499 10,384 — 10,384

Total liabilities $ 1,163 $§ 77,899 § 2,114 $§ 81,176 $ (54,937) $ 26,239

(]
2
3)

“)
®)

Represents counterparty and cash collateral netting which allow the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain conditions are met.
See Note 9, "Fair Value Option," for additional information.

Includes trading derivative assets of $3,581 million and $4,411 million and trading derivative liabilities of $3,169 million and $3,786 million at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, as well as derivatives held for hedging and commitments accounted for as derivatives.

Consists of swap agreements entered into in conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Class B Shares.

Includes certain commercial loans held for sale which we have elected to apply the fair value option. See Note 6, "Loans Held for Sale," for further information.
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Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of each reporting period.

Transfers between Level I and Level 2 measurements There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the three months
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.

Information on Level 3 assets and liabilities The following table summarizes additional information about changes in the fair
value of Level 3 assets and liabilities during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. As a risk management practice,
we may risk manage the Level 3 assets and liabilities, in whole or in part, using securities and derivative positions that are classified
as Level 1 or Level 2 measurements within the fair value hierarchy. Since those Level 1 and Level 2 risk management positions
are not included in the table below, the information provided does not reflect the effect of such risk management activities related
to the Level 3 assets and liabilities.

Total Realized /
Unrealized Gains
(Losses) Included in

Current
Other Period
Compre- Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Jan. 1, hensive Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Mar. 31, Gains
2017 Earnings Income ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2017 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations ..........ccccceeunee $ 184 $ 3 3 — $ — % — 5 A3 s — 8 — 3 184 § 2
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities... 2,884 — — — — — — — 2,884 —

Derivatives, net:®

Interest rate contracts............ 1 (€)) — — — — — — — 1

Foreign exchange contracts.. — — — — — — — — — —

Equity contracts ............c.c.... ?2) 27 —_ — — “@ — — 21 23

Credit contracts.... 193 5) — — — (@) — — 181 13)

Other contracts™ ................. ) — — — amn — — — (26) —
Other asset-backed securities

available-for-sale® ............. 105 2 — — — — — — 107 2

Total asSets......ccovverververerrenennns $ 3356 8§ 26 $ — 8§ — 8 an s 149 s — 3 — §$ 3351 § 13
Liabilities:
Domestic deposits®............... $(1,407) $ 5) $ 5 8 — $ @43) s 191 $ 3 s 46 $ (1,216) $ @
Long-term debt® ................... (499) 26) 5) — (84) 15 ) 43 (558) 27
Total liabilities .........c.ccccceeunee $(1,906) $ [R2IV) — $ — $ (@127) $ 2006 $ 5) $ 89 §$ (1,774) $ (31)
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Total Realized /
Unrealized Gains
(Losses) Included in

Current
Other Period
Compre- Transfers  Transfers Unrealized
Jan. 1, hensive Purch- Issu- Settle- Into Out of Mar. 31, Gains
2016 Earnings Income ases ances ments Level 3 Level 3 2016 (Losses)
(in millions)
Assets:
Trading assets, excluding
derivatives:
Collateralized debt
obligations.................... $ 221 $ 3) $ —$ — % — 3 6) $ — 8 — $ 210 8 (6)
Corporate and other
domestic debt securities 2,870 ?2) — 5 — — — — 2,873 2)
Derivatives, net:®
Interest rate contracts......... 1 — — — — — — — 1 —
Foreign exchange
CONLTACES .o — — — — — — — — — —
Equity contracts................. (83) 24 — — — 4 1 (@) (55) 24
Credit contracts.................. 179 2 — — — (@) — — 177 (13)
Mortgage servicing rights®.. 140 (16) — — — (7) — — 117 (16)
Total assets......coovrverereeernennn. $ 3,328 § 3% — 3 5% — $ (13 3 1 (1) $ 3323 § (13)
Liabilities:
Domestic deposits™.............. $(1,867) $ (53) 8 — $ — $ (64 $ 8 § ®) 3 55 8 (1,849) 8 (50)
Long-term debt™ ................ (746) 26 — — (75) 65 — 84 (646) 23
Total liabilities..........covuuenn $(2,613) $ 27 $ — 8 — $ (139 $ 153 § ®) 3 139 $ (2,495 § (27)

1)
)

Gains (losses) on trading assets, excluding derivatives are included in trading revenue in the consolidated statement of income.

Level 3 net derivatives included derivative assets of $343 million and derivative liabilities of $167 million at March 31, 2017 and derivative assets of $391

million and derivative liabilities of $268 million at March 31, 2016. Gains (losses) on derivatives, net are predominantly included in trading revenue in the

consolidated statement of income.
?3)

()

(losses) on securities available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.

(O]

to credit spread is recorded in other comprehensive income.

(6)

Consists of swap agreements entered into in conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Class B Shares.

Realized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale are included in other securities gains, net in the consolidated statement income. Unrealized gains

See Note 9, "Fair Value Option," for additional information. Beginning January 1, 2017, unrealized gains (losses) on fair value option liabilities attributable

During the fourth quarter of 2016, we sold our remaining residential mortgage servicing rights portfolio to a third party. Gains (losses) on residential mortgage

servicing rights were included in residential mortgage banking revenue (expense) in the consolidated statement of income.
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The following table presents quantitative information about the unobservable inputs used to determine the recurring fair value
measurement of assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 fair value measurements at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

March 31, 2017
Fair Value
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Collateralized debt obligations ................ $ 184 Broker quotes or consensus Prepayment rates 1% - 6%
pricing and, where applicable,
discounted cash flows
Conditional default rates 6% - 8%
Loss severity rates 85%
Corporate and other domestic debt $ 2,884 Discounted cash flows Spread volatility on collateral assets 3% -4%
SECUTTEICS .ot
Correlation between insurance claim  80%
shortfall and collateral value
Interest rate derivative contracts.............. $ —  Market comparable adjusted for Probability to fund for rate lock 38% - 100%
probability to fund commitments
Foreign exchange derivative contracts"”) . $ —  Option pricing model Implied volatility of currency pairs 13% - 18%
Equity derivative contracts'” .................. $ 21 Option pricing model Equity / Equity Index volatility 9% - 44%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 45% - 80%
correlation
Equity dividend yields 0% - 14%
Credit derivative contracts...............e..... $ 181  Option pricing model and, where Issuer by issuer correlation of 82% - 83%
applicable, discounted cash flows  defaults
Credit default swap spreads 172bps - 190bps
Other derivative contracts.............c.oou..... $ (26) Discounted cash flows Conversion rate 1.6 times
Expected duration 3 -5 years
Other asset-backed securities available- $ 107 Discounted cash flows Market assumptions related to yields 1% - 4%
FOr-8ale....eveieciiiieiieccecne for comparable instruments
Domestic deposits $ (1,216) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 13% - 18%
(structured deposits) " ..., flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 9% - 44%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 45% - 80%
correlation
Long-term debt (structured notes)™@ _.... $ (558) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 13% - 18%

flows
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December 31, 2016
Fair Value
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Significant Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Collateralized debt obligations ................ $ 184  Broker quotes or consensus pricing ~ Prepayment rates 1% - 6%
and, where applicable, discounted
cash flows
Conditional default rates 6% - 8%
Loss severity rates 85%
Corporate and other domestic debt $ 2,884 Discounted cash flows Spread volatility on collateral assets 3% - 4%
SCCULTHICS «.evveveveneieieiiirieieierieiee e
Correlation between insurance claim  80%
shortfall and collateral value
Interest rate derivative contracts.............. $ 1 Market comparable adjusted for Probability to fund for rate lock 38% - 100%
probability to fund commitments
Foreign exchange derivative contracts” . $ —  Option pricing model Implied volatility of currency pairs 15% - 21%
Equity derivative contracts™ ................... $ (2) Option pricing model Equity / Equity Index volatility 11% - 49%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 45% - 57%
correlation
Equity dividend yields 0% - 14%
Credit derivative contracts ..............ccc...... $ 193  Option pricing model and, where Issuer by issuer correlation of 82% - 83%
applicable, discounted cash flows defaults
Credit default swap spreads 150bps - 173bps
Other derivative contracts..............coeveuee $ (9) Discounted cash flows Conversion rate 1.6 times
Expected duration 3 -5 years
Other asset-backed securities available- $ 105 Discounted cash flows Market assumptions related to yields 1% - 4%
fOr-5ale......cvviveieiiie e for comparable instruments
Domestic deposits $ (1,407) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 15% - 21%
(structured deposits) " ........cooocorvnennne. flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 11% - 49%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 45% - 57%
correlation
Long-term debt (structured notes) V@ ... $ (499) Option adjusted discounted cash Implied volatility of currency pairs 15%-21%
flows
Equity / Equity Index volatility 11% - 49%
Equity / Equity and Equity / Index 45% - 57%
correlation

O

@

We are the client-facing entity and we enter into identical but opposite derivatives to transfer the resultant risks to our affiliates. With the exception of
counterparty creditrisks, we are market neutral. The corresponding intra-group derivatives are presented as equity derivatives and foreign exchange derivatives
in the table.

Structured deposits and structured notes contain embedded derivative features whose fair value measurements contain significant Level 3 inputs.

Significant Unobservable Inputs for Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Collateralized Debt Obligations ("CDOs")

Prepayment rate - The rate at which borrowers pay off the mortgage loans early. The prepayment rate is affected by a number
of factors including the location of the mortgage collateral, the interest rate type of the mortgage loans, borrowers' credit and
sensitivity to interest rate movement. The prepayment rate of our CDOs portfolio is close to the mid-point of the range.

Default rate - Annualized percentage of default rate over a group of collateral such as residential or commercial mortgage

loans. The default rate and loss severity rate are positively correlated. The default rate of our portfolio is tilted towards the
low end of the range.

Loss severity rate - Included in our Level 3 CDOs portfolio are trust preferred securities which had a loss severity rate of 85
percent at March 31, 2017.

Derivatives

Implied volatility - The implied volatility is a significant pricing input for freestanding or embedded options including equity,
foreign currency and interest rate options. The level of volatility is a function of the nature of the underlying risk, the level of
strike price and the years to maturity of the option. Depending on the underlying risk and tenure, we determine the implied
volatility based on observable input where information is available. However, substantially all of the implied volatilities are
derived based on historical information. The implied volatility for different foreign currency pairs is between 13 percent and
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18 percent while the implied volatility for equity/equity or equity/equity index is between 9 percent and 44 percent, respectively,
at March 31, 2017. Although implied foreign currency volatility and equity volatility appear to be widely distributed at the
portfolio level, the deviation of implied volatility on a trade-by-trade basis is narrower. The average deviation of implied
volatility for the foreign currency pair and at-the-money equity option are 2 percent and 5 percent, respectively, at March 31,
2017.

*  Correlations of a group of foreign currency or equity - Correlation measures the relative change in values among two or more
variables (i.e., equity or foreign currency pair). Variables can be positively or negatively correlated. Correlation is a key input
in determining the fair value of a derivative referenced to a basket of variables such as equities or foreign currencies. A majority
of the correlations are not observable, but are derived based on historical data. The correlation between equity/equity and
equity/equity index was between 45 percent and 80 percent at March 31, 2017.

Sensitivity of Level 3 Inputs to Fair Value Measurements

Collateralized debt obligations - Probability of default, prepayment speed and loss severity rate are significant unobservable inputs.
Significant increase (decrease) in these inputs will result in a lower (higher) fair value measurement of a collateralized debt
obligation. A change in assumption for default probability is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in loss severity,
and a directionally opposite change in prepayment speed.

Corporate and domestic debt securities - The fair value measurement of certain corporate debt securities is affected by the fair
value of the underlying portfolios of investments used as collateral and the make-whole guarantee provided by third party guarantors.
The probability that the collateral fair value declines below the collateral call threshold concurrent with the guarantors' failure to
perform its make whole obligation is unobservable. The increase (decrease) in the probability the collateral value falls below the
collateral call threshold is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in default probability of the guarantor.

Credit derivatives - Correlation of default among a basket of reference credit names is a significant unobservable input if the credit
attributes of the portfolio are not within the parameters of relevant standardized CDS indices. Significant increase (decrease) in
the default correlation will result in a lower (higher) fair value measurement of the credit derivative. A change in assumption for
default correlation is often accompanied by a directionally similar change in default probability and loss rates of other credit names
in the basket. For certain credit derivatives, the credit spreads of credit default swap contracts insuring asset backed securities is
a significant unobservable input. Significant increase (decrease) in the credit spreads will result in a lower (higher) fair value
measurement of the credit derivative.

Equity and foreign exchange derivatives - The fair value measurement of a structured equity or foreign exchange derivative is
primarily affected by the implied volatility of the underlying equity price or exchange rate of the paired foreign currencies. The
implied volatility is not observable. Significant increase (decrease) in the implied volatility will result in a higher (lower) fair value
of a long position in the derivative contract.

Other derivatives - The fair value of the swap agreements we entered into in conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Class B
Shares is dependent upon the final resolution of the related litigation. Significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement include estimated changes in the conversion rate of Visa Class B Shares into Visa Class A Shares and the expected
timing of the final resolution. An increase (decrease) in the loss estimate or timing in the resolution of the related litigation would
result in a higher (lower) fair value measurement of the derivative.

Other asset-backed securities available-for-sale - The fair value measurement of certain asset-backed securities is primarily affected
by estimated yields which are determined based on current market yields of comparable instruments adjusted for market liquidity.
An increase (decrease) in the yields would result in a decrease (increase) in the fair value measurement of the securities.

Significant Transfers Into and Out of Level 3 Measurements During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we transferred
$46 million of domestic deposits and $43 million of long-term debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 3 to
Level 2 as aresult of the embedded derivative no longer being unobservable as the derivative option is closer to maturity and there
is more observability in short term volatility. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31, 2017, we transferred $3
million of domestic deposits, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 2 to Level 3 as a result of a change in the
observability of underlying instruments that resulted in the embedded derivative being unobservable.

During the three months ended March 31, 2016, we transferred $55 million of domestic deposits and $84 million of long-term
debt, which we have elected to carry at fair value, from Level 3 to Level 2 as a result of the embedded derivative no longer being
unobservable as the derivative option is closer in maturity and there is more observability in short term volatility. Additionally,
during the three months ended March 31, 2016, we transferred $8 million of domestic deposits, which we have elected to carry at
fair value, from Level 2 to Level 3 as aresult of a change in the observability of underlying instruments that resulted in the embedded
derivative being unobservable.
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Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis Certain financial and non-financial assets are measured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis and therefore, are not included in the tables above. These assets include (a) mortgage and
commercial loans classified as held for sale reported at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and (b) impaired loans or assets
that are written down to fair value based on the valuation of underlying collateral during the period. These instruments are not
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustment in certain circumstances (e.g., impairment).
The following table presents the fair value hierarchy level within which the fair value of the financial and non-financial assets has
been recorded at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. The gains (losses) during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016 are also included.

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Total Gains (Losses)
at March 31, 2017 For the Three
Months Ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total March 31, 2017

(in millions)

Residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans held for

SALE™! ..o $ — 8 1§ 95 3$ 9 $ 4
COoNSUMET 10ANS......cccuiiiiiieiieiiicie et et — 10 — 10 “)
Commercial loans held for sale® ...........oooooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenne — 80 — 80 a1
Impaired commercial 10ans™..............coocovvrimooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeann. — — 359 359 64
Real estate OWNEd®™ .........oooveeeereeeeee oo eeeeen — 16 — 16 2
Total assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis............ccc.c...... $ — $ 107 $ 454 $ 561 S 65

Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements Total Gains (Losses)
at December 31, 2016 For the Three
Months Ended
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total March 31, 2016

(in millions)

Reside(gtial mortgage and home equity mortgage loans held for

SALE et $ — $ 6 § 769 $ 775 % (33)
ConSUMET 10ANS)........oovieeeeeees e e e enen — 46 — 46 ®)]
Commercial loans held for sale® ...........cooooovieiviereeereees — 79 — 79 27
Impaired commercial 10ans™...........c...cccoooooerirriinriinniiennes — — 278 278 (183)
Real estate oWNed™ ............coouoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — 17 — 17 1
Total assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis................c...... $ — $ 148 $ 1,047 $ 1,195 § (247)

(O]

)

3)
“)

®)

At March 31,2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of the loans held for sale was below cost. Certain residential mortgage and home equity mortgage
loans held for sale have been classified as Level 3 fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy, including certain residential mortgage and home
equity mortgage loans which were transferred to held for sale during 2016 for which significant inputs in estimating fair value were unobservable and, to a
lesser extent, certain residential mortgage loans held for sale for which the underlying real estate properties used to determine fair value are illiquid assets
as a result of market conditions. Additionally, the fair value of these properties is affected by, among other things, the location, the payment history and the
completeness of the loan documentation.

Represents residential mortgage loans held for investment whose carrying amount was reduced during the periods presented based on the fair value of the
underlying collateral. Total gains (losses) for the three months ended March 31, 2016 include amounts recorded on loans that were subsequently transferred
to held for sale.

At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of the loans held for sale was below cost.

Certain commercial loans have undergone troubled debt restructurings and are considered impaired. As a matter of practical expedient, we measure the
credit impairment of a collateral-dependent loan based on the fair value of the collateral asset. The collateral often involves real estate properties that are
illiquid due to market conditions. As a result, these loans are classified as a Level 3 fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy.

Real estate owned is required to be reported on the balance sheet net of transactions costs. The real estate owned amounts in the table above reflect the fair
value unadjusted for transaction costs.
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The following tables present quantitative information about non-recurring fair value measurements of assets and liabilities classified
with Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

At March 31, 2017

Significant
Fair Value Unobservable Range of
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Inputs
Residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans held for Third party appraisal valuation
SALE ...ttt ettt ettt $ 95 based on estimated loss severities, Loss severity rates 0% - 100%
Valuation of third party appraisal
Impaired commercial 10ans.............ccccoeveveveieieeieieeeieecee 359  on underlying collateral Loss severity rates 0% - 100%
At December 31, 2016
Significant
Fair Value Unobservable Range of
Financial Instrument Type (in millions) Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Inputs
Residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans held for Third party appraisal valuation
SALE ...ttt ene s $ 769 based on estimated loss severities, Loss severity rates 0% - 100%
including collateral values and Market discount
market discount rate rate 8% - 14%
Valuation of third party appraisal
Impaired commercial 10ans..........c.ccccocveirieecenieiennineeeeeen 278 onunderlying collateral Loss severity rates 4% - 100%

Significant Unobservable Inputs for Non-Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans held for sale represent residential mortgage and home equity mortgage
loans which were transferred to held for sale during 2016 and, to a lesser extent, subprime residential mortgage loans which were
previously acquired with the intent of securitizing or selling them to third parties. The weighted average loss severity rate for
residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans held for sale was approximately 40 percent at March 31, 2017. These severity
rates are primarily impacted by the value of the underlying collateral securing the loans.

Impaired loans represent commercial loans. The weighted average severity rate for these loans was approximately 34 percent at
March 31, 2017. These severity rates are primarily impacted by the value of the underlying collateral securing the loans.

Valuation Techniques Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value
and for estimating fair value for those financial instruments not recorded at fair value for which fair value disclosure is required.

Short-term financial assets and liabilities - The carrying amount of certain financial assets and liabilities recorded at cost is
considered to approximate fair value because they are short-term in nature, bear interest rates that approximate market rates, and
generally have negligible credit risk. These items include cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks, customer
acceptance assets and liabilities, short-term borrowings and dividends payable.

Federal funds sold and purchased and securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements - We record certain
securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements at fair value. The fair value of these resale and repurchase
agreements is determined using market rates currently offered on comparable transactions with similar underlying collateral and
maturities.

The remaining federal funds sold and purchased and securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements are
recorded at cost. A majority of these transactions are short-term in nature and, as such, the recorded amounts approximate fair
value. For transactions with long-dated maturities, fair value is based on dealer quotes for instruments with similar terms and
collateral.

Loans - Except for certain commercial loans held for sale for which the fair value option has been elected, we do not record loans
at fair value on a recurring basis. From time to time, we record impairments to loans. The write-downs can be based on observable
market price of the loan, the underlying collateral value or a discounted cash flow analysis. In addition, fair value estimates are
determined based on the product type, financial characteristics, pricing features and maturity.

*  Consumer loans held for sale — Consumer loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. The fair
value estimates of consumer loans held for sale are determined primarily using the discounted cash flow method using
assumptions consistent with those which would be used by market participants in valuing such loans. Valuation inputs include
estimates of prepayment rates, default rates, loss severities, collateral values and market rates of return. Where available, such
inputs are derived from or corroborated by observable market data. We also may hold discussions on value directly with
potential investors. Since some loan pools may have features which are unique, the fair value measurement processes use
significant unobservable inputs which are specific to the performance characteristics of the various loan portfolios. Where
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available, we measure residential mortgage whole loans held for sale based on transaction prices of loan portfolios of similar
characteristics observed in the whole loan market. Adjustments are made to reflect differences in collateral location, loan-to-
value ratio, FICO scores, vintage year, default rates, the completeness of the loan documentation and other risk characteristics.

Commercial loans held for sale - Commercial loans held for sale (that are not designated under FVO as discussed below) are
recorded at the lower of amortized cost or fair value. The fair value estimates of commercial loans held for sale are determined
primarily using observable market consensus pricing obtained from independent sources, relevant broker quotes or observed
market prices of instruments with similar characteristics. We also may hold discussions on value directly with potential investors.

Commercial loans held for sale designated under FVO — We record certain commercial loans held for sale at fair value. Where
available, fair value is based on observable market consensus pricing obtained from independent sources, relevant broker
quotes or observed market prices of instruments with similar characteristics. Where observable market parameters are not
available, fair value is determined based on contractual cash flows adjusted for estimates of prepayment rates, expected default
rates and loss severity discounted at management's estimate of the expected rate of return required by market participants. We
also consider loan specific risk mitigating factors such as collateral arrangements in determining the fair value estimate.

Commercial loans — Commercial loans and commercial real estate loans are valued by discounting the contractual cash flows,
adjusted for prepayments and the borrower's credit risk, using a discount rate that reflects the current rates offered to borrowers
of similar credit standing for the remaining term to maturity and, when applicable, our own estimate of liquidity premium.

Commercial impaired loans — Generally represents collateral dependent commercial loans with fair value determined based
on pricing quotes obtained from an independent third party appraisal.

Consumer loans — The estimated fair value of our consumer loans were determined by developing an approximate range of
value from a mix of various sources as appropriate for the respective pool of assets. These sources included estimates from an
HSBC affiliate which reflect over-the-counter trading activity, trading input from other market participants which includes
observed primary and secondary trades, where appropriate, the impact of current estimated rating agency credit tranching
levels with the associated benchmark credit spreads as well as general discussions held directly with potential investors. Since
some loan pools may have features which are unique, the fair value measurement processes use significant unobservable inputs
which are specific to the performance characteristics of the various loan portfolios. For revolving products, the estimated fair
value excludes future draws on the available credit line as well as other items and, therefore, does not include the fair value
of the entire relationship.

We perform analytical reviews of fair value changes on a quarterly basis and periodically validate our valuation methodologies
and assumptions based on the results of actual sales of loans with similar characteristics. In addition, from time to time, we
may engage a third party valuation specialist to measure the fair value of a pool of loans. Portfolio risk management personnel
provide further validation through discussions with third party brokers and other market participants.

Lending-related commitments - The fair value of commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and financial guarantees
are not included in the table. The majority of the lending related commitments are not carried at fair value on a recurring basis nor
are they actively traded. These instruments generate fees, which approximate those currently charged to originate similar
commitments, which are recognized over the term of the commitment period. Deferred fees on commitments and standby letters
of credit totaled $51 million and $49 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

Precious metals trading - Precious metals trading primarily includes physical inventory which is valued using spot prices.

Securities - Where available, debt and equity securities are valued based on quoted market prices. If a quoted market price for the
identical security is not available, the security is valued based on quotes from similar securities, where possible. For certain
securities, internally developed valuation models are used to determine fair values or validate quotes obtained from pricing services.
The following summarizes the valuation methodology used for our major security classes:

U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agency issued or guaranteed and obligations of U.S. state and political subdivisions — As
these securities transact in an active market, fair value measurements are based on quoted prices for the identical security or
quoted prices for similar securities with adjustments as necessary made using observable inputs which are market corroborated.

U.S. Government sponsored enterprises — For government sponsored mortgage-backed securities which transact in an active
market, fair value measurements are based on quoted prices for the identical security or quoted prices for similar securities
with adjustments as necessary made using observable inputs which are market corroborated. For government sponsored
mortgage-backed securities which do not transact in an active market, fair value is determined primarily based on pricing
information obtained from pricing services and is verified by internal review processes.

Asset-backed securities, including collateralized debt obligations — Fair value is primarily determined based on pricing
information obtained from independent pricing services adjusted for the characteristics and the performance of the underlying
collateral.

Other domestic debt and foreign debt securities (corporate and government) - For non-callable corporate securities, a credit
spread scale is created for each issuer. These spreads are then added to the equivalent maturity U.S. Treasury yield to determine

69



HSBC USA Inc.

current pricing. Credit spreads are obtained from the new market, secondary trading levels and dealer quotes. For securities
with early redemption features, an option adjusted spread model is incorporated to adjust the spreads determined above.
Additionally, we survey the broker/dealer community to obtain relevant trade data including benchmark quotes and updated
spreads.

*  Equity securities — Fair value measurements are determined based on quoted prices for the identical security.

The following tables provide additional information relating to asset-backed securities as well as certain collateralized debt
obligations held at March 31, 2017:

Trading asset-backed securities:

Rating of Securities:" Collateral Type: Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
AAA -A Residential mortgages - Alt A......................... $ 41 8 — § 41
Residential mortgages - Subprime ... 32 — 32
Student 10ans .........ccceeeveeeiieiiecie e, 85 — 85
Total AAA -A.eooeeeeeeeeee e 158 — 158
BBB -B ..o Collateralized debt obligations............c.......... — 184 184
CCC-Unrated......cccoevreeereenennenenes Residential mortgages - Subprime ................. 15 — 15
$ 173 $ 184 $ 357
Available-for-sale securities backed by collateral:
Rating of Securities:" Collateral Type: Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)
AAA A Home equity - Alt A.......cccooveuicinicinicinicnnes $ 59§ — 3 59
Other....ooviiieiecieeceeeeeee e 400 107 507
Total AAA -A o, $ 459 $ 107 § 566

M We utilize S&P as the primary source of credit ratings in the tables above. If S&P ratings are not available, ratings by Moody's and Fitch are used in that order.

Ratings for collateralized debt obligations represent the ratings associated with the underlying collateral.

Derivatives — Derivatives are recorded at fair value. Asset and liability positions in individual derivatives that are covered by
legally enforceable master netting agreements, including receivables (payables) for cash collateral posted (received), are offset
and presented net in accordance with accounting principles which allow the offsetting of amounts.

Derivatives traded on an exchange are valued using quoted prices. OTC derivatives, which comprise a majority of derivative
contract positions, are valued using valuation techniques. The fair value for the majority of our derivative instruments are determined
based on internally developed models that utilize independently corroborated market parameters, including interest rate yield
curves, option volatilities, and currency rates. For complex or long-dated derivative products where market data is not available,
fair value may be affected by the underlying assumptions about, among other things, the timing of cash flows, expected exposure,
probability of default and recovery rates. The fair values of certain structured derivative products are sensitive to unobservable
inputs such as default correlations of the referenced credit and volatilities of embedded options. These estimates are susceptible
to significant change in future periods as market conditions change.

We use the OIS curves as the base discounting curve for measuring the fair value of all derivatives, both collateralized and
uncollateralized, and apply a FFVA to reflect the estimated present value of the future market funding cost or benefit associated
with funding uncollateralized derivative exposure at rates other than the OIS rate. The FFVA is calculated by applying future
market funding spreads to the expected future funding exposure of any uncollateralized component of the OTC derivative portfolio.
The expected future funding exposure is calculated by a simulation methodology, where available, and is adjusted for events that
may terminate the exposure, such as the default of HUSI or the counterparty.

Significant inputs related to derivative classes are broken down as follows:

*  Credit Derivatives — Use credit default curves and recovery rates which are generally provided by broker quotes and various
pricing services. Certain credit derivatives may also use correlation inputs in their model valuation. Correlation is derived
using market quotes from brokers and various pricing services.

» Interest Rate Derivatives — Swaps use interest rate curves based on currency that are actively quoted by brokers and other
pricing services. Options will also use volatility inputs which are also quoted in the broker market.
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*  Foreign Exchange ("FX") Derivatives — FX transactions, to the extent possible, use spot and forward FX rates which are
quoted in the broker market. Where applicable, we also use implied volatility of currency pairs as inputs.

*  Equity Derivatives — Use listed equity security pricing and implied volatilities from equity traded options position.

*  Precious Metal Derivatives — Use spot and forward metal rates which are quoted in the broker market.

As discussed earlier, we make fair value adjustments to model valuations in order to ensure that those values represent appropriate
estimates of fair value. These adjustments, which are applied consistently over time, are generally required to reflect factors such
as bid-ask spreads and counterparty credit risk that can affect prices in arms-length transactions with unrelated third parties. Such
adjustments are based on management judgment and may not be observable.

We estimate the counterparty credit risk for financial assets and own credit standing for financial liabilities (the "credit risk
adjustments") in determining the fair value measurement. For derivative instruments, we calculate the credit risk adjustment by
applying the probability of default of the counterparty to the expected exposure, and multiplying the result by the expected loss
given default. We also take into consideration the risk mitigating factors including collateral agreements and master netting
agreements in determining credit risk adjustments. We estimate the implied probability of default based on the credit spread of the
specific counterparty observed in the credit default swap market. Where credit default spread of the counterparty is not available,
we use the credit default spread of a specific proxy (e.g. the credit default swap spread of the counterparty's parent). Where specific
proxy credit default swap is not available, we apply a blended approach based on a combination of credit default swaps referencing
to credit names of similar credit standing and the historical rating-based probability of default.

Real estate owned - Fair value is determined based on third party appraisals obtained at the time we take title to the property and,
if less than the carrying amount of the loan, the carrying amount of the loan is adjusted to the fair value. The carrying amount of
the property is further reduced, if necessary, at least every 45 days to reflect observable local market data, including local area
sales data.

Structured notes and deposits — Structured notes and deposits are hybrid instruments containing embedded derivatives and are
elected to be measured at fair value in their entirety under fair value option accounting principles. The valuation of hybrid instruments
is predominantly driven by the derivative features embedded within the instruments and own credit risk. The valuation of embedded
derivatives may include significant unobservable inputs such as correlation of the referenced credit names or volatility of the
embedded option. Cash flows of the funded notes and deposits in their entirety, including the embedded derivatives, are discounted
at the relevant interest rates for the duration of the instrument adjusted for our own credit spreads. The credit spreads so applied
are determined with reference to our own debt issuance rates observed in primary and secondary markets, internal funding rates,
and the structured note rates in recent executions.

Long-term debt — We elected to apply fair value option to certain own debt issuances for which fair value hedge accounting
otherwise would have been applied. These own debt issuances elected under FVO are traded in secondary markets and, as such,
the fair value is determined based on observed prices for the specific instrument. The observed market price of these instruments
reflects the effect of our own credit spreads. The credit spreads applied to these instruments were derived from the spreads at the
measurement date.

For long-term debt recorded at cost, fair value is determined based on quoted market prices where available. If quoted market
prices are not available, fair value is based on dealer quotes, quoted prices of similar instruments, or internally developed valuation
models adjusted for own credit risks.

Deposits — For fair value disclosure purposes, the carrying amount of deposits with no stated maturity (e.g., demand, savings, and
certain money market deposits), which represents the amount payable upon demand, is considered to generally approximate fair
value. For deposits with stated maturities, fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using market interest rates currently
offered on deposits with similar characteristics and maturities.
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18. Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The following supplements, and should be read together with, the disclosure in Note 27, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in
our 2016 Form 10-K. Only those matters with significant updates and new matters since our disclosure in our 2016 Form 10-K
are reported herein.

In addition to the matters described below and in our 2016 Form 10-K, in the ordinary course of business, we are routinely named
as defendants in, or as parties to, various legal actions and proceedings relating to activities of our current and/or former operations.
These legal actions and proceedings may include claims for substantial or indeterminate compensatory or punitive damages, or
for injunctive relief. In the ordinary course of business, we also are subject to governmental and regulatory examinations,
information-gathering requests, investigations and proceedings (both formal and informal), certain of which may result in adverse
judgments, settlements, fines, penalties, injunctions or other relief. In connection with formal and informal inquiries by these
regulators, we receive numerous requests, subpoenas and orders seeking documents, testimony and other information in connection
with various aspects of our regulated activities.

In view of the inherent unpredictability of legal matters, including litigation, governmental and regulatory matters, particularly
where the damages sought are substantial or indeterminate or when the proceedings or investigations are in the early stages, we
cannot determine with any degree of certainty the timing or ultimate resolution of such matters or the eventual loss, fines, penalties
or business impact, if any, that may result. We establish reserves for litigation, governmental and regulatory matters when those
matters present loss contingencies that are both probable and can be reasonably estimated. Once established, reserves are adjusted
from time to time, as appropriate, in light of additional information. The actual costs of resolving litigation and regulatory matters,
however, may be substantially higher than the amounts reserved for those matters.

For the legal matters disclosed below, including litigation and governmental and regulatory matters, as well as for the legal matters
disclosed in Note 27, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in our 2016 Form 10-K as to which a loss in excess of accrued liability
is reasonably possible in future periods and for which there is sufficient currently available information on the basis of which
management believes it can make a reliable estimate, we believe a reasonable estimate could be as much as $340 million for HUSI.
The legal matters underlying this estimate of possible loss will change from time to time and actual results may differ significantly
from this current estimate.

Based on the facts currently known, in respect of each of the below investigations as well as for the investigations disclosed in
Note 27, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in our 2016 Form 10-K, it is not practicable at this time for us to determine the
terms on which these ongoing investigations will be resolved or the timing of such resolution. As matters progress, it is possible
that any fines and/or penalties could be significant.

Given the substantial or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters, and the inherent unpredictability of such matters,
an adverse outcome in certain of these matters could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements in
any particular quarterly or annual period.

Credit Card Litigation The U.S. Supreme Court denied the petition for writ of certiorari in March 2017.

Salveson v. JPMorgan Chase et al. (N.D.Cal. No. 13-CV-5816) Plaintiff filed a petition for writ of certiorari with the U.S. Supreme
Court in March 2017.

Foreign Exchange ("FX") Matters

U.S. Litigation In March 2017, the court dismissed the retail customers' complaint in response to defendants' joint motion to
dismiss and the "indirect" FX purchasers filed an amended complaint in response.

Precious Metals Fix Matters

Platinum and Palladium Fix Litigation Defendants' motion to dismiss the second amended consolidated complaint was granted
in part and denied in part in March 2017.

Madoff Litigation

In December 2008, Bernard L. Madoff ("Madoftf") was arrested and ultimately pleaded guilty to running a Ponzi scheme and a
trustee was appointed for the liquidation of his firm, Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC ("Madoff Securities"), an SEC-
registered broker-dealer and investment adviser. Various non-U.S. HSBC companies provided custodial, administration and similar
services to a number of funds incorporated outside the United States whose assets were invested with Madoff Securities. Plaintiffs
(including funds, funds investors and the Madoff Securities trustee, as described below) have commenced Madoff-related
proceedings against numerous defendants arising out of Madoff Securities' fraud.

In April 2017, the parties submitted a certification to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit to review the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court's decision in Picard v. HSBC et al (Bankr S.D.N.Y. No. 09-01364), granting the motion to dismiss the trustee's claims against
a number of defendants, including a number of foreign affiliates of HSBC Bank USA.
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In March 2017, the court granted the HSBC defendants' motion to dismiss in Hau Yin To v. HSBC Bank plc, et al. (15-cv-3590).
Plaintiffs appealed the decision.

There are many factors that may affect the range of possible outcomes, and the resulting financial impact, of the various Madoft-
related proceedings including, but not limited to, the circumstances of the fraud, the multiple jurisdictions in which proceedings
have been brought and the number of different plaintiffs and defendants in such proceedings. The timing and resolution of these
matters remains uncertain. It is possible that any liabilities that may arise as a result could be significant. In any event, we consider
that we have good defenses to these claims and will continue to defend them vigorously.

Supranational, Sovereign and Agency ("SSA") Bonds

In April 2017, HSBC Holdings, HSBC Bank plc, HSI and HSBC Bank USA, among other banks, were named as defendants in a
putative class action complaint alleging a conspiracy to manipulate the market for U.S. dollar-denominated SSA bonds between
2005 to the present in violation of the federal antitrust laws. This action is at an early stage.

Benchmark Rate Litigation

Defendants filed a motion to dismiss in Frontpoint Asian Event Driven Fund, L.P, et al. v Citibank, N.A., et al. (Case No. 15-
cv-05263), relating to alleged collusion by defendant banks to rig the Singapore Interbank Offering Rate and the Singapore Swap
Offer Rate.

Mortgage Securitization Matters

In addition to the repurchase risk described in Note 16, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Repurchase Agreements,"
HSBC Bank USA has also been involved as a sponsor/seller of loans used to facilitate whole loan securitizations underwritten by
HSI. During 2005-2007, HSBC Bank USA purchased and sold $24 billion of whole loans to HSI which were subsequently
securitized and sold by HSI to third parties. The outstanding principal balance on these loans was approximately $4.5 billion and
$4.6 billion at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

Participants in the U.S. mortgage securitization market that purchased and repackaged whole loans have been the subject of lawsuits
and governmental and regulatory investigations and inquiries, which have been directed at groups within the U.S. mortgage market,
such as servicers, originators, underwriters, trustees or sponsors of securitizations, and at particular participants within these groups.
We expect activity in this area to continue. As a result, we may be subject to additional claims, litigation and governmental and
regulatory scrutiny related to our participation in the U.S. mortgage securitization market, either individually or as a member of
a group. As the industry's residential mortgage foreclosure issues continue, HSBC Bank USA has taken title to a number of
foreclosed homes as trustee on behalf of various securitization trusts. As nominal record owner of these properties, HSBC Bank
USA has been sued by municipalities and tenants alleging various violations of law, including laws regarding property upkeep
and tenants' rights. While we believe and continue to maintain that the obligations at issue and any related liability are properly
those of the servicer of each trust, we continue to receive significant and adverse publicity in connection with these and similar
matters, including foreclosures that are serviced by others in the name of "HSBC, as trustee."

HSBC Bank USA and certain of our affiliates have been named as defendants in a number of actions in connection with residential
mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS") offerings, which generally allege that the offering documents for securities issued by
securitization trusts contained material misstatements and omissions, including statements regarding the underwriting standards
governing the underlying mortgage loans.

As noted previously, in December 2016, we had an initial discussion with the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ"), wherein the
DOJ stated its preliminary view that we are subject to liability under the Financial Industry Reform, Recovery and Enforcement
Act in connection with certain RMBS securitizations from 2005 to 2007. In March 2017, we provided our response to the DOJ,
which, amongst other things, outlined why we disagree with the DOJ's preliminary view. Discussions are ongoing.

Foreclosure Practices

In March 2017, the monitor of the national mortgage settlement filed with the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia his
Final Consumer Relief Report validating that our and our affiliates' obligation under the settlement to provide $370 million in
consumer relief has been satisfied.

Anti-Money Laundering, Bank Secrecy Act and Office of Foreign Assets Control Matters

Jeffrey Siegel, et al. v. HSBC Holdings plc, et al. In April 2017, plaintiffs filed an amended complaint and voluntarily dismissed
HUSI, HSI, and HSBC Finance as defendants.

Ramiro Giron, et al. v. Hong Kong and Shanghai Bank Company, Ltd., et al. In January 2017, the court issued an order denying
plaintiffs' motion for leave to file a fourth amended complaint.

Saul Martinez, et al. v. Deutsche Bank AG, et al. In April 2017, the court granted defendants' motion to transfer the action to the
U.S District Court for the Eastern District of New York.
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Telephone Consumer Protection Act Litigation

In March 2017, the putative class action Monteleone v. HSBC Finance Corporation, et al. was dismissed and consolidated with
another putative class action pending in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California and an amended complaint
has been filed. Ahmed and Monteleone v. HSBC Bank USA, National Association (Case 5:16-cv-02057). The consolidated action
alleges that the defendants contacted plaintiffs, or the members of the class that they seek to represent, on their cellular telephones
using an automatic telephone dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice, without prior express consent or despite revocation
of prior consent, in violation of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. §227 et seq. Plaintiffs seeks statutory damages
of up to $1,500 for each violation.

19. New Accounting Pronouncements

The following new accounting pronouncements were adopted effective January 1, 2017:

Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities Measured Under the Fair Value Option
InJanuary 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an ASU which, for financial liabilities measured
under the fair value option, requires recognizing the change in fair value attributable to our own credit in other comprehensive
income. We elected to early adopt this guidance, which required a cumulative effect adjustment to the consolidated balance
sheet, resulting in a reclassification from retained earnings to accumulated other comprehensive loss of an after tax gain of
approximately $174 million as of January 1, 2017. The adoption of this guidance did not require financial statements for
periods prior to 2017 to be restated.

Compensation - Stock Compensation In March 2016, the FASB issued an ASU that requires all excess tax benefits and
tax deficiencies for share-based payment awards to be recorded within income tax expense in the statement of income,
rather than directly to additional paid-in capital, and for excess tax benefits to be classified as an operating activity in the
statement of cash flows. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our financial position and results
of operations.

The following are accounting pronouncements which will be adopted in future periods:

Recognition of Revenue from Contracts with Customers In May 2014, the FASB issued an ASU which provides a principles-
based framework for revenue recognition. Additionally, the ASU requires improved disclosures to help users of financial
statements better understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue that is recognized. The core principle
of the five-step revenue recognition framework is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. While the ASU as originally issued was scheduled to be effective for all annual and
interim periods beginning January 1, 2017, in August 2015, the FASB deferred the effective date by one year. We intend to
apply the ASU retrospectively with the cumulative effect of adoption recognized in equity at the date of initial application.
We have conducted an analysis of the potential impact the new ASU may have on our operations. We currently believe the
scope of the new guidance will be limited to certain revenues classified as fee based income and do not expect the adoption
of this guidance will have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement (Excluding Financial Liabilities Measured Under the Fair
Value Option) In January 2016, the FASB issued an ASU which changes aspects of its guidance on classification and
measurement of financial instruments. The ASU requires equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity
method or those that result in consolidation) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income.
Under a practicability exception, entities may measure equity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values
at cost adjusted for changes in observable prices minus impairment. Under this exception, a qualitative assessment for
impairment will be required and, if impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investments must be adjusted to their fair
value and an impairment loss recognized in net income. Additionally, the ASU requires new disclosure related to equity
investments and modifies certain disclosure requirements related to the fair value of financial instruments. The ASU is
effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2018 and the guidance should be applied by recording a
cumulative effect adjustment to the balance sheet or, as it relates to equity investments without readily determinable fair
values, prospectively. We currently do not expect the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Leases In February 2016, the FASB issued an ASU which requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use
asset on its balance sheet for all leases, including operating leases, with a term greater than 12 months. Lease classification
will determine whether a lease is reported as a financing transaction in the income statement and statement of cash flows.
The ASU does not substantially change lessor accounting, but it does make certain changes related to leases for which
collectability of the lease payments is uncertain or there are significant variable payments. Additionally, the ASU makes
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several other targeted amendments including a) revising the definition of lease payments to include fixed payments by the
lessee to cover lessor costs related to ownership of the underlying asset such as for property taxes or insurance; b) narrowing
the definition of initial direct costs which an entity is permitted to capitalize to include only those incremental costs of a
lease that would not have been incurred if the lease had not been obtained; c) requiring seller-lessees in a sale-leaseback
transaction to recognize the entire gain from the sale of the underlying asset at the time of sale rather than over the leaseback
term; and d) expanding disclosures to provide quantitative and qualitative information about lease transactions. The ASU
is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2019 and is required to be applied retrospectively to the
earliest period presented at the date of initial application, with early adoption permitted. While we are evaluating the impact
the new guidance will have on our financial position and results of operations, we currently expect a gross-up of our balance
sheet as a result of recognizing lease liabilities and right of use assets. The extent of such gross-up remains to be determined
once we complete a review of our existing lease contracts and service contracts which may contain embedded leases. As
we have not yet completed our review, it is not practicable to quantify the impact of adopting the ASU at this time.

Financial Instruments - Credit Impairment In June 2016, the FASB issued an ASU that significantly changes how entities
will measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through
net income. The ASU requires entities to estimate and recognize an allowance for lifetime expected credit losses for loans
(including TDR Loans), held-to-maturity debt securities, off-balance sheet credit exposures and certain other financial assets
measured at amortized cost. The ASU also requires entities to recognize an allowance for credit losses on AFS debt securities
and revises the accounting model for purchased credit impaired loans and debt securities. Additionally, existing disclosures
will also be revised under the ASU. The ASU is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2020, with
early adoption permitted beginning January 1,2019, and is required to be applied by recording a cumulative effect adjustment
to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is effective. We have begun our
implementation efforts, leveraging our participation in support of HSBC's implementation of IFRS 9 where feasible, to
identify key interpretive issues and are assessing existing credit loss forecasting models and processes against the new
guidance to determine what modifications may be required. While we continue to evaluate the impact the new guidance
will have on our financial position and results of operations, we currently expect the new guidance will result in an increase
to our allowance for credit losses given the change to estimated losses over the contractual life of the loan portfolio as well
as the adoption of an allowance for debt securities. The amount of the increase to our allowance is still under review and
will depend, in part, upon the composition of our loan and held to maturity securities portfolios at the adoption date as well
as economic conditions and loss forecasts at that date. While early adoption is permitted beginning in the first quarter of
2019, we currently do not expect to elect early adoption.

Statement of Cash Flows - Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments In August 2016, the FASB issued
an ASU that provides targeted amendments to clarify how certain cash receipts and cash payments should be classified in
the statement of cash flows. Under the ASU, the portion of the cash payments attributable to accreted interest for the
settlement of zero-coupon bonds should be classified as cash outflows for operating activities rather than cash outflows for
financing activities. The ASU is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2018 and is required to
be applied retrospectively to all periods presented, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact
of adopting this ASU. While the new guidance will result in a change in classification in the statement of cash flows, it will
not have any impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Statement of Cash Flows - Restricted Cash In November 2016, the FASB issued an ASU that clarifies how restricted cash
and restricted cash equivalents should be presented in the statement of cash flows. The ASU requires entities to show the
changes in the total of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows.
The ASU is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1,2018 and is required to be applied retrospectively
to all periods presented, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this ASU. While
the new guidance will result in a change in classification in the statement of cash flows, it will not have any impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

Business Combinations - Clarifying the Definition of a Business In January 2017, the FASB issued an ASU which provides
clarification on the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether
transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The amendments in the ASU
provide a screen to determine when a set is not a business. The screen requires that when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired (or disposed of) is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable
assets, the set is not a business. This screen reduces the number of transactions that need to be further evaluated, and therefore
are considered businesses. The amendments also provide a framework to assist entities in evaluating whether both an input
and a substantive process are present. The ASU is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2018
and should be applied prospectively.

Goodwill Impairment Testing In January 2017, the FASB issued an ASU that simplifies the accounting for goodwill

impairment by removing step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. Under step 2, an entity was required to determine the fair

value of individual assets and liabilities of a reporting unit (including unrecognized assets and liabilities) using the procedure
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for determining fair values in a business combination. Under the new guidance, goodwill impairment will now be measured
at the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying amount, including those with a zero or negative carrying amount, exceeds
its fair value. Any resulting impairment is limited to the carrying amount of goodwill. An entity must also disclose the
amount of goodwill allocated to each reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount. The ASU is effective for all
annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2020 and is required to be applied prospectively with early adoption
permitted for any impairment tests performed after January 1, 2017. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have
a material impact on the results of our goodwill impairment testing, our financial position or results of operations.

*  Compensation - Retirement Benefits In March 2017, the FASB issued an ASU that requires the service cost component
of net periodic pension and postretirement benefit costs to be reported in the same line item as other employee compensation
costs while the other components of net periodic pension and postretirement benefit costs are required to be reported in the
statement of income separately from the service cost component. The ASU is effective for all annual and interim periods
beginning January 1, 2018 and is required to be applied retrospectively with early adoption permitted. We currently do not
expect the adoption of this guidance will have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

e Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities In March 2017, the FASB issued an ASU that shortens
the premium amortization period for purchased non-contingently callable debt securities by requiring the premium to be
amortized to the earliest call date, rather than the contractual maturity date. After the earliest call date, if the call option is
not exercised, the effective yield will be reset using the payment terms of the debt security. The new guidance does not
change the discount amortization period for purchased debt securities. The discount continues to be amortized to the
contractual maturity date. The ASU is effective for all annual and interim periods beginning January 1, 2019, with early
adoption permitted, and is required to be applied by recording a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the
beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is effective. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to
have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

There have been no additional accounting pronouncements issued that are expected to have or could have a material impact on
our financial position or results of operations.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed throughout this Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may make or approve certain statements in future filings with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), in press releases, or oral or written presentations by representatives of HSBC USA
Inc. ("HSBC USA" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HUSI") that are not statements of historical fact and may also constitute
forward-looking statements. Words such as "may," "will," "should," "would," "could," "appears," "believe," "intends," "expects,"
"estimates," "targeted," "plans," "anticipates,” "goal," and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements
but should not be considered as the only means through which these statements may be made. These matters or statements will
relate to our future financial condition, economic forecast, results of operations, plans, objectives, performance or business
developments and will involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from that which was expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements.

nn

nn

All forward-looking statements are, by their nature, subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Our
actual future results may differ materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements. While there is no assurance that
any list of risks and uncertainties or risk factors is complete, below are certain factors which could cause actual results to differ
materially from those in the forward-looking statements:

* uncertain market and economic conditions in the United States and abroad, including but not limited to, a decline in
housing prices, a decline in energy prices, unemployment levels, tighter credit conditions, changes in interest rates or a
prolonged period of low or negative interest rates, the availability of liquidity, consequences of unexpected geopolitical
events including the decision by the United Kingdom ("U.K.") to exit the European Union ("EU"), changes in consumer
confidence and consumer spending, and consumer perception as to the continuing availability of credit and price
competition in the market segments we serve;

» changes in laws and regulatory requirements;

» the potential impact of any legal, regulatory and policy changes effecting financial institutions and the global economy
as a result of the new Administration in the U.S. (the "Administration");

» the ability to deliver on our regulatory priorities;
* extraordinary government actions as a result of market turmoil;

» capital and liquidity requirements under Basel III, the Federal Reserve Board's ("FRB") Comprehensive Capital Analysis
and Review ("CCAR"), and the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 ("Dodd-Frank
Act") stress testing ("DFAST"), including the U.S. FRB requirements for U.S. global systemically important banks ("G-
SIBs") and U.S. intermediate holding companies ("IHCs") owned by non-U.S. G-SIBs to issue total loss-absorbing
capacity ("TLAC") instruments;

» regulatory requirements in the U.S. and in non-U.S. jurisdictions to facilitate the future orderly resolution of large financial
institutions;

» changes in central banks' policies with respect to the provision of liquidity support to financial markets;

» the ability of HSBC Holdings plc ("HSBC" and, together with its subsidiaries, "HSBC Group") and HSBC Bank USA,
National Association ("HSBC Bank USA") to fulfill the requirements imposed by the deferred prosecution agreements
with the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOI"), the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of New York, and the
U.S. Attorney's Office for the Northern District of West Virginia, our agreement with the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency, our other consent agreements as well as guidance from regulators generally;

» the use of us as a conduit for illegal activities without our knowledge by third parties;
» the ability to successfully manage our risks;
» the financial condition of our clients and counterparties and our ability to manage counterparty risk;

»  concentrations of credit and market risk, including exposure to Latin American corporate clients and the oil and gas
markets;

* increases in our allowance for credit losses and changes in our assessment of our loan portfolios;

» the ability to implement our business strategies;

» the ability to successfully implement changes to our operational practices as needed and/or required from time to time;
» damage to our reputation;
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+ the ability to attract and retain customers and to attract and retain key employees;

» theeffects of competition in the markets where we operate including increased competition for non-bank financial services
companies, including securities firms;

»  disruption in our operations from the external environment arising from events such as natural disasters, terrorist attacks,
global pandemics, or essential utility outages;

» afailure in or a breach of our operation or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third party servicers or vendors,
including as a result of cyberattacks;

» third party suppliers' and outsourcing vendors' ability to provide adequate services;

* losses suffered due to the negligence or misconduct of our employees or the negligence or misconduct on the part of
employees of third parties;

e afailure in our internal controls;

*  our ability to meet our funding requirements;

» adverse changes to our credit ratings;

» financial difficulties or credit downgrades of mortgage bond insurers;
*  our ability to cross-sell our products to existing customers;

» changes in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") and International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
accounting standards and their interpretation;

* heightened regulatory and government enforcement scrutiny of financial institutions, including in connection with sales
practices, account opening and closing procedures, customer and employee complaints and sales compensation structures
related to such practices;

» continued heightened regulatory scrutiny with respect to existing and future residential mortgage servicing and foreclosure
practices, with particular focus on loss mitigation, foreclosure prevention and outsourcing;

» changes in the methodology for determining benchmark rates;

» heightened regulatory and government enforcement scrutiny of financial markets, with a particular focus on foreign
exchange;

» the possibility of incorrect assumptions or estimates in our financial statements, including reserves related to litigation,
deferred tax assets and the fair value of certain assets and liabilities;

* model limitations or failure;

» the possibility of incorrect interpretations, application of or changes in tax laws to which we are subject;

» changes in bankruptcy laws to allow for principal reductions or other modifications to mortgage loan terms;

» additional financial contribution requirements to the HSBC North America Holdings Inc. ("HSBC North America")
pension plan;

» unexpected and/or increased expenses relating to, among other things, litigation and regulatory matters, remediation
efforts, penalties and fines; and

» the other risk factors and uncertainties described under Item 1A, "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2016 ("2016 Form 10-K").

Forward-looking statements are based on our current views and assumptions and speak only as of the date they are made. We
undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent circumstances or events. You should,
however, consider any additional disclosures of a forward-looking nature that arise after the date hereof as may be discussed in
any of our subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or Current Reports on Form 8-K.
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Executive Overview

HSBC USA is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC North America, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC. HUSI
may also be referred to in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A")
aS "We," "uS" OI' "Our_"

Economic Environment The U.S. economy continued its trend of slow growth during the first quarter of 2017. U.S. Gross
Domestic Product ("GDP") grew at an estimated annual rate of 0.7 percent in the first quarter of 2017, lower than 2016's GDP
annual growth rate of 1.6 percent, while inflation in the first quarter of 2017 ran above the Federal Reserve Board's ("FRB") 2.0
percent target inflation rate. In March 2017, the FRB increased short-term interest rates by 25 basis points after a similar rate
increase in December 2016 and indicated that it currently expects to increase short-term interest rates further during 2017, which
will continue to ease the pressure the prolonged period of low interest rates has had on spreads earned on our deposit base. The
U.S. economy added approximately 530 thousand jobs during the first quarter of 2017 and the total unemployment rate fell to 4.5
percent at March 2017 as compared with 4.7 percent at December 2016. However, a significant number of part-time workers
continue to seek full-time work and the number of discouraged people who have stopped looking for work remains elevated, as
evidenced by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics' U-6 unemployment rate of 8.9 percent at March 2017, as compared with a rate
of 9.2 percent at December 2016.

Despite the continued improvement of the U.S. economy, economic uncertainty remains high in many economies outside the U.S.,
including China as well as Latin America and in particular Brazil, where economic activity continues to be slow. In addition, the
decision by the United Kingdom to exit the EU as well as the new Administration in the U.S. along with other geopolitical events
and the implications of those events could potentially impact the capital markets and trade further adding to this global uncertainty.
In addition, the price of oil declined modestly and the U.S. dollar continued to be strong during the first quarter of 2017. The
sustainability of the economic recovery will be determined by numerous variables including consumer sentiment, energy prices,
credit market volatility, employment levels and housing market conditions which will impact corporate earnings and the capital
markets. These conditions in combination with global economic conditions, fiscal and monetary policy, geopolitical concerns and
the level of regulatory and government scrutiny of financial institutions will continue to impact our results in 2017 and beyond.

Performance, Developments and Trends The following table sets forth selected financial highlights of HSBC USA for the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 and at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)

INEE ITICOIIIE < e et e ettt e e eeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeteeeeeeeeaeeeaasaaaaaaaaaaannnes $ 296 $ 154
Rate of return on average: -
TOLAL @SSELS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e b e a ekt e a e bt e n e e eh e et e ehe e bt ene e teentenbeene e beeneenneas 6% 3%
Total risk WeIGtEd @SSELS......eoviriiieieieieie ettt 1.0 4
TOtal COMMON EQUILY . ...cveetiteiititetetet ettt ettt et et ettt b e sttt b e eennen 6.2 2.9
TOLAL EQUILY .« vttt ettt sttt ettt et e bt e bt et e bt eb e bt s bt st b et et e b et e e ennen 5.9 3.0
NEt INTETESE MATZII ..euveniiniiiieieieieteteeeie ettt ettt ettt ettt eae bt eaeebe et e s bt sae st e besaesaeneneneennen 1.31 1.39
EfFICIEIICY TALIO -ttt bbbttt ettt e b bbbt e b e b sb et et e b et e s e 68.0 65.1
Commercial net Charge-0fF 10 ... ee e e eeeraes 07 21
Consumer net charge-0ff FAtio!) ..o es e enaes 20 26

M Excludes loans held for sale.
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March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)

Additional Select Ratios:

Allowance as a percent 0f 10aN8" ...............coooiviimieeie e 1.32% 1.38%
Commercial allowance as a percent of 10ans") .............co..coourrvoroiereeceeeeeeeee e 1.69 1.72
Consumer allowance as a percent of 10an8™)..............cc..coooiviiiieeeee e 40 44
Consumer two-months-and-over contractual delinqUENCY ..........cooceeeerieriinieniiieeeeeeee e 2.51 4.05
L0anSs t0 dePOSits TAHOS') ............o..ovveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 69.35 75.67
Common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets...........ccocevvevierierieieiiniiniinrsee e 14.9 13.7
Tier 1 capital to risk Weighted @SSETS.......ccueiiiririiiiiiireeee et 16.0 14.5
Total capital to risk Weighted aSSELS........ccecvuiiuieiiitieiicieteceeee ettt b 19.8 18.3
TIET 1 LEVETAZE TALI0....c.ueeuieiieeieiietieieete st etesteetesteebesteesbeeseesseesseseessesseessesseessessaessesssessesssensenssensenss 9.6 9.2
Total SQUILY 10 tOtAl ASSELS .. .iiuiiiiiiriieiieiicteeie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e eaeeteeteeaesreesbesesebeessenseessereens 10.3 10.1

Select Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and interest bearing deposits With DankKs.............ccecieieriieieniieiinieie e $ 18907 § 21,473
TTAQING ASSELS ....veiuviitietietiete ettt ettt et e et e et e ete et e e teebeeteebeetseeseessaseesseaseesseeteensesssessesssessesssenseessenreens 22,823 16,850
Securities available-TOr-SAlE .............cc.oiiiiiiiiiiieeeiie et 37,911 36,910
Loans:

(OF0) 101 11 (o -1 N 1Q Y 1 TSRO 49,996 54,216

CONSUMET TOANS ...ttt et e e et e e et e e et e e s te e e e ateeeeaaeeeseateeeaaeeesenaeessseeesareeesanes 19,592 19,659
0] 71 B Lo o SRR 69,588 73,875
DIEPOSIES ...oouvieetitieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e te et e te et e te e b e etb et e eat e teerteabeeaaeeteebeereenbeatbebeersenbeersereens 129,258 129,248
m

Excludes loans held for sale.

@ Represents period end loans, net of allowance for loan losses, as a percentage of core deposits as calculated in accordance with Federal Financial Institutions

Examination Council guidelines which generally include all domestic demand, money market and other savings accounts, as well as time deposits with
balances not exceeding $250,000.

Net income was $296 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017 compared with $154 million during the three months
ended March 31, 2016. Income before income tax was $448 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017 compared
with $233 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016. The increase in income before income tax reflects a lower
provision for credit losses and higher other revenues, partially offset by higher operating expenses and lower net interest income.

Our reported results in all periods were impacted by certain items management believes to be significant, which distort comparability
between periods. Significant items are excluded to arrive at adjusted performance because management would ordinarily identify
and consider them separately to better understand underlying business trends. The following table summarizes the impact of these
significant items for all periods presented:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
Income before income tax, as TEPOTEA .........eevuerieruirierieieieee ettt ettt et e eaeseeenaesseeneesneens $ 448 $ 233
Fair value movement on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread™............c.coceoveunene. — (149)
COSES 10 ACHIEVE™D ...ttt e e e eee e st e e eee s s s e eeeeeeee 39 3
Gain on sale of Visa Inc. Class B common shares to a third party ..., (146) —
AdJusted PrformManCe ..............oo.oveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo e $ 341 $ 87
)

As discussed more fully in Note 19, "New Accounting Pronouncements," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, beginning January 1,2017,
the fair value movement on fair value option liabilities attributable to credit spread is recorded in common equity as a component of other comprehensive
income.

@ Reflects transformation costs to deliver the cost reduction and productivity outcomes outlined in the HSBC Investor Update in June 2015.

®  Represents a non-U.S. GAAP financial measure.
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Excluding the collective impact of the items in the table above, our adjusted performance during the three months ended March
31, 2017 increased $254 million compared with prior year period due to a lower provision for credit losses and higher other
revenues, partially offset by lower net interest income and higher operating expenses.

See "Results of Operations" for a more detailed discussion of our operating trends. In addition, see "Balance Sheet Review" for
further discussion on our asset and liability trends, "Liquidity and Capital Resources" for further discussion on funding and capital
and "Credit Quality" for additional discussion on our credit trends.

In March 2017, we sold 1,161,897 Visa Inc. ("Visa") Class B common shares ("Class B Shares") to a third party resulting in a net
pre-tax gain of approximately $146 million which was recorded as a component of other income (loss) in the consolidated statement
of income. Consistent with the Visa Class B Shares that were sold in 2016, under the terms of the sale agreement, we entered into
a swap agreement with the purchaser to retain the litigation risk associated with the Class B Shares sold until the related litigation
is settled and the Class B Shares can be converted into Class A Shares. The swap associated with this sale had a carrying value of
$17 million at March 31, 2017. As of March 31, 2017, we continued to hold approximately 1,230,039 Visa Class B Shares, which
are recorded at their original cost basis of zero and have an estimated fair value of approximately $150 million. See Note 8,
"Derivative Financial Instruments," and Note 16, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Repurchase Agreements," in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information about these transactions.

In March 2017, we completed the sale of certain residential mortgage loans which previously had been written down to the lower
of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell (generally 180 days past due) in accordance with our existing charge-
off policies and were transferred to held for sale during 2016. These residential mortgage loans were sold to a third party and had
an unpaid principal balance of $364 million (aggregate carrying value of $276 million) at the time of sale. We recognized a loss
on sale of approximately $2 million, largely reflecting transaction costs.

In addition to the residential mortgage loan sale discussed above, during the first quarter of 2017, we also sold a portion of the
portfolio of residential mortgage loans that we previously purchased from HSBC Finance Corporation ("HSBC Finance") and
transferred to held for sale during 2016. These residential mortgage loans were sold to a third party and had an unpaid principal
balance of $471 million (aggregate carrying value of $445 million) at the time of sale. We recognized a gain on sale of approximately
$43 million, including transaction costs. At March 31, 2017, the carrying amount of the remaining loans in this held for sale
portfolio totaled $93 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2016, PHH Mortgage Corporation ("PHH Mortgage") announced their decision to exit certain business
platforms by the end of the first quarter of 2018. As a result of this decision, we evaluated various options for our mortgage
fulfillment operations and have decided to insource a substantial portion of these operations. We currently do not anticipate PHH
Mortgage's decision will have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Our operations are focused on the core activities of our global businesses and the positioning of our activities towards international
connectivity strategies, including what we believe are our unique capabilities to serve clients in the North American Free Trade
Agreement trade corridor in order to improve profitability. We also continue to focus on cost optimization efforts to ensure realization
of cost efficiencies. To date, we have identified and implemented various opportunities to reduce costs through organizational
structure redesign, vendor spending, discretionary spending and other general efficiency initiatives which have resulted in workforce
reductions. Additional cost reduction opportunities have been identified and are in the process of implementation. These efforts
continue and, as a result, we may incur restructuring charges in future periods, the amount of which will depend upon the actions
that ultimately are implemented. We also continue to evaluate our overall operations as we seek to optimize our risk profile and
cost efficiencies as well as our liquidity, capital and funding requirements. This could result in further strategic actions that may
include changes to our legal structure, asset levels, cost structure or product offerings in support of HSBC's strategic priorities.
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Basis of Reporting

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ("U.S. GAAP").

Group Reporting Basis We report financial information to HSBC in accordance with HSBC Group accounting and reporting
policies, which apply International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the IASB and as endorsed by the EU
and, as a result, our segment results are prepared and presented using financial information prepared on the basis of HSBC Group's
accounting and reporting policies ("Group Reporting Basis"). Because operating results on the Group Reporting Basis are used in
managing our businesses and rewarding performance of employees, our management also separately monitors profit before tax
under this basis of reporting. The following table reconciles our U.S. GAAP versus Group Reporting Basis profit before tax:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016
(in millions)
Profit before tax — U.S. GAAP DASIS ....eeoviiuieiieiesieeieieetee ettt ettt et e saeesesnaessesnnensennnens S 448 § 233
Adjustments:
L0ans held O SALE.......ouiiiiiiiiii ettt (111) 36

Structured notes and deposits.......c.cccceerveereeennnnn. 49) —
Pension and other postretirement benefit costs ... 5 6
Loan impairment 13) (33)
LitiGAtI0N EXPEIISE ....ouvevinrriieiiieiiteeeeteee ettt ettt ettt b e s s s bbbt et b e 16 —
PLOPETLY ..o e e s s 5) (5)
Low income housing and other tax credit investments'" ................cccocorvurrvrrveereerenes s 12 3
OBRCT ..ttt ettt ettt e b b e ettt ettt ene s 1 7
Profit before tax — Group Reporting Basis ........c.ccocevireriiiiiiiniiiiininnenecseereet et $ 304 $ 247

M Under the Group Reporting Basis, given the inter-relationship between the tax benefits obtained from our investment in low income housing and other tax

credit investments and the amortization of our investment balance, such amounts are presented net in other operating income. Under U.S. GAAP, such
amounts are presented net in income tax expense.

The significant differences between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting Basis impacting our results presented in the table above
are discussed in more detail within "Basis of Reporting" in our 2016 Form 10-K. Other than the change discussed below, there
have been no other significant changes since December 31, 2016 in the differences between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting
Basis impacting our results.

Structured notes and deposits - Structured notes and deposits are classified as trading liabilities under the Group Reporting Basis
and are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in earnings. We elected to apply fair value option accounting to
these structured notes and deposits under U.S. GAAP. Beginning January 1, 2017, the adoption of new accounting guidance under
U.S. GAAP requires the fair value movement on fair value option liabilities, including structured notes and deposits, attributable
to credit spread to be recorded in other comprehensive income.
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Balance Sheet Review

We utilize deposits and borrowings from various sources to provide liquidity, fund our balance sheet, meet cash and capital needs,
and fund investments in subsidiaries. The following table provides balance sheet totals at March 31,2017 and increases (decreases)
since December 31, 2016:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2016

March 31, 2017 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)
Period end assets:

Short-term INVESLMENLS ....c..cveiiieiiriiriierenterteet ettt $ 49,457 $ (2,039) (4.0)%
LOANS, NET ...ttt s 68,667 (4,191) (5.8)
Loans held for Sale ......c..coueiiiiiiiiiiieee e 806 (1,003) (55.4)
TTAAINE ASSELS .. .veueeuteieenieiei ettt ettt sttt ettt e e st et eseebeebeebesbeetesbesaens 22,823 5,973 354
SECUITLIES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ebe b bbb e 51,226 1,507 3.0
AL OtHET ASSELS .uvveeivieiieiiieriie et eree et e ste et esbeebeeseaeesseessaeebeesssesnseesssaenseenes 8,604 35 4

$ 201,583 3 282 1 %

Period end liabilities and equity:

TOAL AEPOSIES ...ttt sttt ettt sttt be e s e st saenea $ 129,258 $ 10 — %
Trading Habilities ........ccoveuerieeriirieirencrcsc e 4,024 (884) (18.0)
Short-term DOTTOWINES .....c.veuieuiiiiiiiriiriniieeniereeer ettt 5,438 337 6.6
Long-term debt.........cccoueiiiiiiiiiiiiieiesereee et 37,803 64 2
Interest, taxes and other labilities.........cc.coererererienienienieicieeecceeecseeese e 4,386 436 11.0
TOLAl ©QUILY. ..ttt ettt sttt et be b beebesbesbesaea 20,674 319 1.6

$ 201,583 3 282 1 %

Short-Term Investments Short-term investments include cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits with banks and federal
funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell. Balances may fluctuate from period to period depending upon our
liquidity position at the time and our strategy for deploying liquidity. Short-term investments decreased compared with
December 31, 2016 reflecting a redeployment of liquidity into precious metal inventory positions and securities.
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Loans, Net The following table summarizes our loan balances at March 31, 2017 and increases (decreases) since December 31,
2016:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2016

March 31, 2017 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Commercial loans:

Real estate, including CONStIUCHION .......ccererrerrerienienieieieieieeeeeeeene e $ 10,802 $ (88) (.8)%
Business and corporate banking............cceeeeeveireieienieenieenieesieeseesiee e 13,152 (928) (6.6)
G1obal BANKING™ P ... 22,527 (954) (4.1)
Other commercial® ............co..ooviiieeieeeeee e 3,515 (2,250) (39.0)
Total COMMETICIAL......c.eeeieeieiieiiee ettt enees 49,996 (4,220) (7.8)
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTtZAZES ....c.ceveueriririririinerertetenent ettt 17,219 38 2
Home equity MOTEZAZES ......coueeuiruiriiriieiieierie ettt ettt st 1,344 (64) (4.5)
Credit CArdS ..o 646 (42) 6.1)
OFheT CONSUIMET .....cveuitinieiiietenieierteiereete ettt sttt ettt et et seeuesaeneseenesaenea 383 1 3
TOtAl CONSUIMET .....eeiitieiiieieie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e sneenaesneenneenean 19,592 67) (.3)
TOAL JOANS ...ttt ettt ettt b e st sesens 69,588 (4,287) (5.8)
Allowance for Credit LOSSES ........ceerireririineneriinteteeeteree ettt e 921 (96) 9.4)
LLOANS, NMET .ttt ettt sttt ettt eb bbbt b et se s $ 68,667 $ (4,191) (5.8)%

(" Represents large multinational firms including globally focused U.S. corporate and financial institutions, U.S. dollar lending to multinational banking clients
managed by HSBC on a global basis and complex large business clients supported by GB&M relationship managers.

@ During the first quarter of 2017, in conjunction with the creation of the new Corporate Center segment as discussed further in Note 13, "Business Segments,"
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, we reclassified loans to HSBC affiliates from global banking to other commercial and revised the
prior period to conform with the current year presentation. As a result, other commercial includes loans to HSBC affiliates which totaled $939 million and
$3,274 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

Commercial loans decreased compared with December 31, 2016 due to lower loans to affiliates as well as paydowns and maturities
exceeding new loan originations as we continue to focus efforts on improving returns. During the first quarter of 2017, HSBC
Finance prepaid the $2.5 billion that was outstanding under our credit agreement with it. The decline in commercial non-affiliate
loans was primarily in the health care, real estate, energy and utilities industries.

Consumer loans decreased slightly compared with December 31, 2016 driven by a decline in home equity mortgages due to net
paydowns as our focus continues to shift towards residential mortgage loans and lower credit card receivables reflecting seasonal
paydowns. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in residential mortgage loans as we continue to target new residential
mortgage loan originations towards our Premier and Advance customer relationships and sell newly originated conforming loans
to PHH Mortgage.

The following table presents loan-to-value ("LTV") ratios for our residential mortgage loan portfolio, excluding mortgage loans
held for sale:

LTV Ratios”®
March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

First Lien Second Lien First Lien Second Lien
LTV S 8B0%0. ettt 97.1% 84.9% 96.8% 83.6%
80% LTV <90%...cuioiiiiiiieieieiceeceeteeeeee et 1.7 9.1 1.9 9.7
90% < LTV < 100%...ccuiiiiiiiiiiiriceeieeeeeee e 7 4.2 .8 4.8
LTV 2 1000 ettt S 1.8 5 1.9
Average LTV for portfolio.........ccoccevierieienieieieeeeee e 52.4 55.6 52.8 56.4

M LTVs for first liens are calculated using the loan balance as of the reporting date. LTVs for second liens are calculated using the loan balance as of the
reporting date plus the senior lien amount at origination. Current estimated property values are derived from the property's appraised value at the time of
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loan origination updated by the change in the Federal Housing Finance Agency's house pricing index ("HPI") at either a Core Based Statistical Area or state
level. The estimated value of the homes could differ from actual fair values due to changes in condition of the underlying property, variations in housing
price changes within metropolitan statistical areas and other factors. As a result, actual property values associated with loans that end in foreclosure may be
significantly lower than the estimates used for purposes of this disclosure.
@ Current estimated property values are calculated using the most current HPIs available and applied on an individual loan basis, which results in an approximate
three month delay in the production of reportable statistics. Therefore, the information in the table above reflects current estimated property values using
HPIs at December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2016, respectively.

Loans Held for Sale The following table summarizes loans held for sale at March 31, 2017 and increases (decreases) since
December 31, 2016:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2016

March 31, 2017 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Commercial loans:

Real estate, including construction ... .S — 3 17 (100.0)%
Business and corporate banking..... 5 5 *
Global banking 632 (195) (23.6)
Total COMMETCIAL.....c..eoiiiieiiiiiiie e 637 (207) (24.5)
Consumer loans:
Residential MOTtZAZES ....c.ceveueeuiriiriiiieiiiterie ettt 99 (791) (88.9)
Home equity MOTtZAZES ....c.coceeueruiririiriinierientetententeteteeeeeitee et sre e — 4 (100.0)
Other CONSUIMET ....euteiieiieiieiieieeieet sttt ettt ettt be e 70 (1) (1.4)
TOtAl CONSUIMET ...ttt ettt ettt sb et 169 (796) (82.5)
Total loans held fOr Sale..........ceueiiiiiiiiiiiree e $ 806 $ (1,003) (55.4)%

* Not meaningful.

Commercial loans held for sale decreased compared with December 31, 2016. Commercial loans held for sale primarily consists
of certain global banking loans that we have elected to designate under the fair value option which include loans that we originate
in connection with our participation in a number of syndicated credit facilities with the intent of selling them to unaffiliated third
parties as well as loans that we purchase from the secondary market and hold as hedges against our exposure to certain total return
swaps. The fair value of these loans totaled $507 million and $725 million at March 31,2017 and December 31,2016, respectively.
Balances will fluctuate from period to period depending on the volume and level of activity.

Commercial loans held for sale also includes certain loans that we no longer intend to hold for investment and transferred to held
for sale which totaled $130 million and $102 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. During the three
months ended March 31,2017 and 2016, we recorded lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustments associated with the write-
down of commercial loans held for sale of $1 million and $26 million, respectively, as a component of other income (loss) in the
consolidated statement of income.

Consumer loans held for sale decreased compared with December 31, 2016. As previously disclosed, during the first quarter of
2016, we determined we no longer have the intent to hold for investment certain residential mortgage loans which had been written
down to the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell (generally 180 days past due) in accordance with
our existing charge-off policies. These loans were largely originated by us prior to the implementation of our Premier strategy. As
aresult of this decision, during 2016, we transferred residential mortgage loans to held for sale with a total unpaid principal balance
of approximately $568 million at the time of transfer. The carrying value of these loans prior to transfer, after considering the fair
value of the property less costs to sell, was approximately $473 million, including related escrow advances.

In March 2017, we completed the sale of these residential mortgage loans which had an unpaid principal balance of $364 million
(aggregate carrying value of $276 million) at the time of sale to a third party and recognized a loss on sale of approximately $2
million, largely reflecting transaction costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we reversed $5 million of the lower
of amortized cost or fair value adjustment previously recorded on these loans as a component of other income (loss) in the
consolidated statement of income as a result of an increase in fair value due to improved pricing.

In addition to the residential mortgage loans discussed above, during the third quarter of 2016, we determined we no longer have
the intent to hold for investment a portfolio of residential mortgage loans that we previously purchased from HSBC Finance, along
with any home equity mortgage balances associated with these loans. As a result of this decision, during the third quarter of 2016,
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we transferred residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans to held for sale with a total unpaid principal balance of
approximately $648 million at the time of transfer. The carrying value of these loans prior to transfer, after considering the fair
value of the property less costs to sell, as applicable, was approximately $628 million, including accrued interest.

During the first quarter of 2017, we sold a portion of this portfolio of residential mortgage loans which had an unpaid principal
balance of $471 million (aggregate carrying value of $445 million) at the time of sale to a third party and recognized a gain on
sale of approximately $43 million, including transaction costs. At March 31, 2017, the carrying amount of the remaining loans in
this held for sale portfolio totaled $93 million. During the three months ended March 31,2017, we recorded $1 million of additional
lower of amortized cost or fair value adjustment on this portfolio of loans as a component of other income (loss) in the consolidated
statement of income as a result of changes in the pricing of the portion of loans which were sold and in the estimated pricing on
the remaining loans which were not sold. As we plan to sell the remaining loans to third party investors, fair value represents the
price we believe a third party investor would pay to acquire the loans.

We also continue to sell all our agency eligible residential mortgage loan originations servicing released directly to PHH Mortgage.
Residential mortgage loans held for sale also includes subprime residential mortgage loans with a fair value of $2 million and $3
million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, which were previously acquired from unaffiliated third parties
and from HSBC Finance with the intent of securitizing or selling the loans to third parties.

Other consumer loans held for sale reflects student loans which we no longer originate.

Excluding the commercial loans designated under fair value option discussed above, loans held for sale are recorded at the lower
of amortized cost or fair value, with adjustments to fair value being recorded as a valuation allowance through other revenues.
The valuation allowance on consumer loans held for sale was $10 million and $57 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31,
2016, respectively. The valuation allowance on commercial loans held for sale was $58 million and $55 million at March 31,2017
and December 31, 2016, respectively.

Trading Assets and Liabilities The following table summarizes trading assets and liabilities at March 31, 2017 and increases
(decreases) since December 31, 2016:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2016

March 31, 2017 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Trading assets:

SECUTIHES ! ... eveeesieeeessiseeisss s $ 11472 $ 805 7.5 %
Precious MEtals ..........cooiiiiiiiiiicccc e 7,770 5,998 *
DErIVAIVES, NP ...t 3,581 (830) (18.8)

$ 22,823 $ 5,973 354 %

Trading liabilities:

Securities sold, not yet purchased...........cccoecerieiinieiiiiee e $ 855 §$ (205) (19.3)%
Payables for precious metals............cccooeviviiiiiiiiiiii — (62) (100.0)
DETIVALIVES, NEE™) ..ot 3,169 (617) (16.3)

$ 4,024 $ (884) (18.0)%

* Not meaningful.
M See Note 2, "Trading Assets and Liabilities," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a breakout of trading securities by category.

@ AtMarch 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of derivatives included in trading assets has been reduced by $3,783 million and $4,462 million,
respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the obligation to return cash collateral received under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

®  AtMarch 31,2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair value of derivatives included in trading liabilities has been reduced by $3,184 million and $3,826 million,
respectively, relating to amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral paid under master netting agreements with derivative counterparties.

Securities balances increased compared with December 31, 2016 due to an increase in foreign sovereign positions. Securities
positions are held as economic hedges of interest rate and credit derivative products issued to clients of domestic and emerging
markets. Balances of securities sold, not yet purchased decreased compared with December 31,2016 driven by a decrease in short
U.S. Treasury positions related to economic hedges of derivatives in the interest rate trading portfolio.

Precious metals trading assets increased compared with December 31, 2016 due to increases in our own silver and gold inventory
positions, some of which are held as hedges for client activity, as well as higher spot prices. Payables for precious metals were
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lower reflecting a decrease in borrowing of silver inventory. Precious metal positions may not represent our net underlying exposure
as we may use derivatives contracts to reduce our risk associated with these positions, the fair value of which would appear in
derivatives in the table above.

Derivative asset and liability balances both decreased compared with December 31, 2016 mainly from market movements which
resulted in lower valuations of interest rate, foreign exchange, commodity and credit derivatives, partially offset by higher valuations
of equity derivatives.

Securities Securities include securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity. Securities balances increased compared
with December 31, 2016 reflecting net purchases of U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agency mortgage-backed and other asset-
backed securities as part of a continuing strategy to maximize returns while balancing the securities portfolio for risk management
purposes based on the current interest rate environment and liquidity needs.

All Other Assets All other assets includes properties and equipment, net and goodwill. All other assets increased compared with
December 31,2016 largely due to higher outstanding settlement balances related to security sales, partially offset by lower derivative
balances associated with hedging activities.

Deposits The following table summarizes deposit balances by major depositor categories at March 31, 2017 and increases
(decreases) since December 31, 2016:

Increase (Decrease) From
December 31, 2016

March 31, 2017 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Individuals, partnerships and COrporations...........c.eeeeereeieieneeeeineneseneneseene $ 112,188 § 1,898 1.7%
Domestic and foreign banks ..........ccceceevereririninenenienenecieeeeeeeese e 15,562 (2,010) (11.4)
U.S. government and states and political Subdivisions ..........cccceceecerverinirenennene 668 71 11.9
Foreign governments and official iInStitUtions.........cccevevveeeieieeenieniencnencneneenen 840 51 6.5
TOtAl AEPOSIES....vvieeeeieeeiceetecteee ettt ettt ettt ettt et te et seesenas $ 129,258 3 10 —%
Total COTe dePOSIES" ) ...........ovoveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo $ 100,175 $ 1,504 1.5%

M Core deposits, as calculated in accordance with Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council ("FFIEC") guidelines, generally include all domestic
demand, money market and other savings accounts, as well as time deposits with balances not exceeding $250,000.

Total deposits were flat compared with December 31, 2016 as growth in deposits from individuals driven by promotional rates
offered to our retail customers on savings accounts and certificates of deposit was offset by a decrease in wholesale time deposits
from maturities and lower commercial deposits largely due to seasonality as clients managed their cash needs at year-end. The
strategy for our core retail banking business includes building relationship deposits across multiple markets, channels and segments.
This strategy involves various initiatives, such as:

*  HSBC Premier, acomprehensive banking and wealth management proposition for the internationally minded mass affluent
customer with a dedicated premier relationship manager. Total Premier deposits increased to $25,913 million at March 31,
2017 as compared with $24,351 million at December 31, 2016; and

»  Expanding our existing customer relationships by needs-based sales of wealth, banking and mortgage products.
We continue to actively manage our balance sheet to increase profitability while maintaining adequate liquidity.

Short-Term Borrowings Short-term borrowings were higher compared with December 31, 2016 due primarily to an increase in
securities sold under repurchase agreements.

Long-Term Debt Long-term debt increased slightly compared with December 31, 2016 as the impact of debt issuances and fair
value movements on fair value option debt were largely offset by debt retirements. Debt issuances during the three months ended
March 31, 2017 totaled $1,691 million, of which none was issued by HSBC Bank USA.

Incremental issuances from our shelf registration statement with the SEC totaled $1,691 million of senior structured notes during
the three months ended March 31, 2017. Total long-term debt outstanding under this shelf was $22,751 million and $22,235 million
at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

Total debt outstanding under HSBC Bank USA Global Bank Note Program was $4,428 million and $4,443 million at March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. We anticipate using the Global Bank Note Program more in the future as part of our
efforts designed to minimize overall funding costs while accessing diverse funding channels.

Borrowings from the FHLB totaled $4,900 million and $5,700 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.
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Interest, Taxes and Other Liabilities Interest, taxes and other liabilities increased compared with December 31,2016 due primarily
to higher outstanding settlement balances related to security purchases and an increase in tax liabilities, partially offset by lower
margin requirements related to futures trading.

Results of Operations

Net Interest Income Net interest income is the total interest income on earning assets less the total interest expense on deposits
and borrowed funds. In the discussion that follows, interest income and rates are presented and analyzed on a taxable equivalent
basis to permit comparisons of yields on tax-exempt and taxable assets. An analysis of consolidated average balances and interest
rates on a taxable equivalent basis is presented in this MD&A under the caption "Consolidated Average Balances and Interest
Rates."

The significant components of net interest margin are summarized in the following table:

2017 Compared to
2016
Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 Volume Rate 2016

(dollars are in millions)

Interest income:

ShOTt-term IMVESHMENES. ...c.coveveueieieieiereeereetenteeeteet ettt aene e $ 131 § 15 $ 52§ o4
TTAdING SECUITLIES ..ottt ettt ettt st s 58 () (22) 85
SECUTTHIES ...t 242 %) 2 245
CommETCial IOANS .....c.eoiiiiieiiieieeer ettt 382 (65) 67 380
Consumer loans.... 191 2) 4 189
(0115 R 11 1 ®) 18
Total interest income ... 1,015 (61) 95 981
Interest expense:

DIEPOSIES ...ttt bbbttt h bbb bbbt 150 7 38 105
Short-term DOITOWINGS. .......c.ooviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 23 (10) 15 18
LONG-eIT dEDE ...c.eueinieieiieeeee et 242 28 17 197
Tax liabilities and Other ........c.cceciiiiiriiiiiieccceeeee e 3 — 3) 6
TOtal INTETEST EXPEIISE ....vvveneenieiieiieiietieteste sttt ettt ettt ettt eb bbbttt 418 25 67 326
Net interest income — taxable equivalent basis...........ccccveerveirerieerieerieereesieeeeaeneene 597 $ (@B6) $ 28 655
Less: tax equivalent adjuStmMent..........coceverirerenenienienieieieeeee e - 1
Net interest income — non taxable equivalent basis.........c.cccecevverenienenincncnencnennene s 597 W
Yield on total interest arning aSSES .........coevververreriereeieieieieeeereeereee e 2.22% 2.08%
Cost of total interest bearing lHabilities.........ccovererierierienieiiiieceeeeee e 1.18 .95
Interest 1ate SPread.......cccouevririiiiiiiiieire ettt 1—04 1.13
Benefit from net non-interest paying funds'...............cc.ccooorviroiroreeeeeeeeeeee e, 27 .26
Net interest margin on average €arning assets........cccecueveereeerererenreneresrenersensensennens T 131% T139%

(" Represents the benefit associated with interest earning assets in excess of interest bearing liabilities. Increased percentages reflect growth in this excess,
while decreased percentages reflect a reduction in this excess.

During the three months ended March 31, 2017, net interest income decreased as the favorable impact of higher short-term market
rates was more than offset by lower interest income from trading securities and the impact of lower average commercial loan
balances as well as higher interest expense from long-term debt. Higher short-term market rates resulted in higher interest income
from variable rate assets, including variable rate loans and short-term investments, partially offset by higher wholesale time deposit
and short-term borrowing interest expense.
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Short-term investments Higher interest income during the three months ended March 31, 2017 was due to higher yields earned
on these investments and, to a lesser extent, higher average balances in interest bearing deposits with banks.

Trading securities Interest income declined during the three months ended March 31, 2017 driven primarily by a decrease in
higher yielding municipal bonds. Securities in the trading portfolio are managed as economic hedges against the derivative activity
of our clients. As a result, interest income associated with trading securities was partially offset within trading revenue by the
performance of the associated derivatives as discussed further below.

Securities Interest income was relatively flat during the three months ended March 31, 2017 as the impact of lower average
balances was partially offset by higher yields.

Commercial loans Interest income was relatively flat during the three months ended March 31, 2017 as the impact of higher yields
driven by rate increases on variable rate products was largely offset by lower average balances driven by paydowns, maturities
and loan sales exceeding new loan originations as we focused efforts on improving returns through disciplined lending and
expanding existing client relationships into other products.

Consumer loans Interest income was relatively flat during the three months ended March 31, 2017 as the impact of higher yields
earned on residential mortgages, home equity mortgages and credit card receivables was largely offset by lower average balances
driven by declines in home equity mortgages and credit card receivables.

Other Lower interest income during the three months ended March 31, 2017 reflects a lower dividend rate earned on Federal
Reserve Bank stock.

Deposits Interest expense increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due primarily to higher rates paid and, to a
lesser extent, higher average interest-bearing deposit balances overall. Higher rates paid on deposits reflects the impacts of rate
increases on wholesale time deposits and foreign bank deposits as well as promotional rates offered to our retail customers on
savings accounts and certificates of deposits.

Short-term borrowings Higher interest expense during the three months ended March 31, 2017 was driven by higher rates paid
on these borrowings, partially offset by lower average borrowings.

Long-term debt Interest expense was higher during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due to higher average borrowings
and higher rates paid reflecting the impact of rate increases on variable rate borrowings and new issuances.

Tax liabilities and other Interest expense was lower during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due to lower rates paid on
securities sold, not yet purchased.

Provision for Credit Losses The following table summarizes the provision for credit losses associated with our various loan
portfolios:

Increase (Decrease)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Commercial:
Real estate, including CONStIUCHION .......coververiirierienienieieieeeteeeeeceeee e $ 1 $ 9 8 @&  (88.9)%
Business and corporate banking ..o 42) (47) 5 10.6
G1ObAL DANKING. ..c.eeuveiiiiieiieiieieeieetr ettt 39) 197 (236) *
Other COMMETCIAl .......oeeiiiiiiiiiiiiic et 2 3) 5 *
Total cOMMETCIAL .....c..ooiiieiiiiiiiiic e (78) 156 (234) *
Consumer:
Residential MOTtages.......ccoeeeueruireririninenenenereee ettt — 9) 9 100.0
Home equity MOTtZAZES ....c.coveuieuirieriiriinienertetetenteeeteteeee ettt ?2) 3 (5) *
CrEdit CATAS ..ottt ettt ettt eb bbb 3 5 (2) (40.0)
Other CONSUMET .....c.eeuiiuieiieiieiieiieieeerte ettt ettt — 2 (2) (100.0)
TOtal CONSUIMET.........eeuietinietireiiteiiteertee ettt 1 1 — —
Total provision for Credit LoSSES........ccueurririririririinieneiecieeeeeeeeee e $ () $ 157 $ (234) *
Provision as a percentage of average 10ans ...........ccoceveviereenieneneiecinicncnencne w %

*  Not meaningful.
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Our provision for credit losses improved $234 million during the three months ended March 31, 2017 driven by a lower provision
for credit losses in our commercial loan portfolio while the provision for credit losses in our consumer loan portfolio was flat.
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, we decreased our allowance for credit losses as the provision for credit losses
was lower than net charge-offs by $96 million.

The provision for credit losses in our commercial loan portfolio improved $234 million during the three months ended March 31,
2017 reflecting a release in credit loss reserves recorded in the current year period compared with a loss provision recorded in the
prior year period. The release of loss reserves in the current year period reflects improvements in credit conditions, primarily in
oil and gas and mining (including a single mining client relationship) as well as releases of reserves due to paydowns and maturities
exceeding new loan originations as we continue to focus efforts on improving returns. These same industries including the single
mining client relationship experienced credit loss provisions in the prior year period reflecting downgrades and weakness in the
financial condition of these clients at that time. We will continue to monitor our exposure with regard to the mining client relationship
discussed above and, as a result, further adjustments to our credit loss reserves relating to this exposure may be required in future
periods.

The provision for credit losses on residential mortgages and home equity mortgages increased $4 million during the three months
ended March 31, 2017 as the positive impacts of continued improvements in economic and credit conditions and the continued
origination of higher quality Premier mortgages, which are an increasing portion of the portfolio, as well as lower loss estimates
associated with lower average home equity mortgage balances were more than offset by the non-recurrence of a release of reserves
inthe prior year period related to residential mortgages serviced by others as a result of updated information regarding the underlying
loan characteristics being reported by the servicers.

The provision for credit losses associated with credit cards and other consumer loans both decreased during the three months ended
March 31,2017 due to continued improvements in economic and credit conditions and lower average credit card receivable levels.

Our methodology and accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses are presented in our 2016 Form 10-K under
the caption "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and in Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and New
Accounting Pronouncements." See "Credit Quality" in this MD&A for additional discussion on the allowance for credit losses
associated with our various loan portfolios.

Other Revenues The following table summarizes the components of other revenues:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Credit Card fEES......eiveieieieieeeie et $ 1 S 14 3 3) 21.4)%
Trust and investment management fees..........c.ccoeveviererenincnienenenenennenn 38 39 €)) (2.6)
Other fees and COMMUISSIONS .......c.ceveerierieriieeiieeireeeetstee e eeees 162 165 (3) (1.8)
TTadINg TEVEIMUE .....c.vetinieiieiteieeiieteecet ettt s 70 16 54 *
Other SECUTItieS ZaINS, NET.....c.ccvriririieriirertereree e e 5 29 (24) (82.8)
Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates .........ccccocevvevverincncnenennenn 82 54 28 51.9
Residential mortgage banking revenue (EXpense).........c.ccveevvveeveveverennnes ?2) 17 (19) *
Gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives.......... 34 216 (182) (84.3)
Other income (loss):
Valuation of loans held for sale..........c.ccoevuevieniininininnncees 8 (59) 67 *
INSUTANCE. ..o 4 4 — —
Gain on sale of Visa Inc. Class B common shares to a third party......... 146 — 146 *
Miscellaneous INCOME ......ccceveverierieuerieiirieinieeneereente e 3 (33) 36 *
Total other iINCOME (10SS) ....coververueriiriiniiienieieieeeeeteeeeeeeese e 161 (88) 249 *
Total Other TEVENUES.......cveuiriiiirieiiriiiriiiet ettt $ 561 § 462 $ 99 21.4 %

*  Not meaningful.

Credit card fees Credit card fees were lower during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due primarily to higher cost estimates
associated with our credit card rewards program.

Trust and investment management fees Trust and investment management fees were relatively flat during the three months ended
March 31, 2017.
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Other fees and commissions The following table summarizes the components of other fees and commissions:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
ACCOUNE SEIVICES ...coveevetiiiiinteniertentetestetetet et eat ettt ebe bt sbesbe st sbe s seeneen $ 68 $ 69 $ (1) 1.4)%
Credit faCilItIeS ....c.evveuirieirieirieeeeere e 72 76 4) (5.3)
CUSLOIAL TS ...eevvievieiieiieiieieee et 5 5 — —
L0 11155 g 1T SO PSR 17 15 2 13.3
Total other fees and COMMISSIONS........c..cceruirierienienieieieeeeeeeee e $ 162 § 165 § 3) (1.8)%

Other fees and commissions decreased slightly during the three months ended March 31, 2017 primarily due to lower credit
facilities fees reflecting the impact of lower commercial lending activity compared with prior year period.

Trading revenue Trading revenue is generated by participation in the foreign exchange, rates, credit, equities and precious metals
markets. The following table presents trading revenue by business activity. Not included in the table below is the impact of net
interest income related to trading activities which is an integral part of trading activities' overall performance. Net interest income
related to trading activities is recorded in net interest income in the consolidated statement of income. Trading revenues related
to the mortgage banking business are included in residential mortgage banking revenue (expense).

Increase (Decrease)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Business Activities:

DEIIVALIVES' .....oooooeeoee s $ (25) $ (31 $ 6 19.4%
Balance Sheet Management ............c.ccoerererenienienieieieeeeeeseseeesie s 1 3) 4 *
Foreign EXChange .......c.cccocvvviiiiinininininciciccciccccecceceeeese s 56 44 12 27.3
Precious MEtals ........ccoeevieuirieiinieinieereereeneet ettt 34 11 23 *
Global Banking ........cccoceeeiriiiniiiniiiricencenenecnee e 2 4 6 *
Other trading ......coeovevieieieiieeeer ettt 2 (1 3 *
Total trading TEVEINUE .......covrveueieieeieieereetee ettt $ 70 § 16 § 54 *

*  Not meaningful.

M Includes derivative contracts related to credit default and cross-currency swaps, equities, interest rates and structured credit products.

Trading revenue increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 largely driven by improved performance across all of
our trading activities, primarily Precious Metals and Foreign Exchange.

Trading revenue from Derivatives improved during the three months ended March 31, 2017 primarily due to favorable valuation
adjustments on our legacy structured credit products and the improved performance of emerging markets products. These
improvements were partially offset by unfavorable debit valuation adjustments associated with movements in our own credit
spreads as well as lower new deal activity on interest rate swaps. Derivatives trading revenue does not reflect associated net interest
income as certain derivatives, such as total return swaps, were economically hedged by holding the underlying interest bearing
referenced assets.

Trading revenue related to Balance Sheet Management activities increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due to
the performance of economic hedge positions used to manage interest rate risk.

Foreign Exchange trading revenue increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 from increased client trading activity.

Precious Metals trading revenue increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 from increased client trading activity,
primarily due to improved investor demand for this asset class.

Global Banking trading revenue improved during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due primarily to valuation adjustments
on credit default swap economic hedge positions.

Other securities gains, net We maintain securities portfolios as part of our balance sheet diversification and risk management
strategies. During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, we sold $2,249 million and $4,039 million, respectively, of
primarily U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agency mortgage-backed securities as part of a continuing strategy to maximize
returns while balancing the securities portfolio for risk management purposes based on the current interest rate environment and
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liquidity needs. Other securities gains, net decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due primarily to the non-
recurrence of gains from the sale of certain longer-term state municipal bonds as we reduced these positions in the prior year
quarter. The gross realized gains and losses from sales of securities, which is included as a component of other securities gains,
net above, are summarized in Note 3, "Securities," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Servicing and other fees from HSBC affiliates During the first quarter of 2017, we received $28 million of loan prepayment fees
from HSBC Finance. Excluding this item, affiliate income was flat during the three months ended March 31, 2017 as lower fees
associated with residential mortgage servicing activities performed on behalf of HSBC Finance was offset by higher billings
associated with shared services performed on behalf of other HSBC affiliates.

Residential mortgage banking revenue (expense) Residential mortgage banking revenue (expense) decreased during the three
months ended March 31, 2017 due to the impact of the sale of our remaining Mortgage Servicing Rights ("MSRs") portfolio during
the fourth quarter of 2016 as well as slightly higher losses associated with the execution of certain Community Reinvestment Act
activities.

Gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives We have elected to apply fair value option accounting to
certain commercial loans held for sale, certain securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements, certain own
fixed-rate debt issuances and all of our hybrid instruments issued, including structured notes and deposits. We also use derivatives
to economically hedge the interest rate and other risks associated with certain financial liabilities for which fair value option
accounting has been elected. Beginning January 1, 2017, the fair value movement on fair value option liabilities attributable to
credit spread is recorded in other comprehensive income. Excluding the impact of this item, which resulted in a gain of $193
million during the first quarter of 2016, gain on instruments designated at fair value and related derivatives increased during the
three months ended March 31, 2017 attributable primarily to favorable movements related to the economic hedging of interest
rate and other risks within our structured notes and deposits. See Note 9, "Fair Value Option," in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for additional information including a breakout of these amounts by individual component.

Other income (loss) In March 2017, we sold a portion of our Visa Class B Shares to a third party resulting in a net pre-tax gain
of approximately $146 million. Excluding this item, other income (loss) remained higher during the three months ended March
31,2017 primarily due to improved valuations on loans held for sale, higher income associated with fair value hedge ineffectiveness
and a net gain of $41 million recorded in the current year period from the sales of certain residential mortgages. These increases
were partially offset by higher losses associated with credit default swap protection which largely reflects the hedging of a single
client exposure.
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Operating Expenses The following table summarizes the components of operating expenses:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Salary and employee Denefits .........cocevererienenenieieieeeneeeeeeene e $ 265 $ 241  $ 24 10.0%
Support services from HSBC affiliates:
Fees paid to HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. ("HMUS").....cccccvvnvininincnnens 12 53 41 (77.4)
Fees paid to HSBC Technology & Services (USA) ("HTSU").............. 285 229 56 24.5
Fees paid to other HSBC affiliates........c.ccocevvevienienieienieiciiniicrincncnne 42 38 4 10.5
Total support services from HSBC affiliates..........ccceceeveeenincniincncnnns 339 320 19 5.9
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE, NET...eneieieiiieeietienierteeeesteetesteetesreentesseeteeseeneeeneeseeenes 54 59 %) (8.5)
Other expenses:
Equipment and SOEWATe..........coecerieirieiniiiniiincenccnecneeeeeeee e 10 11 (1) .1
MATKEEINEZ ...ttt ettt 13 13 — —
OULSIAL SEIVICES ...veuviniriniiiieienieiere ettt ettt sttt 19 20 (1) (5.0)
Professional fEes ......c..ccueiriieririiiii e 16 23 (7 (30.4)
Off-balance sheet credit TESEIVES .......oceveriirierienieieieieiceeeeeeeeee e 11 6 17 *
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") assessment fee.......... 41 33 8 24.2
MISCEIIANEOUS. .....ceeviniiiieicieteeere sttt 41 — 41 *
Total Other EXPENSES....c.ccuvruiiiriiriiririirterte sttt ettt 129 106 23 21.7
Total OPErating EXPENSES. . ...eeueeriruieriirieniieeerieetesteete st ebesbeeieeeee e eiee e enes $ 787 % 726 $ 61 8.4%
Personnel - average NUMDET ...........ccceciviririinenineeeeeeeeeeeee e W o564
EfICIENCY TaI0....cviieiiicicicceetcee et e 68.0% 65.1%

*  Not meaningful.

Salaries and employee benefits Salaries and employee benefits expense increased during the three months ended March 31,2017
driven by the impact of salaries expense associated with certain RBWM wealth managers which were transferred to HSBC Bank
USA from HMUS during the third quarter of 2016 along with higher salary related costs to achieve of $5 million. Also contributing
to the increase to a lesser extent was higher incentive compensation expense. While the average number of personnel remained
relatively flat, overall salaries expense was higher as the impact of cost management efforts, including targeted staff reductions
to optimize staffing and improve efficiency as well as reductions in staff performing residential mortgage servicing activities on
behalf of HSBC Finance, was more than offset by the factors described above as well as the addition of higher cost personnel
associated with growth initiatives in certain business and the implementation of a global standards program designed to achieve
the highest and most effective financial crime risk controls and capabilities.

Support services from HSBC affiliates Support services from HSBC affiliates increased during the three months ended March 31,
2017 reflecting higher costs to achieve of approximately $27 million which primarily consisted of severance and project cost
charges from HTSU. The increase was partially offset by the transfer of certain RBWM wealth managers to HSBC Bank USA
from HMUS as discussed above. The trends in the table above also reflect the impact of a transfer of support service personnel
from HMUS to HTSU during the first quarter of 2017 which increased HTSU support services expense and decreased HMUS
support services expense by approximately $22 million. A summary of the activities charged to us from various HSBC affiliates
is included in Note 12, "Related Party Transactions," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Occupancy expense, net Occupancy expense decreased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 reflecting lower repair
and property maintenance costs.

Other expenses Other expenses increased during the three months ended March 31, 2017 due primarily to higher miscellaneous
expense and higher deposit insurance assessment fees. Higher miscellaneous expense was driven by higher litigation expense,
higher operational losses largely associated with certain credit card accounts and higher costs to achieve of $4 million. These
increases were partially offset by a release of off-balance sheet credit reserves in the current year compared with a provision in
the prior year period as well as lower professional fees.

Efficiency ratio Our efficiency ratio was 68.0 percent during the three months ended March 31, 2017 compared with 65.1 percent
during the prior year period. Our efficiency ratio in the 2016 period was impacted by the change in the fair value of our own debt
attributable to credit spread for which we have elected fair value option accounting which was reported as a component of total
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other revenues. Excluding the impact of this item, our efficiency ratio improved during the three months ended March 31, 2017
due primarily to higher other revenues, partially offset by higher operating expenses and lower net interest income.

Income taxes The following table provides an analysis of the difference between effective rates based on the total income tax
provision attributable to pretax income and the statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)

.......................................... $ 157 35.0% $ 82 35.0%

Tax expense at the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate
Increase (decrease) in rate resulting from:

State and local taxes, net of Federal benefit

............................................................ 12 2.7 6 2.6
Ttems affecting prior Periods'™) ............oooovvivieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 9 (2.0 — —
Low income housing and other tax credit inVestments............cecceeverereneneniennne 6 13 ®) 3.4
OBRET ...ttt ettt ?2) (4) 1) (4)

Total income tax expense

............................................................................................. $ 152 33.9% $ 79 33.9%

™" The amount relates to the impact of State tax rate adjustments on deferred tax assets.
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Segment Results — Group Reporting Basis

We have five distinct business segments that are utilized for management reporting and analysis purposes which are aligned with
HSBC's global business strategy: Retail Banking and Wealth Management ("RBWM"), Commercial Banking ("CMB"), Global
Banking and Markets ("GB&M"), Private Banking ("PB") and a Corporate Center ("CC") which was created in 2017 and is
discussed further below. The segments, which are generally based upon customer groupings and global businesses, are described
under Item 1, "Business," in our 2016 Form 10-K.

We previously announced that we made the decision to implement changes to our internal management reporting for certain
activities and functions and report them within a new CC segment beginning in January 2017. These activities and functions
include Balance Sheet Management and our legacy structured credit products which historically were both reported in GB&M,
as well as a portfolio of residential mortgage loans previously purchased from HSBC Finance, including certain loan servicing
activities performed on behalf of HSBC Finance, which were historically reported in RBWM. In addition, we have reviewed
central costs historically reported in the Other segment and have reallocated these costs to the global businesses where appropriate.
Remaining residual costs are reported in the CC along with all other remaining items historically reported in the Other segment.
As a result, beginning in the first quarter of 2017, we have aligned our segment reporting with the changes made to our internal
management reporting and are reporting these changes as part of the newly created CC segment for all periods presented.

The following table summarizes the impact on reported segment total assets, total deposits and profit before tax as of and for the
three months ended March 31, 2016:

2016

(in millions)

Increase (decrease) in segment profit before tax during the three months ended March 31:

RBWM Lottt ettt ettt ettt b st s e st e b e st et ess et es s es e s et e s ese s e s e s e st b e s s e b eas et e st ek eas et e bt e b ese b et e b eneebensesensens $ 3
CIMB ...ttt ettt etttk ettt ettt s et et ek R ke n e ke a ek ea s ek et et et ek et ek e ae st b e st he st eken e ek en s et entetenesesetennenens 4
GB&M ...ttt ettt ettt ekt e ke ettt e b e b et et et e st en b e Rt e Rt e Rt eR e Rt Rtk e R e eRe s enbensententententest et e eseese et eeseesesenbensens 8
CC (as compared with previously 1eported Other) .........ccicieiiieiiriieiicieeceee et 1

RBWM ..ottt ettt n et nenenene $ (672)
GBEM .....cooooooee oo (93,516)
CC (as compared with previously reported OthEr) ........c.ccviciriiiriiriniiriienieeene ettt ettt 94,188

GB&M ..ot $  (8,920)
CC (as compared with previously reported OthEr) .........ccicieiiieiiriieiecieeceee e 8,920

We report financial information to our parent, HSBC, in accordance with HSBC Group accounting and reporting policies, which
apply IFRS issued by the IASB and as endorsed by the EU, and, as a result, our segment results are prepared and presented using
financial information prepared on the Group Reporting Basis as operating results are monitored and reviewed, trends are evaluated
and decisions about allocating resources, such as employees, are primarily made on this basis. However, we continue to monitor
capital adequacy and report to regulatory agencies on a U.S. GAAP basis. The significant differences between U.S. GAAP and
the Group Reporting Basis as they impact our results are summarized in our 2016 Form 10-K in Note 22, "Business Segments,"
and under the caption "Basis of Reporting" in the MD&A section. In addition, see "Basis of Reporting" in this MD&A for discussion
of a new difference between U.S. GAAP and the Group Reporting Basis related to structured notes and deposits.

We continue to evaluate the financial information used to manage our businesses, including the presentation of financial data being
reported to our Management and our Board. To the extent we make changes to this reporting in the future, we will evaluate any
impact such changes may have on our segment reporting.

During the first quarter of 2017, we adopted new accounting guidance under the Group Reporting Basis which, for financial
liabilities measured under the fair value option, requires recognizing the change in fair value attributable to our own credit in other
comprehensive income consistent with the new accounting guidance also adopted under U.S. GAAP. The adoption of this guidance
did not require periods prior to 2017 to be restated. See the discussion of the CC segment below for further details regarding the
impact of adopting this guidance.
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There have been no additional changes in the basis of our segmentation or measurement of segment profit as compared with the
presentation in our 2016 Form 10-K.

Retail Banking and Wealth Management RBWM provides a full range of banking and wealth products and services to individuals
and certain small businesses, focusing on internationally minded customers in large metropolitan centers on the West and East
coasts.

During first quarter of 2017, we continued to direct resources towards the development and delivery of premium service. Particular
focus has been placed on HSBC Premier, HSBC's global banking service which offers customers a seamless international service,
and HSBC Advance, a proposition directed towards the emerging affluent customer in the initial stages of wealth accumulation.

The following table summarizes the Group Reporting Basis results for our RBWM segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net INtETESt INCOME .....uevieiiriiriiriinieriieteetertertetet ettt ettt nes $ 213 § 202§ 11 5.4%
Other Operating INCOME. ........cveeeieieiieieeie ettt 137 74 63 85.1
Total operating iNCOME™ .............ccoourvreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 350 276 74 26.8
Loan impairment Charges...........ccccecvvirireriinenenenieieieeeeeeeeeeee e 9 14 (5) (35.7)
Net OPerating IMCOME.......cc.eeeruerereriirtirententeterterteteiteteseeae et sbe e nes 341 262 79 30.2
OPETAtING EXPEISES .veuvvenrienreieeniirieenteeitenteetesteete st estesbeenbesbeentesbeeteeseeneeeaes 275 253 22 8.7
Profit BEfOTe taX .....eovervirieiiicicieie e $ 66 $ 9 % 57 *

*  Not meaningful.

M The following table summarizes the impact of key activities on the total operating income of the RBWM segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Current accounts, savings and dEPOSILS ........cveveverieieirierieieirieieesese et eeeeeeee $ 139 § 131  $ 8 6.1%

Mortgages, credit cards and other personal lending............cccoceuvveernncinncrcnnccnenne. 78 103 (25) (24.3)

Wealth and asset management products.............cocoeuvrieirineirininnninnneseeeseseeeeaes 33 29 4 13.8

Retail business banking and other®.................coovvoevveereveerersecrescseeseveseseses s esesenenes 100 13 87 *

Total OPErating IMCOMIC. .......c.c.cuiriiuiuiiieieirieiee ettt $ 350 $ 276 $ 74 26.8%

@ In 2017, retail business banking and other reflects a gain on the sale of Visa Class B Shares and a loss on the sale of certain partially charged off residential

mortgages as discussed below.

Our RBWM segment reported a higher profit before tax during the first quarter of 2017 due to higher net interest income, higher
other operating income and lower loan impairment charges, partially offset by higher operating expenses.

Net interest income increased during the first quarter of 2017 largely driven by higher net interest income from deposits due to
higher average balances and improved spreads, partially offset by lower net interest income from lending. Net interest income
from lending declined as the favorable impact of growth in residential mortgage average balances was more than offset by a
declining home equity mortgage portfolio and lower spreads.

In March 2017, we sold a portion of our Visa Class B Shares to a third party resulting in a net pre-tax gain of approximately $146
million. Excluding this item, other operating income decreased during the first quarter of 2017 largely due to a loss of $73 million
on the sale of certain partially charged-off residential mortgages and lower servicing fees reflecting the impact of the sale of our
remaining MSRs portfolio during the fourth quarter of 2016.

Loan impairment charges were lower during the first quarter of 2017 driven by continued improvements in economic and credit
conditions and the continued origination of higher quality Premier mortgages which are an increasing portion of the portfolio, as
well as lower loss estimates associated with lower average home equity mortgage balances. These decreases were partially offset
by the non-recurrence of a release of reserves recorded in the prior year period related to residential mortgages serviced by others
as a result of updated information regarding the underlying loan characteristics reported by the servicers.

Operating expenses increased during the first quarter of 2017 due primarily to the addition of personnel associated with growth
initiatives, higher expense associated with certain RBWM wealth managers which were transferred to HSBC Bank USA from
HMUS during the third quarter of 2016, higher operational losses largely associated with certain credit card accounts and higher
outside services expense due in part to activities related to the sale of residential mortgages discussed above. Also contributing to
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the increase was the non-recurrence of gains recorded in the prior year quarter associated with a litigation matter and our expectation
of compensatory fees payable to government sponsored enterprises ("GSEs"), partially offset by lower corporate function cost
allocations from affiliates.

Commercial Banking CMB offers a full range of commercial financial services and tailored solutions to enable clients to grow
their businesses, focusing on key markets with high concentrations of international connectivity.

Total quarter-to-date average loans outstanding, including loans held for sale, decreased 9 percent as compared with the first quarter
of 2016 as we focused efforts on improving returns. Total quarter-to-date average deposits outstanding increased 5 percent as
compared with the first quarter of 2016 which reflects execution of a key strategy to grow the Global Liquidity and Cash Management
business through our international network.

The following table summarizes the Group Reporting Basis results for our CMB segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net INtETESt INCOME .....uevieiiriiriiriinieriieteetertertetet ettt ettt nes $ 180 §$ 190 § (10) (5.3)%
Other Operating IMCOIME. ......c..cerueirriierinteierteterteterteeerteeeseeae et eseeeseeereseenes 52 62 (10) (16.1)
Total operating iNCOME™ .............ccoourvreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 232 252 (20) (7.9)
Loan impairment charges (IECOVETIES)......couivveruirienueieiereieieieeieee e (36) 12 (48) *
Net OPerating IMCOME........ceeeruerererirrintenenteteteteteitetereete et saenes 268 240 28 11.7
OPEIAtING EXPEIISES .vuveuvenreneeneenieuieueeteetesteeteasessessensensenseneeneeneeneeseesesaessessenes 139 147 ®) (5.4)
Profit Before taX® .........co.ovvverierieeeieciesee e $ 129 § 93 $ 36 38.7 %

*  Not meaningful.

M The following table summarizes the impact of key activities on the total operating income of the CMB segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Lending and Transaction Management ............coecereereueerieueeerenuereneneereenseneseseeseseensenenes $ 106 $ 129 § (23) (17.8)%

Global Liquidity and Cash Management, current accounts and savings deposits ........... 94 95 (1) (1.1)

Global Trade and Receivables Finance 14 13 1 7.7

Investment banking products and other..............occoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicces 18 15 3 20.0

Total OPErating IMCOMIC. .......c.c.cuiriiuiuiiieieirieiee ettt $ 232§ 252§ (20) (7.95%

@ During the fourth quarter of 2016, we transferred certain client relationships from CMB to GB&M as discussed further in Note 22, "Business Segments,"
in our 2016 Form 10-K. As a result, we reclassified $22 million of profit before tax from the CMB segment to the GB&M segment during the three months
ended March 31, 2016 to conform with the current year presentation.

Our CMB segment reported a higher profit before tax during the first quarter of 2017 due to lower loan impairment charges and
lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower net interest income and lower other operating income.

Net interest income was lower during the first quarter of 2017 due to lower loan balances largely reflecting the sale of certain
commercial real estate loans during the second quarter of 2016 as well as paydowns and maturities exceeding new loan originations
as we focused efforts on improving returns.

Other operating income decreased during the first quarter of 2017 due primarily to lower credit facilities fees reflecting the impact
of lower commercial lending activity compared with prior year period and the non-recurrence of gains recorded in the prior year
period from asset sales in commercial real estate.

Loan impairment charges improved during the first quarter of 2017 due primarily to a release in credit loss reserves reflecting
improvements in credit conditions driven by certain client relationships as well as releases of reserves due to paydowns and
maturities exceeding new loan originations compared with loan impairment charges recorded in the prior year period associated
with downgrades reflecting weaknesses in the financial condition of certain client relationships at that time.

Operating expenses declined during the first quarter of 2017 driven by lower corporate function cost allocations from affiliates
and the impact of targeted staff reductions during 2016.
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Global Banking and Markets GB&M provides tailored financial solutions to major government, corporate and institutional clients
worldwide.

We continue to target U.S. companies with international banking requirements and foreign companies with banking needs in the
Americas. Consistent with our global strategy, we are also focused on identifying opportunities to offer our products to CMB, PB
and RBWM customers.

The following table summarizes the Group Reporting Basis results for our GB&M segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net INErest INCOME ......c.oiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiieiciic s $ 152§ 149 $ 3 2.0%
Other operating INCOME. .........ceruiiruieeiieeiereeieeeee e 121 260 (139) (53.5)
Total operating iNCOME™ .............ccoviivieeieeeeeeeeeeseeeeee e 273 409 (136) (33.3)
Loan impairment charges (IECOVETIES)......coverrerrerienrenuereeeereeeenienenieseennene 35) 205 (240) *
Net operating income 308 204 104 51.0
OPETating EXPEIISES .....cvervuirieuieiiietieereeeneseeteseere st neeeneenenes 203 223 (20) (9.0)
Profit (108s) before tax® ...........cooooivvereeereeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 105 $ (19) § 124 *

*  Not meaningful.

M The following table summarizes the impact of key activities on the total operating income of the GB&M segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
CTOAIE 1.ttt $ 8 $ 13 8 %) (38.5)%
RALES ...ttt 39 29 10 345
Foreign Exchange and Metals ............cccocoiriueiininiiiniiiiinccciece e evennns 77 59 18 30.5
EQUITIES ...ttt sttt sttt 12 4 8 *
Total Global Markets...........ccouvueiiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiseies s 136 105 31 29.5
G1ODAL BANKING. ...ttt sttt 56 84 (28) (33.3)
Global Liquidity and Cash Management..............ccceveirininirininininieininesneeseesseeeees 118 111 7 6.3
SECUTTEIES SEIVICES.......ecuuiiiiiiiiiciiiectce e 6 5 1 20.0
Global Trade and Receivables FINance............cccococeeeiiniiiincinincccecceeecceeees 12 18 (6) (33.3)
Credit and funding valuation adjustments.............cccccoevvinniiniinniiiiincce (48) 78 (126) *
OHET™ ..o ) 8 15) *
Total OPErating IMCOME. ....c.coveveuiiieiiirieietrteteet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt $ 273§ 409 $ (136) (33.3)%

@ During the fourth quarter of 2016, we transferred certain client relationships from CMB to GB&M as discussed further in Note 22, "Business Segments,"
in our 2016 Form 10-K. As a result, we reclassified $22 million of profit before tax from the CMB segment to the GB&M segment during the three months
ended March 31, 2016 to conform with the current year presentation.

@ Other includes corporate funding charges, net interest income on capital held in the business and not assigned to products, and interest rate transfer pricing
differences.

Our GB&M segment reported improved profit before tax during the first quarter of 2017 due primarily to lower loan impairment

charges and lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower other operating income.

Credit revenue declined during the first quarter of 2017 due to lower revenue from collateralized financing related activity.

Revenue from Rates increased during the first quarter of 2017 due to favorable movements related to the economic hedging of
interest rate and other risks within our structured notes and deposits, partially offset by lower new deal activity on interest rate
swaps.

Foreign Exchange and Metals revenue increased during the first quarter of 2017 primarily due to higher Metals client related
activity and improvements in Foreign Exchange trading volumes and price volatility.

The increase in Equities revenue during the first quarter of 2017 was due primarily to favorable movements related to the economic
hedging of interest rate and other risks within our structured notes and deposits.

Global Banking revenue decreased during the first quarter of 2017 due to lower net interest income driven by lower loan balances
and higher losses associated with credit default swap protection which largely reflects the hedging of a single client exposure.
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Global Liquidity and Cash Management revenue increased during the first quarter of 2017 driven by higher net interest income
due to the favorable impact of higher short-term market rates as well as an increase in high quality deposit balances, partially offset
by decreased fee income due to lower transaction volumes.

Global Trade and Receivables Finance revenue was lower during the first quarter of 2017 reflecting a decline in receivables
financing products, partially offset by higher guarantee and standby letter of credit fees.

Credit and funding valuation adjustments resulted in losses during the first quarter of 2017 compared with gains in the prior year
period attributable primarily to movements in our own credit spreads within our structured notes and deposits and, to a lesser
extent, our derivative liability balances.

Other revenue decreased during the first quarter of 2017 reflecting higher corporate funding charges and an inducement fee paid
to a third party in the first quarter of 2017 associated with the sale of a portion of our portfolio of residual interests in real estate
mortgage investment conduits.

Loan impairment charges improved during the first quarter of 2017 reflecting a release in credit loss reserves recorded in the
current year period compared with a loan impairment charge recorded in the prior year period. The release of loss reserves in the
current year period reflects improvements in credit conditions associated with certain client relationships, primarily a single mining
client relationship, as well as releases of reserves due to paydowns and maturities exceeding new loan originations as we continue
to focus efforts on improving returns. Loan impairment charges recorded in the prior year period reflect higher loss estimates
associated with oil and gas industry loan exposures, as well as other downgrades reflecting weaknesses in the financial condition
of certain client relationships at that time, including mining and other industry loan exposures. Higher loss estimates associated
with oil and gas industry loan exposures in the prior year period were driven primarily by the downgrade of a large client relationship
and the establishment of specific reserves related to two large loans which became impaired.

Operating expenses were lower during the first quarter of 2017 due primarily to lower corporate function cost allocations from
affiliates, partially offset by higher deposit insurance assessment fees.

Private Banking PB serves high net worth and ultra-high net worth individuals and families with complex needs domestically
and abroad.

Client deposit levels decreased $2,458 million or 18 percent as compared with March 31, 2016. Total loans decreased $258 million
or 4 percent as compared with March 31, 2016, primarily in the commercial portfolio. Overall period end client assets were $1,424
million lower than March 31, 2016 largely driven by lower client deposit levels which were negatively impacted by client outflows
during 2016.

The following table provides additional information regarding client assets during the first quarter of 2017 and 2016:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016
(in millions)

Client assets at beginning Of PETIOQ.........ccvicveriiriieriieierieteeeete ettt beste e eseenseeseenseens $ 40462 $ 42,716
Net neW MONEY (OULTLOWS) ....ocuviiiieiiciiciieie ettt ettt et te et e te et e easesteessesreesaesaeesseeenas 464 (52)
VAlUE CRANEE ....o.eeeiieiieie ettt et a e et e st e s seesbesseesseessenseessenseessesseensesseensesaeensesnnen 674 360

Client assets at €nd Of PETIOQ ........cc.eiviiuiiiiiiieieceeeeee ettt ettt ettt te b te b e eteeereees $ 41,600 $ 43,024

The following table summarizes the Group Reporting Basis results for our PB segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net INtETESt INCOIME .....vevieuiriiriirienieriieteetertertetet ettt ettt nes $ 53 §$ 51 °$ 2 39 %
Other Operating INCOME. ........cveerieietietieie ettt 21 23 2) 8.7
Total Operating INCOME ......c..ccveieiririririrtieereeeeeeeet et 74 74 — —
Loan impairment charges (IECOVETIES)......couivuerueruenieieierereieeeeeesie e 2 (1) 3 *
Net OPerating IMCOME.......ccereruerererirrinienienteteteteteetetereeaeeie st sre s saenes 72 75 3) (4.0)
OPETAtING EXPEISES .veevvenvienrerieiieteeteeiterteetenteetesbeestesbeentesbeenteeseenaeeseenseenes 61 58 3 5.2
Profit BEfOTe taX .....eovervirieiiicicieie e $ 1 S 17 $ (6) (35.3)%

*  Not meaningful.
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Our PB segment profit before tax was lower during the first quarter of 2017 due to lower other operating income, higher loan
impairment charges and higher operating expenses, partially offset by higher net interest income.

Net interest income was higher during the first quarter of 2017 due to improved spreads reflecting the impact of favorable market
rates, partially offset by lower loan balances.

Other operating income decreased during the first quarter of 2017 due to lower fees and commissions reflecting a decline in
managed and investment product balances.

Loan impairment charges were higher during the first quarter of 2017 as the prior year period reflects releases of reserves due to
paydowns.

Operating expenses increased during the first quarter of 2017 reflecting higher litigation expense, higher staff costs and higher
deposit insurance assessment fees which were partially offset by lower corporate function cost allocations from affiliates.

Corporate Center CC includes Balance Sheet Management, our legacy structured credit products, certain legacy residential
mortgage loan and servicing activities, income and expense associated with certain affiliate transactions, certain corporate function
costs including costs to achieve, adjustments to the fair value of HSBC shares held for stock plans, interest expense associated
with certain tax exposures, income associated with other tax related investments and changes in the fair value of certain debt issued
for which fair value option accounting was elected and related derivatives, which for periods prior to January 1, 2017 included
the fair value movement attributable to credit spread. Beginning January 1, 2017, the fair value movement on fair value option
liabilities attributable to credit spread is recorded in other comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes the Group Reporting Basis results for our CC segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)
Net INLETESE INCOIMIC ...ttt een $ 8 3 4 3 (36) (81.8)%
Gain on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread ................ — 149 (149)  (100.0)
Other Operating INCOME ........cceeiriririieterieeteiere ettt eee e ee 94 4 90 *
Total operating iNCOME™ ..............cooormirereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 102 197 (95) (48.2)
Loan impairment charges (IECOVETIES) .....couevveruereeeieieiniinerieeeesiesee e (6)) 2 3) *
Net OPerating IMCOME ......cc.eeueruerrerieriertenienieieteteeeie et eie et st st saeneenees 103 195 (92) (47.2)
OPETALING EXPEISES . ..euveeutirtentieiienteetenteetesteentesteentesstenbesste bt entesseentesbeeneesaee 110 48 62 *
Profit (1088) BefOre taX .......ccveeruiriririnienieniiteeeeeece e $ ™D $ 147 § (154) *

*  Not meaningful.

M The following table summarizes the impact of key activities on the total operating income of the CC segment:

Increase (Decrease)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016 Amount %
(dollars are in millions)

Balance Sheet Management® ..............oo.coovuoovoooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo $ 78 $ 38 $ 40 *

Legacy structured credit pProducts .............ccceeueieieiniiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeeeeeeeeees 3 (22) 25 *

Legacy residential mortgage activities™ .............cooovvrrvvrrrvoesivesessessseeesies s seeennes 20 8 12 *

ONET™ ..o 1 173 (172) (99.4)

Total OPerating INCOMC. .........c.iiricueuiirieiiieteieeet ettt $ 102 $ 197 $ 95) (48.2)%

@ Balance Sheet Management includes gains on the sale of securities of $3 million and $26 million in the first quarter of 2017 and 2016, respectively.

®  Reflects fees associated with residential mortgage servicing activities performed on behalf of HSBC Finance and revenue associated with certain residential

mortgage loans that we previously purchased from HSBC Finance.

@ In 2016, other includes the gain on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread.

Excluding the impact of the gain on own fair value option debt attributable to credit spread during the first quarter of 2016, our
CC segment reported a higher loss before tax during the first quarter of 2017 primarily due to lower net interest income and higher
operating expenses, partially offset by higher other operating income.

Net interest income was lower during the first quarter of 2017 due to decreased interest income from investments and the impact
of the liquidity framework we adopted in preparation for the planned implementation of the Net Stable Funding Ratio ("NSFR")
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which provides a temporary cap on the net liquidity charge to GB&M until the NSFR becomes effective in 2018. See "Risk
Management" in this MD&A for additional discussion of NSFR.

Other operating income was higher during the first quarter of 2017 reflecting higher income associated with fair value hedge
ineffectiveness, improved valuation adjustments on our legacy structured credit products, fees of $28 million received from HSBC
Finance associated with the prepayment of its loan during the first quarter of 2017, a gain of $15 million from the sale of certain
residential mortgages that we previously purchased from HSBC Finance and the improved performance of economic hedge
positions used to manage interest rate risk. These increases were partially offset by lower gains from asset sales in Balance Sheet
Management and lower fees associated with residential mortgage servicing activities performed on behalf of HSBC Finance.

Operating expenses increased during the first quarter of 2017 reflecting higher corporate function cost allocations, including higher
costs to achieve which primarily consisted of severance and project cost charges from HTSU. The increase was partially offset by
the favorable impact of cost management efforts, including staff optimization in our technology and support service functions.

Reconciliation of Segment Results As previously discussed, segment results are reported on a Group Reporting Basis. For segment
reporting purposes, inter-segment transactions have not been eliminated, and we generally account for transactions between
segments as if they were with third parties. See Note 13, "Business Segments," in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for a reconciliation of our Group Reporting Basis segment results to U.S. GAAP consolidated totals.

Credit Quality

In the normal course of business, we enter into a variety of transactions that involve both on and off-balance sheet credit risk.
Principal among these activities is lending to various commercial, institutional, governmental and individual customers. We
participate in lending activity throughout the U.S. and, on a limited basis, internationally.

Allowance for Credit Losses Commercial loans are monitored on a continuous basis with a formal assessment completed, at a
minimum, annually. As part of this process, a credit grade and loss given default are assigned and an allowance is established for
these loans based on a probability of default estimate associated with each credit grade under the allowance for credit losses
methodology. Credit Review, a function independent of the business, provides an ongoing assessment of lending activities that
includes independently assessing credit grades and loss given default estimates for sampled credits across various portfolios. When
it is deemed probable based upon known facts and circumstances that full interest and principal on an individual loan will not be
collected in accordance with its contractual terms, the loan is considered impaired. An impairment reserve is then established based
on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate, or as a practical expedient,
the loan's observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Updated appraisals for
collateral dependent loans are generally obtained only when such loans are considered troubled and the frequency of such updates
are generally based on management judgment under the specific circumstances on a case-by-case basis. In addition, loss reserves
on commercial loans are maintained to reflect our judgment of portfolio risk factors which may not be fully reflected in the reserve
calculations.

Our probability of default estimates for commercial loans are mapped to our credit grade master scale. These probability of default
estimates are validated on an annual basis using back-testing of actual default rates and benchmarking of the internal ratings with
external rating agency data like Standard and Poor's ("S&P") ratings and default rates. Substantially all appraisals in connection
with commercial real estate loans are ordered by the independent real estate appraisal review unit at HSBC. The appraisal must
be reviewed and accepted by this unit. For loans greater than $250,000, an appraisal is generally ordered when the loan is classified
as Substandard as defined by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC"). On average, it takes approximately four
weeks from the time the appraisal is ordered until it is completed and the values accepted by HSBC's independent appraisal review
unit. Subsequent provisions or charge-offs are completed shortly thereafter, generally within the quarter in which the appraisal is
received.

In situations where an external appraisal is not used to determine the fair value of the underlying collateral of impaired loans,
current information such as rent rolls and operating statements of the subject property are reviewed and presented in a standardized
format. Operating results such as net operating income and cash flows before and after debt service are established and reported
with relevant ratios. Third-party market data is gathered and reviewed for relevance to the subject collateral. Data is also collected
from similar properties within the portfolio. Actual sales levels of properties, operating income and expense figures and rental data
on a square foot basis are derived from existing loans and, when appropriate, used as comparables for the subject property. Property
specific data, augmented by market data research, is used to project a stabilized year of income and expense to create a 10-year
cash flow model to be discounted at appropriate rates to present value. These valuations are then used to determine if any impairment
on the underlying loans exists and an appropriate allowance is recorded when warranted.

For loans identified as troubled debt restructurings ("TDR Loans"), an allowance for credit losses is maintained based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans' original effective interest rate or in the case of certain loans
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which are solely dependent on the collateral for repayment, the estimated fair value of the collateral less costs to sell. The
circumstances in which we perform a loan modification involving a TDR Loan at a then current market interest rate for a borrower
with similar credit risk would include other changes to the terms of the original loan made as part of the restructuring (e.g. principal
reductions, collateral changes, etc.) in order for the loan to be classified as a TDR Loan.

For pools of homogeneous consumer loans and certain small business loans which do not qualify as TDR Loans, we estimate
probable losses using a roll rate migration analysis that estimates the likelihood that a loan will progress through the various stages
of delinquency, or buckets, and ultimately charge-off based upon recent historical performance experience of other loans in our
portfolio. This migration analysis incorporates estimates of the period of time between a loss occurring and the confirming event
of its charge-off. This analysis considers delinquency status, loss experience and severity and takes into account whether borrowers
have filed for bankruptcy or have been subject to account management actions, such as the re-age or modification of accounts.
We also take into consideration the loss severity expected based on the underlying collateral, if any, for the loan in the event of
default based on historical and recent trends which are updated monthly based on a rolling average of several months' data using
the most recently available information.

The roll rate methodology is a migration analysis based on contractual delinquency and rolling average historical loss experience
which captures the increased likelihood of an account migrating to charge-off as the past due status of such account increases. The
roll rate models used were developed by tracking the movement of delinquencies by age of delinquency by "bucket" over a specified
time period. Each bucket represents a period of delinquency in 30-day increments. The roll from the last delinquency bucket results
in charge-off. Contractual delinquency is a method for determining aging of past due accounts based on the status of payments
under the loan. Average roll rates are developed to avoid temporary aberrations caused by seasonal trends in delinquency experienced
by some product types. We have determined that a 12-month average roll rate balances the desire to avoid temporary aberrations,
while at the same time analyzing recent historical data. The roll rate calculations are performed monthly and are done consistently
from period to period. We regularly monitor our portfolio to evaluate the period of time utilized in our roll rate migration analysis
and perform a formal review on an annual basis. In addition, loss reserves on consumer loans are maintained to reflect our judgment
of portfolio risk factors which may not be fully reflected in the statistical roll rate calculation.

Our allowance for credit losses methodology and our accounting policies related to the allowance for credit losses are presented
in further detail under the caption "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and in Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements," in our 2016 Form 10-K. Our approach toward credit risk management is
summarized under the caption "Risk Management" in our 2016 Form 10-K. There have been no significant revisions to our policies
or methodologies during the first quarter of 2017.
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The following table sets forth the allowance for credit losses for the periods indicated:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016
(dollars are in millions)
Allowance for Credit IOSSES ..............ccoviiiiiiieiiiieeeeee ettt ese b e e teesseeneesseeneas $ 921 $ 1,017
Ratio of Allowance for credit losses to:
Loans:"
Commercial:
INODFATTIIIALES ..ottt ettt ettt e et e st et e s seeneesseensesseenseeneenseessenseensenseenes 1.72% 1.83%
ATTIHHALES ..ottt ettt e e et eebe e s te e e sbe e aeesnbeessaeesbeesaeenbeenseesnsaenseessseenseennsenn — —
TOtal COMMETCIAL ......eeuiieieiiieiieieetete ettt sttt e se et eese et e enea s e eneesseensesseensesseensesneens 1.69 1.72
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES ......o.evverviriiieieietetetetett ettt ettt ettt eb et ebe b b .14 15
HOME €qUILY MOTTZAZES ...cuvetieniiitieiieiiett ettt ettt ettt st ettt sbeeste s bt esaesbeennenaeens 1.26 1.42
CIEAIE CATAS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st e st e e bt e s e et e enseeseanseeneaseeneesseensesseensesseensenseans 4.80 4.94
OtHET COMSUIMIET .....eeuvieeietieetieteete et et e et ete et e steetaesteessesteessesseessasssesseessasseessasseessesseessesssessesssessenseans 1.57 1.83
TOtAl COMSUIMIET ... ..euvieiietieiieeiieie et et et et et et e e e s et eaaessees e et tenseeseenseeseanseeneesesneesseensesseensesseensesseans 40 44
0] 21 TP PRRRPR 1.32% 1.38%
Net charge-offs:?
COMIMETCIAL®) ...t 2,278% 463%
COMSUINIET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e et e bt e et e e bt e e a bt e st e eabeesbbeeabeesbeeeabeesabesabeesabeenbeesaneenseenaeean 200 132
TORAL. ettt bbbttt h et bt bt e h e e bt e st e s bt et sbe e be s beentenbeen 1,212% 381%
Nonperforming loans: "™
(0107111331 (o7 -1 RSO UUURRRPSP 112% 118%
COMSUINIET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e bt e et e bt e e st e e bt e s a bt e bt e eabeesbbeeabeesbeeeabeesabesabeesabeeabeeseseenseenaeean 15 17
0] 21 PSR PRPRRRPR 72% 77%

(1)  Ratios exclude loans held for sale as these loans are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value.

@ Ratio at March 31, 2017 reflects year-to-date net charge-offs, annualized. Ratio at December 31, 2016 reflects full year net charge-offs.

@ Our commercial net charge-off coverage ratio for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 and year ended December 31, 2016 was 273 months and 56 months,
respectively. The net charge-off coverage ratio represents the commercial allowance for credit losses at period end divided by average monthly commercial
net charge-offs during the period.

@

Represents our commercial and consumer allowance for credit losses, as appropriate, divided by the corresponding outstanding balance of total nonperforming
loans held for investment. Nonperforming loans include accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more.

See Note 5, "Allowance for Credit Losses," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for a rollforward of credit
losses by general loan categories for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.

The allowance for credit losses at March 31, 2017 decreased $96 million or 9 percent as compared with December 31, 2016 due
to lower loss estimates in both our commercial and consumer loan portfolios.

Our commercial allowance for credit losses decreased $87 million or 9 percent as compared with December 31, 2016 largely due
to improvements in credit conditions, primarily in oil and gas and mining (including a single mining client relationship), as well
asreleases of reserves due to paydowns and maturities exceeding new loan originations as we continue to focus efforts on improving
returns.

Our consumer allowance for credit losses decreased $9 million or 10 percent as compared with December 31, 2016 driven by
continued improvements in economic and credit conditions, the continued origination of higher quality Premier mortgages which
are an increasing portion of the portfolio and lower loss estimates associated with lower home equity mortgage and credit card
receivable balances.

Our residential mortgage loan allowance for credit losses in all periods reflects consideration of risk factors relating to trends such
as recent portfolio performance as compared with average roll rates and economic uncertainty, including housing market trends
as well as second lien exposure.
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The allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total loans at March 31, 2017 decreased compared with December 31, 2016 due
to decreases in both the commercial loan and consumer loan percentages for the reasons discussed above.

The allowance for credit losses as a percentage of net charge-offs increased as compared with December 31, 2016 due to lower
dollars of net charge-offs in the ratio for both our commercial and consumer loan portfolios, partially offset by a decrease in our
overall allowance for credit losses for the reasons discussed above. Lower dollars of net charge-offs were largely driven by the
non-recurrence of charge-offs recorded in 2016 associated with oil and gas industry loan exposures, including a large impaired oil
and gas industry loan that was sold, and the transfers of residential mortgages to held for sale.

The following table presents the allowance for credit losses by major loan categories, excluding loans held for sale:

% of % of
Loans to Loans to
Total Total
Amount Loans Amount Loans"
March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
(dollars are in millions)
COMMETCIALY ...t e e e eeeees $ 843 71.8% $ 930 73.4%
Consumer:
Residential MOTEZAZES. ... .ceiveeeiierieeieeie et eiee sttt ettt e re et eebeesbeesaseeseessaeenseensees 24 24.7 26 23.3
HOmE eqUIty MOItZAZES ... .eeuveiieieeieieeie ettt et et e seeneesseesesneensesneen 17 1.9 20 1.9
CIEAIE CATUS ... vttt e et e et e e e e e e eaa e e seateeesseeeeenaneesnneeessneeeennes 31 9 34 9
OthET COMSUIMET ........eeieeeeeeeeeee et et et eete e e e e e e e eeteeeeeaeeeeeareeeenseeeennneeeenseeennreeeenes 6 6 7 5
TOtAl COMSUIMET........vvvviiiiieiieiie ettt eee e e e e e e e saaae e e e e seaaaeeeesennaareeeesennnees 78 28.2 87 26.6
0 1 DO RRRPRRRRRRRRN $ 921 100.0% $ 1,017 100.0%

M See Note 5, "Allowance for Credit Losses," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for components of the commercial allowance for credit

losses.

Reserves for Off-Balance Sheet Credit Risk 'We also maintain a separate reserve for credit risk associated with certain commercial
off-balance sheet exposures, including letters of credit, unused commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees. The
following table summarizes this reserve, which is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The related
provision is recorded as a component of other expense within operating expenses.

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Off-balance sheet Credit TISK TESEIVE ......ocuuviiiiiiiiiie et e e e et e e s e esaaeeeeeeeneas $ 122  § 134

The decrease in off-balance sheet reserves at March 31, 2017 as compared with December 31, 2016 reflects lower outstanding
exposure. Off-balance sheet exposures are summarized under the caption "Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Credit Derivatives
and Other Contractual Obligations" in this MD&A.
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Delinquency The following table summarizes dollars of two-months-and-over contractual delinquency and two-months-and-over
contractual delinquency as a percent of total loans and loans held for sale ("delinquency ratio"):

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)

Delinquent loans:

COMIMETCIAL ...ttt b et b et s h et et e et e e bt e bt satenaeestesbeeneenbeennens $ 79 $ 90
Consumer:
Residential mortgages(l)(z) ............................................................................................................... 434 765
Home equity MOort@ages'’ ... .....co.ooiooeeeeeeeeee e 40 46
CTEAIE CATAS ..ottt sttt et b et s b et e b e bt e be e et sate bt satenaeesaenbeentens 12 14
OthET COMSUIMET .. ...eeiiiiiiiitiiterieet ettt ettt eb bbbt b ettt et sttt et et et ebteseebeebeeaes 10 11
TOtA] COMSUIMIET.......uuviiiiiiiiiiee it eee e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e eesaaaeeeeeeaareeeeseanateeesesssnsraeeessannes 496 836
TOLALL .ttt ettt b bbbt bbb bbb bbbt et eb et ebe b $ 575 $ 926
Delinquency ratio:
(070704101 ¢ o3 -1 A USSR 16% .16%
Consumer:
Residential mortgages(l)(z) ............................................................................................................... 2.51 4.23
Home equity mortgages'"® 2.98 3.26
L3 T LT o2 ¢« USRS 1.86 2.03
OtNET COMSUIMET ...ttt ettt ettt eb bbbt bt b s bt et et st et e et et e st e st e st eneeneenes 2.20 2.43
TOtAL COMSUIMIET. ... veeiieieeiieetieieet ettt ettt et e st e e st e et e st e eatess e enseeseenseeseenseeneesesneensesneesaeensesneensens 2.51 4.05
TOLALL ettt ettt h bbbt bbbt bttt e et et et et et eneeneeneenea 82% 1.22%
M At March 31, 2017, and December 31, 2016, consumer mortgage loan delinquency includes $395 million and $711 million, respectively, of loans that are
carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less costs to sell, including $41 million and $358 million, respectively, relating to loans
held for sale.
@

The following table reflects dollars of contractual delinquency and delinquency ratios for interest-only loans and adjustable rate mortgage loans:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)

Dollars of delinquent loans:

TNEETEST-ONLY LOAIS ...ttt ettt ettt s e sss s b s s b s e s s s s s s s s s st e s sn s b e s nsnsesessnns $ 25§ 46
ARM L0AMNS ...ttt 121 237
Delinquency ratio:

INEEIESt-ONLY LOANS .....euiiiiiiici ittt ettt ettt s bbbt bbb st enes 70% 1.28%
ARM LOGMNS ...ttt 1.01 1.94

Compared with December 31,2016, our two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio decreased 40 basis points due to lower
dollars of delinquency in our consumer loan portfolio. Our consumer loan two-month-and-over contractual delinquency ratio
decreased 154 basis points from December 31, 2016 driven by the sale of certain residential mortgages during the first quarter of
2017 as well as continued improvements in economic and credit conditions and the continued origination of higher quality Premier
mortgages which are an increasing portion of the portfolio.

Compared with December 31, 2016, our commercial loan two-months-and-over contractual delinquency ratio was flat as lower
dollars of delinquency were offset by lower outstanding loan balances.
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Net Charge-offs of Loans The following table summarizes net charge-off (recovery) dollars as well as the net charge-off (recovery)
of loans for the quarter, annualized, as a percentage of average loans, excluding loans held for sale, ("net charge-off ratio"):

March 31, December 31, March 31,
2017 2016 2016

(dollars are in millions)

Net Charge-off Dollars:

Commercial:
Real estate, iNCIUAING CONSLITUCTION ........evveuiuirieieiiieieict ettt ns $ 1 $ — 3 —
Business and corporate banking...........ccoeueueeirieuirininieininieicineectneeett ettt ettt 9 43 26
GIODAI DANKING.......vviiiiiiiiiiiiciic et m 15 7
OhEr COMIMETCIAL ......eviuiiieiiieieie ettt ettt b et ettt bt s s e bt sbebens — — —
TOtAl COMIMEICIAL ...ttt ettt bttt b bttt et eb e st e bt b st eb et et it ane e 9 58 33
Consumer:
Residential MOTTZAZES .......oveueririeueirieieiiieteieire ettt ettt ettt s e be e s eaenenis 2 — 4
HOME EQUILY MOTTZAZES ....evvenrrveiiieteierieteietrt ettt ettt ettt b et st be et b et et be sttt se e b esesesaebeseaesaenens 1 2) 2
CIOAIE CANAS ...ttt bttt bbbttt b et b bbb b et b et sa bt bens [3 5 6
ORI COMSUIMET ...ttt ettt ettt ettt s a e st b bt es et et s e e bt sa et e bt b et et ebe et et eaenne e 1 1
TOLAl COMSUIMET ...ttt ettt eb ettt b s bttt b b et e st ettt e st ebe s e et e bt e b e s et es e et et eneane e 10 4 13
TOLAL .ttt bttt a bt bt h bt n Rt a e h e ae s e st b et et e st et et eneenenneneenene $ 19 $ 62 $ 46
Net Charge-off Ratio: -
Commercial:
Real estate, including CONSIIUCTION ........c.coiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiicc e .04% —% —%
Business and corporate banking.............c.ccocciiiiiiiiiiiiiiicccceie e .28 1.17 .70
GLODAL DANKING. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt (.02) 25 .09
Other COMMETICIAL ......euiiiiieiiiti ettt ettt sttt b bt s et et e st ea e s s et e st b e se e eseetentenesneas — — —
TOtal COMMETCIAL ...ttt ettt sttt b et s eaenenis .07 41 21
Consumer:
Residential mortgages .04 — .09
HOME EqUItY MOTTZAZES .....eviiiiiiiiciiiciciiieicirici ittt .29 (.56) 51
CTEAIE CATAS ...ttt bbbttt b e s h et a b b et e st ettt e st ebe s e et e b e e b bt ese et et eneane s 3.65 2.98 3.58
OtNET COMSUITIET ...ttt ettt eb bt s et et e e st e b e st e st eb e b e e eneeb et eneesess et eseebeseneen e et enseneeneas 1.03 1.04 .99
TOAL COMSUITIET.......cunttniiicittetete ettt ettt ettt s st b et et b ettt e bt s b seaeeaenenis 20 .08 .26
TOTAL 1.tttk ettt ettt s bbbt e 10% 32% 22%

Our net charge-off ratio as a percentage of average loans for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 decreased 22 basis points compared
with the quarter ended December 31, 2016 due to lower levels of net charge-offs in our commercial loan portfolio largely driven
by lower charge-offs associated with oil and gas, and mining industry loan exposures which were partially offset by higher levels
of net charge-offs in our consumer loan portfolio as the positive impacts of continued improvements in economic and credit
conditions and the continued origination of higher quality Premier mortgages which are an increasing portion of the portfolio were
more pronounced in the fourth quarter of 2016.

Compared with the year-ago quarter, our net charge-off ratio as a percentage of average loans also decreased 12 basis points due
to lower levels of net charge-offs in our commercial loan portfolio largely driven by lower charge-offs associated with oil and gas
industry loan exposures and, to a lesser extent, lower levels of net charge-offs in our consumer loan portfolio due to continued
improvements in economic and credit conditions and the continued origination of higher quality Premier mortgages which are an
increasing portion of the portfolio.
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Nonperforming Assets Nonperforming assets consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial:
Real estate, iINCluding CONSLIUCTION .......oiviiiieieieiietiei ettt ettt $ 53 % 56
Business and corporate Danking..........coceieeieiieieiieieeiee et 208 187
GlODAL DANKING ...ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt beebe bt et sae e sn b neens 490 546
Other COMMETCIAL........eiiieiieiieiieie ettt ettt ettt e e et esteesaesseessesseensesseensessaenseennenseans 1 1
Commercial nonaccrual 1oans held for sale .........cooveviriiiiiiienieeceee e 5 11
TOtal COMMIETCIAL .....cvieiieeiieiieeieie ettt ettt et et ete e b e etee b e eseesseesaesseessasseessesssessesssensesssessenns 757 801
Consumer:
Residential mortgages' @) e 446 435
Home equity MOrt@ages ™ ... ... ..o 71 75
Consumer nonaccrual 1oans held for Sale ..........oocviieiiiiiiicieeeeee e 39 369
TOtAL COMSUIMET .....c.evivieiieiieeteetieieette e e testeestesteesaesseeseeseesseeseesseessesseassesseensesseensesssensenssensensaensenns 556 879
Total nonaccruing loans 1,313 1,680
Accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more:
Commercial:
Business and corporate DAnKing............ccevveiierieienieieeiee et 1 1
TOtal COMMETCIAL .....cveeieiieiieiieie ettt ettt te ettt e et e e e st et e et esseesaesseessesseensessaensesssensennnensenns 1 1
Consumer:
CIEAIE CATAS ..ttt ettt et ste et e st e et este e b e e teesseeseesbeeseesseessesseessesseessesssessesssesseessessenns 9 10
OtRET COMSUITIET .....uvtieuiieeieetteetieeteeetteeteesteeteestteebeesseessseesssessseessseesseenseeanseeseesssaesseessseenseensennes 7 7
TOtAl COMSUIMET .....c.eiieiieeieeieeeie et e ette et e st e ete e tteebeesteeesbeessaeesseessseesseeseeassaeseesssaesseessseensaannseenes 16 17
Total accruing loans contractually past due 90 days or more.................c.cccoeeevvevieecieenieereenennn 17 18
Total nonperforming loans 1,330 1,698
Other real estate OWNEA™ ..ot 24 27
Total NONPErfOrmMINgG ASSELS...........c.cccveviiiiiiiieiiiieieeeeie ettt re e s reebesteebeessesbeesaeseens $ 1354 § 1,725

M At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, nonaccrual consumer mortgage loans held for investment include $396 million and $382 million, respectively,
of loans that are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value of the collateral less cost to sell.

@ Nonaccrual consumer mortgage loans held for investment include all loans which are 90 or more days contractually delinquent as well as loans discharged
under Chapter 7 bankruptcy and not re-affirmed and second lien loans where the first lien loan that we own or service is 90 or more days contractually
delinquent.

® Nonaccrual consumer mortgage loans for all periods does not include guaranteed loans purchased from the Government National Mortgage Association.

Repayment of these loans are predominantly insured by the Federal Housing Administration and as such, these loans have different risk characteristics from
the rest of our customer loan portfolio.

@ Includes $1 million or less of commercial other real estate owned at both March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Nonaccrual loans at March 31, 2017 decreased as compared with December 31, 2016 due to lower levels of consumer nonaccrual
loans driven by the sale of certain residential mortgages during the first quarter of 2017 and, to a lesser extent, lower levels of
commercial nonaccrual loans largely reflecting the paydowns of two large global banking client relationships, partially offset by
downgrades reflecting weaknesses in the financial condition of certain other client relationships. Accruing loans past due 90 days
or more remained flat compared with December 31, 2016.

Our policies and practices for problem loan management and placing loans on nonaccrual status are summarized in Note 2,
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and New Accounting Pronouncements," in our 2016 Form 10-K.

Impaired Commercial Loans See Note 4, "Loans," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for information
regarding impaired loans, including TDR Loans as well as certain other commercial credit quality indicators. Commercial impaired
loans decreased as compared with December 31, 2016 due to lower TDR Loans and nonaccrual loans largely reflecting paydowns,
partially offset by downgrades reflecting weaknesses in the financial condition of certain client relationships.
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Concentration of Credit Risk A concentration of credit risk is defined as a significant credit exposure with an individual or group
engaged in similar activities or affected similarly by economic conditions. We enter into a variety of transactions in the normal
course of business that involve both on and off-balance sheet credit risk. Principal among these activities is lending to various
commercial, institutional, governmental and individual customers throughout the United States and internationally. We manage
the varying degrees of credit risk associated with on and off-balance sheet transactions through specific credit policies and
procedures which provide for a strict approval, monitoring and reporting process. It is our policy to require collateral when it is
deemed appropriate. Varying degrees and types of collateral are secured depending upon management's credit evaluation.

Our consumer loan portfolio includes the following types of loans:

* Interest-only loans — A loan which allows a customer to pay the interest-only portion of the monthly payment for a period
of time which results in lower payments during the initial loan period.

*  Adjustable rate mortgage ("ARM") loans — A loan which allows us to adjust pricing on the loan in line with market
movements.

The following table summarizes the balances of interest-only and ARM loans in our loan portfolios, including certain loans held
for sale, at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016. Each category is not mutually exclusive and loans may appear in more than
one category below.

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
Interest-only residential mortgage and home equity mortgage loans $ 3,594 $ 3,589
ARM loans" 11,997 12,219

Q) During the remainder of 2017 and during 2018, approximately $559 million and $874 million, respectively, of the ARM loans will experience their first

interest rate reset.

The following table summarizes the concentrations of first and second liens within the outstanding residential mortgage and home
equity mortgage portfolios. Amounts in the table exclude residential mortgage loans held for sale of $99 million and $890 million
atMarch 31,2017 and December 31,2016, respectively, and home equity mortgage loans held for sale of $4 million at December 31,
2016.

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Closed end:
$ 17,219 § 17,181
60 64
1,284 1,344

$ 18563 § 18,589

M A majority of revolving are second lien mortgages.
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Geographic Concentrations The following table reflects regional exposure at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 for our real
estate secured loan portfolios:

Commercial Residential
Real Estate, Mortgages and
including Home Equity
Construction Loans Mortgages
March 31, 2017:
INEW YOTK StALE ...viieiiiiiiieiiectie ettt sttt te et e e teesatesbeeseaeebeesraeensaenseesnseensnesnsas 30.5% 32.3%
L1 1T o) a1V USRS 20.9 41.0
North Central United StateS .......ceeeceeeiiieriieiiieiieesieesie et este et sre e e seeeaeeseeeeseeseneennas 3.2 2.7
North Eastern United States, excluding New York State..........cccooeoeoiiniinninninenns 8.6 8.4
Southern UnNIted StateS.......ceeiviieriiriiieiieeiie e eieesiee st esee et esteeesteesteesseesseesseesssesnseenes 27.1 11.1
Western United States, excluding California..........ocooevererierienienninininncscsenenne 6.8 4.5
IMIEXACO .uviutieeieeiieiite et esteeeteeeteesebeesseeesbeesseeesseessaeanseesseesssaenseessseenseassseensaeassennseesssennseenns 2.9 —
11 1 USRS 100.0% 100.0%
December 31, 2016:
INEW YOIK StAtE...cuviieieiieiieiieiee ettt sttt ettt e seeneesseensesaeenseenean 30.8% 32.0%
CAlIfOITIA ...eeneveeiieciieeie ettt et e e e et esbeeteessbeenaeessbeesseessseenseesssesnseesssennseenns 20.9 39.0
North Central United States .........cccerierierieiieiierie ettt see e eeseees 32 3.6
North Eastern United States, excluding New York State..........cccceoeveoniioinicncniencnene. 8.3 8.8
Southern United StAteS........ceecveiirieriieierieieee ettt e e eseens 26.8 12.0
Western United States, excluding California..........cocooevereiienieneieiecicceecnceeeese e 6.9 4.6
1Y (54 oo RS 3.1 —
TOtAL .ttt ettt ettt et te bt b e ra e b e ra et e te e beereenbeeaeereenes 100.0 % 100.0 %
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Credit Risks Associated with Derivative Contracts Creditrisk associated with derivatives is measured as the net replacement cost
of derivative contracts in a receivable position in the event the counterparties of such contracts fail to perform under the terms of
those contracts. In managing derivative credit risk, both the current exposure, which is the replacement cost of contracts on the
measurement date, as well as an estimate of the potential change in value of contracts over their remaining lives are considered.
Counterparties to our derivative activities include financial institutions, central clearing parties, foreign and domestic government
agencies, corporations, funds (mutual funds, hedge funds, etc.), insurance companies and private clients as well as other HSBC
entities. These counterparties are subject to regular credit review by the credit risk management department. To minimize credit
risk, we enter into legally enforceable master netting agreements which reduce risk by permitting the closeout and netting of
transactions with the same counterparty upon occurrence of certain events. In addition, we reduce credit risk by obtaining collateral
from counterparties. The determination of the need for and the levels of collateral will differ based on an assessment of the credit
risk of the counterparty.

The total risk in a derivative contract is a function of a number of variables, such as:

»  volatility of interest rates, currencies, equity or corporate reference entity used as the basis for determining contract

payments;

e current market events or trends;

*  country risk;

*  maturity and liquidity of contracts;

«  credit worthiness of the counterparties in the transaction;

» the existence of a master netting agreement among the counterparties; and

+  existence and value of collateral received from counterparties to secure exposures.
The table below presents total credit risk exposure calculated using the Basel III Standardized Approach regulatory capital rules
published by U.S. banking regulatory agencies which includes the net positive mark-to-market of the derivative contracts plus any
adjusted potential future exposure as measured in reference to the notional amount. The regulatory capital rules recognize that
bilateral netting agreements reduce credit risk and, therefore, allow for reductions of risk weighted assets when netting requirements
have been met and collateral exists. As a result, risk weighted amounts for regulatory capital purposes are a portion of the original
gross exposures. However, many contracts contain provisions that allow us to close out the transaction if the counterparty fails to
post required collateral. In addition, many contracts give us the right to break the transactions earlier than the final maturity date.

As a result, these contracts have potential future exposures that are often much smaller than the future exposures derived from the
regulatory capital rules.

March 31, December 31,
2017 2016

(in millions)

Risk associated with derivative contracts:

Total Credit riSK EXPOSUIE. ...cc.eruiitirertirtitetetetet ettt ettt et eae et ebe b b saea $ 28717 $ 30,339
Less: collateral held against EXPOSULE. .....c..evueteieieieieiieeetteierte ettt et ettt b saea 7,371 7,733
Net Credit TISK EXPOSUIE .....cveureuieiiiieiieiinerteeteste sttt ettt et ettt st sre b s et see e eae et eneeueebesaesaeenes $ 21,346 § 22,606

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Effective liquidity management is defined as ensuring we can meet customer loan requests, customer deposit maturities/withdrawals
and other cash commitments efficiently under both normal operating conditions and under unpredictable circumstances of industry
or market stress. To achieve this objective, we have guidelines that require sufficient liquidity to cover potential funding requirements
and to avoid over-dependence on volatile, less reliable funding markets. Guidelines are set for the consolidated balance sheet of
HSBC USA to ensure that it is a source of strength for our regulated, deposit-taking banking subsidiary, as well as to address the
more limited sources of liquidity available to it as a holding company. Similar guidelines are set for HSBC Bank USA to ensure
that it can meet its liquidity needs in various stress scenarios. Cash flow analysis, including stress testing scenarios, forms the basis
for liquidity management and contingency funding plans. See "Risk Management" in this MD&A for further discussion of our
approach towards liquidity risk management, including information regarding the key measures employed to define, monitor and
control our liquidity and funding risk. During the first quarter of 2017, marketplace liquidity continued to remain available for
most sources of funding.
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In March 2017, the FRB increased short-term interest rates by 25 basis points after a similar rate increase in December 2016 and
indicated that it currently expects to increase short-term interest rates further during 2017, which will continue to ease the pressure
the prolonged period of low interest rates has had on spreads earned on our deposit base.

In 2015, HSBC submitted its full resolution plan to the FRB and the FDIC as required under the Dodd-Frank Act (the Systemically
Important Financial Institution Plan or "SIFI Plan") and HSBC Bank USA submitted its full resolution plan as required under the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act (the Insured Depository Institution Plan or "IDI Plan"). As of the date of this report, HSBC had not
received formal feedback on the 2015 plans from the agencies. During 2016, the next annual submission date for both the HSBC
SIFI Plan and the HSBC Bank USA IDI Plan was extended to December 31, 2017.

As previously reported, as a result of the adoption of the final rules by the U.S. banking regulators implementing the Basel II1
regulatory capital and liquidity reforms from the Basel Committee, together with the impact of similar implementation by U.K.
banking regulators, we continue to review the composition of our capital structure.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks totaled $17,870 million and $20,238 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively, of which $16,577 million and $18,833 million, respectively, were held with the Federal Reserve Bank. Balances may
fluctuate from period to period depending upon our liquidity position at the time and our strategy for deploying liquidity. Surplus
interest bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank may be deployed into securities purchased under agreements to resell or
other investments depending on market conditions and the opportunity to maximize returns.

Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell totaled $30,550 million and $30,023 million at
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. Balances may fluctuate from period to period depending upon our liquidity
position at the time and our strategy for deploying liquidity.

Trading Assets includes securities totaling $11,472 million and $10,667 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively. See "Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on trends.

Securities includes securities available-for-sale and securities held-to-maturity totaling $51,226 million and $49,719 million at
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. See "Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and
discussion on trends.

Short-Term Borrowings totaled $5,438 million and $5,101 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. See
"Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on short-term borrowing trends.

Deposits totaled $129,258 million and $129,248 million at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, which included
$100,175 million and $98,671 million, respectively, of core deposits as calculated in accordance with FFIEC guidelines. See
"Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on deposit trends.

Long-Term Debt increased to $37,803 million at March 31,2017 from $37,739 million at December 31, 2016. The following table
presents the maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2017:

(in millions)

) RSP SRTST $§ 3,454
2018 ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt et et e et et e et e atees b et e eabeattes b ekt enbeett e beeate bt ere e heesaeeaeerbeeteesbeateenbeessenbeereenbeereereenes 10,141
2009 ettt ettt ettt ettt e teeteete et e eteateebeeteebeeatete et eate et e bt eateeaeebeeteeteeteebeetsenreeteeteertereenes 4,707
2020 ..ttt ettt ettt ettt e bt e te bt arte st ante st ante st ente st en s e et e en st antense e At e st eRee s e enteeReenseeReenseeseenseestenteessenseeneensennes 6,459
2021 ettt ettt bt be et e he et et e et e ateer b et e e b eattes b e ekt eabeettenbeeat e bt ere e heeraeeaeerbeeteesbeeteenbeessenbeeteenteereereeres 3,482
BT 2N £ TSR 9,560
1] 1 SRS $ 37,803

The following table summarizes issuances and retirements of long-term debt during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

(in millions)
LONG-1ErM dEDE ISSUEM......oviieviietiieiiiteiceteetet ettt ettt ettt ettt et as et ess et ess et ssese s ese s esessesessessesessesessens $ 1,691 $§ 1,772
Long-term debt T€PAIA. .......ccciieiieiieiieii ettt ettt te et e e et e seeesteesaesbeesaesaeesbesseesseeseenseesaensens (1,990) (667)
Net long-term debt iSSUEd (TEPAIA).....ceuerueeieiiieitieete ettt ettt e sae e e $ (99 $ 1,105

See "Balance Sheet Review" in this MD&A for further analysis and discussion on long-term debt trends, including additional
information on debt issued and repaid during the three months ended March 31, 2017.

Under our shelf registration statement on file with the SEC, we may issue certain securities including debt securities and preferred
stock. We satisfy the eligibility requirements for designation as a "well-known seasoned issuer," which allows us to file a registration
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statement that does not have a limit on issuance capacity. The ability to issue under the registration statement is limited by the
authority granted by the Board of Directors. At March 31, 2017, we were authorized to issue up to $36,000 million, of which
$13,249 million was available. HSBC Bank USA has a $40,000 million Global Bank Note Program that provides for the issuance
of subordinated and senior notes, of which $15,732 million was available at March 31, 2017.

Asamember of the FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, we have secured borrowing facilities which are collateralized
by loans and investment securities. At March 31, 2017, long-term debt included $4,900 million of borrowings from the FHLB
facility. Based upon the amounts pledged as collateral under these facilities, we have additional borrowing capacity of up to $14,611
million.

Preferred Equity See Note 17, "Preferred Stock," in our 2016 Form 10-K for information regarding all outstanding preferred
share issues.

Common Equity During the first quarter of 2017, HSBC USA did not receive any cash capital contributions from its parent, HSBC
North America and did not make any capital contributions to its subsidiary, HSBC Bank USA.

Selected Capital Ratios In managing capital, we develop targets for common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets, Tier 1
capital to risk weighted assets, total capital to risk weighted assets, Tier 1 capital to adjusted quarterly average assets (i.e., the "Tier
1 leverage ratio") and Tier 1 capital to total leverage exposure (i.e., the "supplementary leverage ratio" or "SLR"). Capital targets
are reviewed at least semi-annually to ensure they reflect our business mix and risk profile, as well as real-time conditions and
circumstances. The following table summarizes HSBC USA's Basel 111 transitional and fully phased-in capital ratios calculated
as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

Transitional Fully Phased-In
March 31, December 31, March31, December 31,
2017 2016 2017 2016

Common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets..........ceevvvervreennnne 14.9% 13.7% 14.7% 13.2%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assetS......ccoovvvvverievieiierieiieieceeie e 16.0 14.5 15.7 14.2
Total capital to risk weighted assets.........cccoeeeririiiiiienieeeeseeeeee 19.8 18.3 19.3 17.5
Tier 1 capital to adjusted quarterly average assets (Tier 1 leverage ratio)'" . 9.6 9.2 9.6 9.1
Tier 1 capital to total leverage exposure (supplementary leverage ratio)®... 7.2 6.5 7.2 6.5

M Adjusted quarterly average assets, the Tier 1 leverage ratio denominator, reflects quarterly average assets adjusted for amounts permitted to be deducted from

Tier 1 capital for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.

@ Beginning January 1, 2018, banking institutions will be required to maintain the regulatory minimum SLR of 3 percent. Total leverage exposure, the SLR

denominator, includes adjusted quarterly average assets plus certain off-balance sheet exposures.

HSBC USA manages capital in accordance with HSBC Group policy. The HSBC North America Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process ("ICAAP") works in conjunction with the HSBC Group's ICAAP. The HSBC North America ICAAP applies
to HSBC Bank USA and evaluates regulatory capital adequacy, economic capital adequacy and capital adequacy under various
stress scenarios. Our approach is to meet our capital needs for these stress scenarios locally through activities which reduce risk.
To the extent that local alternatives are insufficient or unavailable, we will rely on capital support from our parent in accordance
with HSBC's capital management policy. HSBC has indicated that they are fully committed and have the capacity to provide capital
as needed to run operations and maintain sufficient regulatory capital ratios.

Regulatory capital requirements are based on the amount of capital required to be held, as defined by regulations, and the amount
of risk weighted assets, also calculated based on regulatory definitions. Economic Capital is a proprietary measure to estimate
unexpected loss at the 99.95 percent confidence level over a 1-year time horizon. Economic Capital is compared to a calculation
of available capital resources to assess capital adequacy as part of the ICAAP.

In 2013, U.S. banking regulators issued a final rule implementing the Basel III capital framework in the United States which, for
banking organizations such as HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA, became effective in 2014 with certain provisions
being phased in over time through the beginning of 2019. The Basel III final rule established an integrated regulatory capital
framework to improve the quality and quantity of regulatory capital. For additional discussion of the Basel I1I final rule requirements,
including fully phased in required minimum capital ratios, see Part I, "Regulation and Competition - Regulatory Capital and
Liquidity Requirements," in our 2016 Form 10-K. In 2017, HSBC Bank USA submitted an annual statement to the OCC to renew
its opt out of the Advanced Approaches Capital Framework (which includes using an advanced internal ratings based approach
for credit risk and an advanced measurement approach for operational risk). As a result, we calculate our risk-based and leverage
capital requirements solely under the general risk-based capital rules of the Standardized Approach.

In 2015, the Financial Stability Board ("FSB") issued its final standards for TLAC requirements for G-SIBs. In December 2016,
the FRB adopted final rules implementing the FSB's TLAC standard in the United States. The rules require, among other things,
the U.S. IHCs of non U.S. G-SIBs, including HSBC North America, to maintain minimum amounts of TLAC which would include
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minimum levels of Tier 1 capital and long-term debt satisfying certain eligibility criteria, and a related TLAC buffer commencing
January 1, 2019, without the benefit of a phase-in period. The TLAC rules also include 'clean holding company requirements' that
impose limitations on the types of financial transactions that HSBC North America could engage in. The FSB's TLAC standard
and the FRB's TLAC rules represent a significant expansion of the current regulatory capital framework that will require HSBC
North America to issue additional long-term debt.

Capital Planning and Stress Testing U.S. bank holding companies with $50 billion or more in total consolidated assets, including
HSBC North America, are required to comply with the FRB's capital plan rule and CCAR program, as well as the annual supervisory
stress tests conducted by the FRB, and the semi-annual company-run stress tests as required under DFAST. As part of the CCAR
process, the FRB undertakes a supervisory assessment of bank holding companies on their capital adequacy, internal capital
adequacy assessment process and plans for capital distributions. The FRB can object to a capital plan for qualitative or quantitative
reasons, in which case the company cannot make capital distributions (with the exception of those that may have already received
anon-objection in the previous year) without specific FRB approval. HSBC North America participates in the CCAR and DFAST
programs of the FRB and submitted its latest CCAR capital plan and annual company-run DFAST results in April 2017. HSBC
Bank USA is subject to the OCC's DFAST requirements, which require certain banks to conduct annual company-run stress tests,
and submitted its latest annual DFAST results in April 2017. The company-run stress tests are forward looking exercises to assess
the impact of hypothetical macroeconomic baseline, adverse and severely adverse scenarios provided by the FRB and the OCC
for the annual exercise, and internally developed scenarios for both the annual and mid-cycle exercises, on the financial condition
and capital adequacy of a bank-holding company or bank over a nine quarter planning horizon. In January 2017, the FRB announced
that so-called “large and noncomplex” firms, which are firms with less than $250 billion in total consolidated assets and less than
$75 billion in total nonbanking assets, are exempt from the CCAR qualitative assessment. HSBC North America does not currently
fall into the category of “large and noncomplex” and will, therefore, remain subject to the qualitative review in the 2017 CCAR
cycle.

HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA are required to disclose the results of their annual DFAST under the FRB and OCC’s
severely adverse stress scenario and HSBC North America is required to disclose the results of its mid-cycle DFAST under its
internally developed severely adverse stress scenario. HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA will publicly disclose their
next annual DFAST results, as required, within 15 days of the FRB disclosing the results of its own DFAST results. The FRB will
publicly disclose its own DFAST and CCAR results on or before June 30, 2017.

Stress testing results are based solely on hypothetical adverse stress scenarios and should not be viewed or interpreted as forecasts
of expected outcomes or capital adequacy or of the actual financial condition of HSBC North America or HSBC Bank USA. Capital
planning and stress testing for HSBC North America or HSBC Bank USA may impact our future capital and liquidity. See Part I,
"Regulation and Competition - Regulatory Capital and Liquidity Requirements," in our 2016 Form 10-K for further discussion on
capital planning and stress testing, including additional detail regarding the FRB's supervisory assessment as part of the CCAR
process.

While bank holding company regulatory capital compliance is generally performed at the HSBC North America level, and also
separately for HSBC Bank USA, as a bank holding company we are required to meet minimum capital requirements imposed by
the FRB. We present our capital ratios, together with HSBC Bank USA's in Note 14, "Retained Earnings and Regulatory Capital
Requirements," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

2017 Funding Strategy Our current estimate for funding needs and sources for 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Actual Estimated
January 1 April 1
through through Estimated
March 31, December 31, Full Year
2017 2017 2017
(in billions)
Funding needs:
NEt 10N GLOWEN......eieiiiieiei ettt $ 5 $ 1 $ C))
Net change in short-term investments and SECUITHES...........cccccvvvrueuciiirirciiriiiennn. (1) @) ®)
Trading and Other @SSELS......c..coiriririirinenieicteeteteee ettt 6 3 9
Total funding NEEAS ........ooverieieeeeeee s $ — 3 3 $ 3)
Funding sources:
Net change in dEPOSILS «..c..eevirreririirierierieiee ettt et $ — 3 2) $ ?2)
Trading and other short-term liabilities..........ccccoevieiiiinininininicccc — 1 1
Net change in long-term debt..........ooeviiiiiiiiiiiii e — 2) ?2)
Total funding SOUICES .....c.eoverieriiiiieieieiete ettt $ — 3 3 $ 3)
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The above table reflects a long-term funding strategy. Daily balances fluctuate as we accommodate customer needs, while ensuring
that we have liquidity in place to support the balance sheet maturity funding profile. Should market conditions deteriorate, we
have contingency plans to generate additional liquidity through the sales of assets or financing transactions. We remain confident
in our ability to access the market for long-term debt funding needs in the current market environment. We continue to seek well-
priced and stable customer deposits. We continue to sell a portion of new mortgage loan originations to PHH Mortgage.

HSBC Finance relies on its affiliates, including HSBC USA, to satisfy its funding needs which are not met by cash generated from
its loan sales and operations. During the first quarter of 2017, HSBC Finance prepaid the $2.5 billion that was outstanding under
our credit agreement with it. See Note 12, "Related Party Transactions," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for further information.

HSBC Bank USA is subject to significant restrictions imposed by federal law on extensions of credit to, and certain other "covered
transactions" with HSBC USA and other affiliates. Covered transactions include loans and other extensions of credit, investments
and asset purchases, and certain other transactions involving the transfer of value from a subsidiary bank to an affiliate or for the
benefit of an affiliate. A bank's credit exposure to an affiliate as a result of a derivative, securities lending/borrowing or repurchase
transaction is also subject to these restrictions. A bank's transactions with its non-bank affiliates are also required to be on arm's
length terms. Certain Edge Act subsidiaries of HSBC Bank USA are limited in the amount of funds they can provide to other
affiliates including their parent. Amounts above their level of invested capital have to be secured with U.S. government securities.

For further discussion relating to our sources of liquidity and contingency funding plan, see the caption "Risk Management" in
this MD&A.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Credit Derivatives and Other Contractual Obligations

As part of our normal operations, we enter into credit derivatives and various off-balance sheet arrangements with affiliates and
third parties. These arrangements arise principally in connection with our lending and client intermediation activities and involve
primarily extensions of credit and, in certain cases, guarantees.

As a financial services provider, we routinely extend credit through loan commitments and lines and letters of credit and provide
financial guarantees, including derivative transactions having characteristics of a guarantee. The contractual amounts of these
financial instruments represent our maximum possible credit exposure in the event that a counterparty draws down the full
commitment amount or we are required to fulfill our maximum obligation under a guarantee.

The following table provides maturity information related to our credit derivatives and off-balance sheet arrangements. Many of
these commitments and guarantees expire unused or without default. As a result, we believe that the contractual amount is not
representative of the actual future credit exposure or funding requirements.

Balance at March 31, 2017

One Year Oﬂ‘llﬁ(rngg?le Over Five Dl:caelzlnbceerzgtl’
or Less Five Years Years Total 2016
(in millions)

Standby letters of credit, net of participations(” ............................. $ 5707 § 2446 $ 92 § 8245 $ 8,392

Commercial letters of credit.........cceoeveeviiiciieiieniieieee e 172 46 — 218 242

Credit derivatives™ ...........cooooorvveervoerisesees s 20,781 32,344 2,844 55969 58,329
Other commitments to extend credit:

ComMETCIal® ..o 15,787 56,149 1,768 73,704 74,832

CONSUMET ...t 7,264 — — 7,264 7,270

TOAL oo $ 49,711 $90,985 $ 4,704 $145400 $ 149,065

@ Includes $1,393 million and $1,315 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.
@ Includes $33,751 million and $29,999 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively.
®  Includes $500 million issued for the benefit of HSBC affiliates at both March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Other Commitments to Extend Credit Other commitments to extend credit include arrangements whereby we are contractually
obligated to extend credit in the form of loans, participations in loans, lease financing receivables, or similar transactions. Consumer
commitments are comprised of certain unused MasterCard/Visa credit card lines, where we have the right to change terms or
conditions upon notification to the customer, and commitments to extend credit secured by residential properties, where we have
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the right to change terms or conditions, for cause, upon notification to the customer. Commercial commitments comprise primarily
those related to secured and unsecured loans and lines of credit.

In addition to the above, we have established and manage a number of constant net asset value ("CNAV") money market funds
that invest in shorter-dated highly-rated money market securities to provide investors with a highly liquid and secure investment.
These funds price the assets in their portfolio on an amortized cost basis, which enables them to create and liquidate shares at a
constant price. The funds, however, are not permitted to price their portfolios at amortized cost if that amount varies by more than
50 basis points from the portfolio's market value. In that case, the fund would be required to price its portfolio at market value and
consequently would no longer be able to create or liquidate shares at a constant price. We do not consolidate the CNAV funds
because we do not absorb the majority of the expected future risk associated with the fund's assets, including interest rate, liquidity,
credit and other relevant risks that are expected to affect the value of the assets.

Fair Value

Control Over Valuation Process and Procedures We have established a control framework which is designed to ensure that fair
values are either determined or validated by a function independent of the risk-taker. See Note 17, "Fair Value Measurements," in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further details on our valuation control framework.

Fair Value Hierarchy Fair value measurement accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy structure that prioritizes the
inputs to determine the fair value of an asset or liability (the "Fair Value Framework"). The Fair Value Framework distinguishes
between inputs that are based on observed market data and unobservable inputs that reflect market participants' assumptions. It
emphasizes the use of valuation methodologies that maximize observable market inputs. For financial instruments carried at fair
value, the best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an actively traded market (Level 1). Where the market for a financial
instrument is not active, valuation techniques are used. The majority of our valuation techniques use market inputs that are either
observable or indirectly derived from and corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the financial
instrument (Level 2). Because Level 1 and Level 2 instruments are determined by observable inputs, less judgment is applied in
determining their fair values. In the absence of observable market inputs, the financial instrument is valued based on valuation
techniques that feature one or more significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). The determination of the level of fair value hierarchy
within which the fair value measurement of an asset or a liability is classified often requires judgment and may change over time
as market conditions evolve. We consider the following factors in developing the fair value hierarchy:

. whether the asset or liability is transacted in an active market with a quoted market price;
. the level of bid-ask spreads;

. a lack of pricing transparency due to, among other things, complexity of the product and market liquidity;

. whether only a few transactions are observed over a significant period of time;

. whether the pricing quotations differ substantially among independent pricing services;

. whether inputs to the valuation techniques can be derived from or corroborated with market data; and

. whether significant adjustments are made to the observed pricing information or model output to determine the fair
value.

Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the reporting entity has the ability to access for identical assets
or liabilities. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange or is an instrument actively
traded in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market where transactions occur with sufficient frequency and volume. We regard financial
instruments such as equity securities and derivative contracts listed on the primary exchanges of a country to be actively traded.
Non-exchange-traded instruments classified as Level 1 assets include securities issued by the U.S. Treasury, to-be-announced
securities and non-callable securities issued by U.S. GSEs.

Level 2 inputs are those that are observable either directly or indirectly but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. We classify mortgage
pass-through securities, agency and certain non-agency mortgage collateralized obligations, certain derivative contracts, asset-
backed securities, obligations of U.S. states and political subdivisions, corporate debt, foreign government-backed debt, preferred
securities, securities purchased and sold under resale and repurchase agreements, precious metals, certain commercial loans held
for sale, residential mortgage loans whose carrying amount was reduced based on the fair value of the underlying collateral and
real estate owned as Level 2 measurements. Where possible, at least two quotations from independent sources are obtained based
on transactions involving comparable assets and liabilities to validate the fair value of these instruments. We have established a
process to understand the methodologies and inputs used by the third party pricing services to ensure that pricing information met
the fair value objective. Where significant differences arise among the independent pricing quotes and the internally determined
fair value, we investigate and reconcile the differences. If the investigation results in a significant adjustment to the fair value, the
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instrument will be classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. In general, we have observed that there is a correlation
between the credit standing and the market liquidity of a non-derivative instrument.

Level 2 derivative instruments are generally valued based on discounted future cash flows or an option pricing model adjusted for
counterparty credit risk and market liquidity. The fair value of certain structured derivative products is determined using valuation
techniques based on inputs derived from observable benchmark index tranches traded in the OTC market. Appropriate control
processes and procedures have been applied to ensure that the derived inputs are applied to value only those instruments that share
similar risks to the relevant benchmark indices and therefore demonstrate a similar response to market factors. In addition, a
validation process has been established, which includes participation in peer group consensus pricing surveys, to ensure that
valuation inputs incorporate market participants' risk expectations and risk premium.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable estimates that management expects market participants would use to determine the fair value of
the asset or liability. That is, Level 3 inputs incorporate market participants' assumptions about risk and the risk premium required
by market participants in order to bear that risk. We develop Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the
circumstances. At March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, our Level 3 instruments included the following: collateralized debt
obligations ("CDOs") for which there is a lack of pricing transparency due to market illiquidity, certain structured deposits and
structured notes for which the embedded credit, foreign exchange or equity derivatives have significant unobservable inputs (e.g.,
volatility or default correlations), asset-backed credit default swaps with certain inputs which are unobservable, certain residential
mortgage and subprime mortgage loans held for sale, certain corporate debt securities, certain asset-backed securities, impaired
commercial loans, derivatives referenced to illiquid assets of less desirable credit quality and swap agreements entered into in
conjunction with the sales of certain Visa Class B Shares for which the fair value is dependent upon the final resolution of the
related litigation. See Note 16, "Guarantee Arrangements, Pledged Assets and Repurchase Agreements," in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for additional information.

See Note 17, "Fair Value Measurements," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information on
Level 3 inputs as well as a discussion of transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 measurements during the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016.

Level 3 Measurements The following table provides information about Level 3 assets/liabilities in relation to total assets/liabilities
measured at fair value at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)
LeVEl 3 aSSEES ) ettt $ 3972 §$§ 4,611
Total assets measured at fAIr VAIUE ™ oo 106,590 113,299
Level 3 Habilities'...........oovuiveeeeeceeeeee e 1,941 2,114
Total liabilities measured at fair VAIUED .........oo. oo e 68,694 81,176
Level 3 assets as a percent of total assets measured at fair value 3.7% 4.1%
Level 3 liabilities as a percent of total liabilities measured at fair value ...........ccoccoveeriiieniienennne 2.8% 2.6%

M Ppresented without netting which allows the offsetting of amounts relating to certain contracts if certain conditions are met.

@ Includes $3,518 million of recurring Level 3 assets and $454 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets at March 31,2017. Includes $3,564 million of recurring

Level 3 assets and $1,047 million of non-recurring Level 3 assets at December 31, 2016.

) Includes $106,029 million of assets measured on a recurring basis and $561 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis at March 31, 2017. Includes

$112,104 million of assets measured on a recurring basis and $1,195 million of assets measured on a non-recurring basis at December 31, 2016.

Significant Changes in Fair Value for Level 3 Assets and Liabilities We have entered into credit default swaps with monoline
insurers to hedge our credit exposure in certain asset-backed securities and synthetic CDOs. We made $4 million negative credit
risk adjustments to the fair value of our credit default swap contracts during the three months ended March 31, 2017 compared
with negative adjustments of $ 1 million during the three months ended March 31,2016. These adjustments to fair value are recorded
in trading revenue in the consolidated statement of income. We have recorded a cumulative credit adjustment reserve of $26 million
and $22 million against our monoline exposure at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. The fair value of our
monoline exposure net of cumulative credit adjustment reserves equaled $154 million and $159 million at March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectively.

See Note 17, "Fair Value Measurements," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for information on additions to
and transfers into (out of) Level 3 measurements during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 as well as for further
details including the classification hierarchy associated with assets and liabilities measured at fair value.
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Effect of Changes in Significant Unobservable Inputs The fair value of certain financial instruments is measured using valuation
techniques that incorporate pricing assumptions not supported by, derived from or corroborated by observable market data. The
resultant fair value measurements are dependent on unobservable input parameters which can be selected from a range of estimates
and may be interdependent. Changes in one or more of the significant unobservable input parameters may change the fair value
measurements of these financial instruments. For the purpose of preparing the financial statements, the final valuation inputs
selected are based on management's best judgment that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing similar
assets or liabilities.

The unobservable input parameters selected are subject to the internal valuation control processes and procedures. When we
perform a test of all the significant input parameters to the extreme values within the range at the same time, it could result in an
increase of the overall fair value measurement of approximately $74 million or a decrease of the overall fair value measurement
of approximately $14 million at March 31, 2017. The effect of changes in significant unobservable input parameters are primarily
driven by the uncertainty in determining the fair value of credit derivatives executed against certain insurers as well as credit
default swaps with certain monoline insurers and certain asset-backed securities including CDOs.

Assets Underlying Asset-backed Securities The following tables summarize the types of assets underlying our asset-backed
securities as well as certain collateralized debt obligations held at March 31, 2017:

Total
(in millions)
Rating of securities:" Collateral type:
AAA o Residential mortgages - Alt A......ccoeieeiieiieeeeeee e $ 41
AA e ONET .ttt 48
A Residential mortgages - Alt A......ccoeieeiieiieeeeeee e 4
Residential mortgages - Subprime.. 32
Home equity - Alt A.......ccoeeeeene. 59
Student 10ans ........c.cceceeerereneenne. 85
Other ..o . 459
TOAL Ao T 639
BBB ... Residential mortgages - Alt A......ccooieeiieieieeeee e 1
Collateralized debt OblIZatiONS .........c.cceevereerieriieieeieieeeere e 184
TOAl BBB.....voovvvvoreeeeeeeeresessssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssseeseesesss s TS
CCC it Residential mortgages - SUbPrime..........cccceevveviieriieieniieieneeeese e T 15
5w

M We utilize S&P as the primary source of credit ratings in the tables above. If S&P ratings are not available, ratings by Moody's and Fitch are used, in that

order. Ratings for collateralized debt obligations represent the ratings associated with the underlying collateral.

Risk Management

Overview Managingrisk effectively is fundamental to the delivery of our strategic priorities. To do so, we employ arisk management
framework at all levels and across all risk types. This framework fosters the continuous monitoring of the risk environment and
an integrated evaluation of risks and their interactions. It is designed to ensure that we have a robust and consistent approach to
risk management across all of our activities. While we are subject to a number of legal and regulatory actions and investigations,
our risk management framework has been designed to provide robust controls and ongoing monitoring of our principal risks. We
strive to continuously improve our risk management processes through ongoing employee training and development.

The principal risks associated with our operations include the following:

*  Credit risk is the potential that a borrower or counterparty will default on a credit obligation, as well as the impact on the
value of credit instruments due to changes in the probability of borrower default. Credit risk includes risk associated with
cross-border exposures. Credit risk is further discussed below.

»  Liquidity risk is the potential that an institution will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due or fund its
customers because of inadequate cash flow or the inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding itself and is further
discussed below.

117



HSBC USA Inc.

»  Interest rate risk is the potential reduction of net interest income due to mismatched pricing between assets and liabilities
as well as losses in value due to interest rate movements and is further discussed below.

*  Market risk is the risk that movements in market factors, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads,
equity prices and commodity prices, will reduce our income or the value of our portfolios and is further discussed below.

»  Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, or systems, or from
external events (including legal risk). There have been no material changes to our approach toward operational risk since
December 31, 2016.

*  Compliance risk is the risk that we fail to observe the letter and spirit of all relevant laws, codes, rules, regulations and
standards of good market practice causing us to incur fines, penalties and damage to our business and reputation. There
have been no material changes to our approach toward compliance risk since December 31, 2016.

*  Fiduciary risk is the risk of breaching fiduciary duties where we act in a fiduciary capacity as trustee, investment manager
or as mandated by law or regulation. There have been no material changes to our approach toward fiduciary risk since
December 31, 2016.

*  Reputational risk is the risk arising from failure to meet stakeholder expectations as a result of any event, behavior, action
or inaction, either by us, our employees, the HSBC Group or those with whom it is associated, that may cause stakeholders
to form a negative view of us. This might also result in financial or non-financial impacts, loss of confidence or other
consequences. There have been no material changes to our approach toward reputational risk since December 31, 2016.

»  Strategic risk is the risk that the business will fail to identify, execute, and react appropriately to opportunities and/or
threats arising from changes in the market, some of which may emerge over a number of years such as changing economic
and political circumstances, customer requirements, demographic trends, regulatory developments or competitor action.
There have been no material changes to our approach toward strategic risk since December 31, 2016.

»  Security and Fraud risk is the risk to the business from terrorism, crime, fraud, information security, incidents/disasters,
cyber-attacks and groups hostile to HSBC interests. There have been no material changes to our approach toward security
and fraud risk since December 31, 2016.

*  Model risk is the potential for adverse consequences from decisions based on incorrect or misused model outputs and
reports. This occurs primarily for two reasons: 1) the model may produce inaccurate outputs when compared with the
intended business use and design objective; and 2) the model could be used incorrectly. There have been no material
changes to our approach toward model risk since December 31, 2016.

*  Pension risk is the risk of increased costs from the post-employment benefit plans that we have established for our
employees. There have been no material changes to our approach toward pension risk since December 31, 2016.

»  Sustainability risk is the risk that financial services provided to customers indirectly result in unacceptable impacts on
people or on the environment. There have been no material changes to our approach toward sustainability risk since
December 31, 2016.

See "Risk Management" in MD&A in our 2016 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of the objectives of our risk management
system as well as our risk management policies and practices. Our risk management process involves the use of various simulation
models. We believe that the assumptions used in these models are reasonable, but actual events may unfold differently than what
is assumed in the models. Consequently, model results may be considered reasonable estimates, with the understanding that actual
results may differ significantly from model projections.

Credit Risk Management Credit risk is the potential that a borrower or counterparty will default on a credit obligation, as well
as the impact on the value of credit instruments due to changes in the probability of borrower default. Credit risk includes risk
associated with cross-border exposures. There have been no material changes to our approach towards credit risk management
since December 31, 2016. See "Risk Management" in MD&A in our 2016 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of our
approach to credit risk.

Credit risk is inherent in various on- and off-balance sheet instruments and arrangements, such as:
* loan portfolios;
* investment portfolios;

* unfunded commitments such as letters of credit, lines of credit, and unutilized credit card lines that customers can draw
upon; and

»  derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps which, if more valuable today than when originally contracted,
may represent an exposure to the counterparty to the contract.

While credit risk exists widely in our operations, diversification among various commercial and consumer portfolios helps to
lessen risk exposure. Day-to-day management of credit and market risk is performed by the Chief Credit Officer/Head of Wholesale
Credit and Market Risk North America and the HSBC North America Chief Retail Credit Officer, who report directly to the HSBC
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North America Chief Risk Officer and maintain independent risk functions. The credit risk associated with commercial portfolios
is managed by the Chief Credit Officer, while credit risk associated with retail consumer loan portfolios, such as credit cards,
installment loans and residential mortgages, is managed by the HSBC North America Chief Retail Credit Officer. Further discussion
of credit risk can be found under the "Credit Quality" caption in this MD&A.

Liquidity Risk Management There have been no material changes to our approach towards liquidity risk management since
December 31, 2016. See "Risk Management" in MD&A in our 2016 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of our approach
to liquidity risk. Although our overall approach to liquidity risk management has not changed, we continuously monitor the impact
of market events on our liquidity positions and will continue to adapt our liquidity framework to reflect market events and the
evolving regulatory landscape and view as to best practices.

Our liquidity risk management approach includes deposits, supplemented by wholesale borrowing to fund our balance sheet, and
using security sales or secured borrowings for liquidity stress situations in our liquidity contingency plans. In addition, current
regulatory initiatives encourage banks to retain a portfolio of extremely high quality liquid assets. As such, we are maintaining a
large portfolio of high quality sovereign and sovereign guaranteed securities. As previously discussed, HSBC Finance relies on
its affiliates, including HSBC USA, to satisfy its funding needs outside of cash generated from its loan sales and operations.

As part of our approach towards liquidity risk management, we employ the following key measures to define, monitor and control
our liquidity and funding risk in accordance with HSBC policy:

The Basel Committee based Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR") is designed to be a short-term liquidity measure to ensure banks
have sufficient High Quality Liquid Assets ("HQLA") to cover net stressed cash outflows over the next 30 days. At both March
31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, HSBC USA's LCR under the EU LCR rule exceeded 100 percent. A LCR of 100 percent or
higher reflects an unencumbered HQLA balance that is equal to or exceeds liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day liquidity stress
scenario. HQLA consists of cash or assets that can be converted into cash at little or no loss of value in private markets.

The European calibration of the Basel Committee based NSFR, which is a longer term liquidity measure with a 12-month time
horizon to ensure a sustainable maturity structure of assets and liabilities, is still pending. Therefore, our calculation of NSFR is
based on our current interpretation and understanding of the Basel Committee NSFR rule, which may differ in future periods
depending on completion of the European calibration and further implementation guidance from regulators. At both March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, HSBC USA's estimated NSFR exceeded 100 percent. A NSFR of 100 percent or more reflects an
available stable funding balance from liabilities and capital over the next 12 months that is equal to or exceeds the required amount
of funding for assets and off-balance sheet exposures.

In 2014, the FRB, the OCC and the FDIC issued final regulations to implement the LCR in the United States, applicable to certain
large banking institutions, including HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA. The U.S. LCR rule is generally consistent with
the Basel Committee guidelines, but is more stringent in several areas including the range of assets that qualify as HQLA and the
assumed rate of outflows of certain kinds of funding. Under the U.S. rule, U.S. institutions, including HSBC North America and
HSBC Bank USA, are required to maintain a minimum LCR of 100 percent beginning January 1, 2017, two years ahead of the
Basel Committee's timeframe for compliance by January 1, 2019, and report LCR to U.S. regulators on a daily basis beginning
July 1, 2016. During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and the second half of 2016, HSBC Bank USA's LCR under the U.S.
LCR rule remained above the 100 percent minimum requirement. The U.S. LCR rule does not address the U.S. NSFR requirement,
which is currently in an international observation period. Based on the results of the observation period, the Basel Committee and
U.S. banking regulators may make further changes to the NSFR. In April 2016, U.S. regulators issued for public comment a
proposal to implement the NSFR in the United States, applicable to certain large banking organizations, including HSBC North
America and HSBC Bank USA. The U.S. NSFR proposal is generally consistent with the Basel Committee guidelines, but similar
to the U.S. LCR rule, is more stringent in several areas including the required stable funding factors applied to certain assets such
as mortgage-backed securities. Under the proposal, U.S. institutions would be required to comply with the U.S. NSFR rule by
January 1, 2018, consistent with the scheduled global implementation of the Basel Committee based NSFR. At both March 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, HSBC Bank USA's estimated NSFR, based on our current interpretation and understanding of the
proposed U.S. NSFR rule, exceeded 100 percent.

HSBC North America and HSBC Bank USA have adjusted their liquidity profiles to support compliance with these rules. HSBC
North America and HSBC Bank USA may need to make further changes to their liquidity profiles to support compliance with any
future final rules.
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Our ability to regularly attract wholesale funds at a competitive cost is enhanced by strong ratings from the major credit ratings
agencies. The following table reflects the short and long-term credit ratings of HSBC USA and HSBC Bank USA at March 31,
2017:

Moody's S&P Fitch
HSBC USA:
Short-term DOTTOWINES. .....ccveveieieiieiieieieeieeer ettt P-1 A-1 F1+
Long-term/senior debt ..........ccccueiriririiiiiiineneneeereeeeeeeeeee e A2 A AA-
HSBC Bank USA:
Short-term DOITOWINGS. ... .cvieeieieieiieiieiiete ettt eee e P-1 A-1+ F1+
LONg-term/SENIOT AEDL ........vvivivieieierieiiiieieieiscieie st Aa3® AA- AA-

M Moody's long-term deposit rating for HSBC Bank USA was Aa2 at March 31, 2017.

Rating agencies continue to evaluate economic and geopolitical trends, regulatory developments, future profitability, risk
management practices and litigation matters, all of which could lead to adverse ratings actions.

Although we closely monitor and strive to manage factors influencing our credit ratings, there is no assurance that our credit ratings
will not change in the future. At March 31, 2017, there were no pending actions in terms of changes to ratings on the debt of HSBC
USA or HSBC Bank USA from any of the rating agencies.

Interest Rate Risk Management Various techniques are utilized to quantify and monitor risks associated with the repricing
characteristics of our assets, liabilities and derivative contracts. Our approach to managing interest rate risk is summarized in
MD&A in our 2016 Form 10-K under the caption "Risk Management". There have been no material changes to our approach
towards interest rate risk management since December 31, 2016.

Present value of a basis point ("PVBP") PVBP is the change in value of the balance sheet for a one basis point upward movement
in all interest rates. The following table reflects the PVBP position at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

March 31, December 31,

2017 2016
(in millions)
Institutional PVBP MOVEMENT HIMIE.......coiiivieiieiiieiteieeeeceeeee ettt st see s eneensene e $ 80 $ 8.0
PVBP position at Period €N ........c.ccoiriiriririiniieieictetetet ettt 3.9 4.4

Net interest income simulation modeling techniques We utilize simulation modeling to monitor a number of interest rate scenarios
for their impact on projected net interest income. These techniques simulate the impact on projected net interest income under
various scenarios, such as rate shock scenarios, which assume immediate market rate movements by as much as 200 basis points,
as well as scenarios in which rates rise gradually by as much as 200 basis point or fall by as much as 100 basis points over a twelve
month period. The following table reflects the impact on projected net interest income of the scenarios utilized by these modeling
techniques:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Amount % Amount %

(dollars are in millions)

Estimated increase (decrease) in projected net interest income (reflects projected rate
movements on April 1, 2017 and January 1, 2017, respectively):

Resulting from a gradual 100 basis point increase in the yield curve...........ccccoceeenenene $ 96 4% $ 123 5%
Resulting from a gradual 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve...........ccccceeveeeneee. (86) 3) (158) (6)
Resulting from a gradual 200 basis point increase in the yield curve...........c.ccoceeenenee 160 6 208 8

Other significant scenarios monitored (reflects projected rate movements on April 1,
2017 and January 1, 2017, respectively):

Resulting from an immediate 50 basis point decrease in the yield curve....................... (88) “) (156) (6)
Resulting from an immediate 100 basis point increase in the yield curve...................... 157 6 209 8
Resulting from an immediate 100 basis point decrease in the yield curve..................... 298) (12) 347) (14
Resulting from an immediate 200 basis point increase in the yield curve...................... 263 11 366 15
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The projections do not take into consideration possible complicating factors such as the effect of changes in interest rates on the
credit quality, size and composition of the balance sheet. Therefore, although this provides a reasonable estimate of interest rate
sensitivity, actual results will differ from these estimates, possibly by significant amounts.

Capital risk/sensitivity of other comprehensive loss Large movements of interest rates could directly affect some reported capital
balances and ratios. The mark-to-market valuation of available-for-sale securities is recorded on a tax effected basis to accumulated
other comprehensive loss. This valuation mark is included in two important accounting based capital ratios: common equity Tier
1 capital to risk weighted assets and total equity to total assets. Under the final rule adopting the Basel I1I regulatory capital reforms,
the valuation mark is being phased into common equity Tier 1 capital over five years beginning in 2014. At March 31, 2017, we
had an available-for-sale securities portfolio of approximately $37,911 million with a negative mark-to-market adjustment of $427
million. An increase of 25 basis points in interest rates of all maturities would lower the mark-to-market by approximately $316
million to a net loss of $743 million with the following results on our capital ratios:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Actual Proforma® Actual Proforma®
Common equity Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets..........cccoccceveeerennne 14.9% 14.8% 13.7% 13.6%
Total equity t0 total ASSELS......cceeruirieriiieriieerieeer e 10.3 10.2 10.1 10.0

M Proforma percentages reflect a 25 basis point increase in interest rates.

Market Risk Management Market risk is the risk that movements in market factors, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates,
credit spreads, equity prices and commodity prices, will reduce our income or the value of our portfolios. Exposure to market risk
is separated into two portfolios:

»  Trading portfolios comprise positions arising from market-making and warehousing of client-derived positions.

*  Non-trading portfolios comprise positions that primarily arise from the interest rate management of our retail and
commercial banking assets and liabilities and financial investments classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity.

There have been no material changes to our approach towards market risk management since December 31, 2016. See "Risk
Management" in MD&A in our 2016 Form 10-K for a more complete discussion of our approach to market risk.

Value at Risk ("VaR") VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses on risk positions as a result of movements in market
rates and prices over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence. VaR is calculated for all trading positions and
non-trading positions which are equally sensitive to market moves regardless of how we capitalize those exposures. VAR is
calculated at a 99 percent confidence level for a one-day holding period.

Trading Portfolios Trading VaR generates from the Global Markets unit of the GB&M business segment. Portfolios are mainly
comprised of foreign exchange products, interest rate swaps and precious metals (i.e. gold, silver, platinum) in both North America
and emerging markets.

Daily VaR (trading portfolios), 99 percent 1 day (in millions):
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The following table summarizes our trading VaR for the three months ended March 31, 2017:

Foreign
exchange and Portfolio
commodity Interest rate Credit Spread diversification Total®
(in millions)
At March 31,2017 $ 2 S8 6 $ 1 S A3 S 6
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017
Average...... 1 ?2)
Maximum... 1
MINIMUM e 1 5 1
At December 31,2016...................cooevvenrennn. $ 1 S 6 $ 1 S 3) 3 5

M Portfolio diversification is the market risk dispersion effect of holding a portfolio containing different risk types. It represents the reduction in unsystematic

market risk that occurs when combining a number of different risk types, for example, foreign exchange, interest rate and credit spread, together in one
portfolio. It is measured as the difference between the sum of the VaR by individual risk type and the combined total VaR. A negative number represents the
benefit of portfolio diversification. As the maximum and minimum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not meaningful to calculate a portfolio
diversification benefit for these measures.

@ The total VaR is non-additive across risk types due to diversification effects. For presentation purposes, portfolio diversification of the VaR for trading

portfolios includes VaR-based risk-not-in-VaR.
Backtesting In the first quarter of 2017, we experienced no backtesting exceptions.

We daily validate the accuracy of our VaR models by back-testing them against hypothetical profit and loss that excludes non-
modeled items such as fees, commissions and revenues of intra-day transactions from the actual reported profit and loss. We would
expect on average to see two to three profits, and two to three losses, in excess of VaR at the 99 percent confident level over a one-
year period. The actual number of profits or losses in excess of VaR over this period can therefore be used to gauge how well the
models are performing. To ensure a conservative approach to calculating our risk exposures, it is important to note that profits in
excess of VaR are only considered when backtesting the accuracy of models and are not used to calculate the VaR numbers used
for risk management or capital purposes.

Backtesting of trading VaR against our hypothetical profit and loss (in millions):
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Hypothetical profit and loss VaR (99%) @ Backtesting exception

Non-trading Portfolios Non-trading VaR predominantly relates to Balance Sheet Management and represents the potential negative
changes in the investment portfolio market value (which includes available for sale and held to maturity assets) and associated
hedges. Our investment portfolio holdings are mainly comprised of U.S. Treasuries and U.S. Government agency mortgage-backed
securities. Our non-trading VaR exposure is driven by interest rates, mortgage spreads, and asset swap spreads.
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The following table summarizes our non-trading VaR for the three months ended March 31, 2017:

Portfolio
Interest rate Credit Spread diversification® Total®

(in millions)

AEMarch 31, 2017 .........ooovieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 64 $ 22 3 as) $ 68
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017

AVEIAZE ...ttt ettt sttt sttt 69 24 (24) 68
MAXIIMUINL ... e e e e et e e s eeaare e e s eneaeeeesnnaees 79 31 74
Minimum 56 21 63
At December 31,2016 ...............cooviviiiiiiiieiceeeeeeeeee e $ 75 % 27 § 32 % 70

M Refer to the Trading VaR table above for additional information.

Non-trading VaR also includes the interest rate risk of non-trading financial assets and liabilities held by the global businesses and
transfer priced into Balance Sheet Management which has the mandate to centrally manage and hedge it. For a broader discussion
on how interest rate risk is managed, please refer to the "Risk Management - Interest Rate Risk Management" in MD&A in our
2016 Form 10-K.
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CONSOLIDATED AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES

The following table summarizes the quarter-to-date average daily balances of the principal components of assets, liabilities and
equity together with their respective interest amounts and rates earned or paid, presented on a taxable equivalent basis, which
resulted in increases to interest income on securities of nil and $1 million during the three months ended March 31,2017 and 2016,
respectively. Net interest margin is calculated by dividing net interest income by the average interest earning assets from which
interest income is earned. Loan interest for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 included fees of $24 million and
$18 million, respectively.
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2017 2016

Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

(dollars are in millions)

Assets
Interest bearing deposits With banks ...........ccccccevveininicinnccnnecneecnene $ 36,573 $ 77 85% $ 28461 $ 35 49%
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements.............. 9,697 54 2.26 9,913 29 1.18
Trading SECUITLIES ......ovviiiiiiicieieiciee e 11,051 58 2.13 11,855 85 2.88
SECUTTEIES .uveveeeeeteseaietetete ettt ettt ettt bttt ettt et a b et e b e neebeseneanene 50,311 242 1.95 51,455 245 1.91
Loans:
COomMETCIAl ..o 54,423 382 2.85 64,657 380 2.36
Consumer:
Residential MOItZAZES ......c.covvvevirirueuiinieieiiirieice ettt eeeene 17,881 154 3.49 17,848 151 3.40
Home equity MOITZAZES. ...c.covvveveerreriiiieieiiirieiet sttt 1,378 13 3.83 1,574 14 3.58
Credit CardS......ocvviviiriiire s 658 17 10.48 671 18 10.79
Other CONSUMET .......c.ociiiuiiiiiiiiieiceic et 460 7 6.17 483 6 5.00
Total consumer. 20,377 191 3.80 20,576 189 3.69
TOtAl JOANS ..ottt 74,800 573 3.11 85,233 569 2.69
OBhET .. 2,739 11 1.63 2,608 18 2.78
Total INterest Carning ASSELS.......coervrvererirrereririeierererieietseetese ettt eseeseseeneene $ 185,171 $ 1,015 2.22% $ 189,525 § 981 2.08%
Allowance for Credit LOSSES ........cererurueriririeiirieieirieieereete et (1,011) (933)
Cash and due from Danks ............coeciririeiiineneee e 1,040 1,018
OthET @SSELS......oiiiiiiiiic s 15,776 11,801
TOtAL ASSCLS..............oeoeeeeiieeieeee ettt m $ 201,411
Liabilities and Equity - -
Domestic deposits:
SAVINGS AEPOSIES ....veuirivninirieteieieieiereete ettt ettt $ 50,447 $ 48 39% $ 50,126 $ 30 24%
TIME AEPOSIES. ...t 23,441 78 1.35 26,081 62 .96
Other interest bearing depoSits ...........coeeeririeueiririeirrieeeeceseeeeereeeeeas 12,960 7 22 4,000 2 .20
Foreign deposits:
Foreign banks deposits ........c.coveererieueiriniecinieicinee et 8,059 13 .65 9,061 9 40
Other interest bearing deposits. 3,630 4 45 3,260 2 25
Total interest bearing depoSits..........coerveueueririeueiririeiiiriee e 98,537 150 .62 92,528 105 46
ShOrt-term DOITOWINGS ....cuveueruiiiieiiiierieieieetete ettt 6,520 23 1.43 11,476 18 .63
LoNG-erM deDt .....vviiiiiciecce e 37,824 242 2.59 33,346 197 2.38
Total interest bearing deposits and debt...........cccoeeeeireeinneenneccneecnne 142,881 415 1.18 137,350 320 .94
Tax liabilities and other.............ccocooviiiiiiiie 913 3 1.33 859 6 2.81
Total interest bearing liabilities ........c.coeveueririeieinirieiiree e $ 143,794 $ 418 1.18% $ 138,209 $ 326 .95%
Net interest income/Interest rate SPread .........coceceeeveeeeeririereenneeereneecreeeeeas $ 597 1.04% $ 655 1.13%
Noninterest bearing deposits .... 29,781 - - 31,520 -
Other HaDIIIIES ...ttt 6,925 10,930
TOtAl EQUILY .....cveveniretcirieiceet ettt ettt ettt 20,476 20,752
TOtal liabilities A eqUILY .........oo..oovoooeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeee e ees s '$ 200,976 $ 201,411
Net interest margin on average €arning assets ...........c.coveveerreuerererrererereereenens - 131% 1.39%
Net interest income to average total asSetS........cceovvveueerriereiririeenineecreeeeeas T{)% TO%
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Information required by this Item is included within Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations in the Risk Management section under the captions "Interest Rate Risk Management" and "Market Risk
Management."

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We maintain a system of internal and disclosure controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by HSBC USA in the reports we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis. Our
Board of Directors, operating through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of independent non-executive directors,
provides oversight to our financial reporting process.

We conducted an evaluation, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end
of the period covered by this report so as to alert them in a timely fashion to material information required to be disclosed in reports
we file under the Exchange Act.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2017 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See Note 18, "Litigation and Regulatory Matters," in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for our legal proceedings
disclosure, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 5. Other Information

Disclosures pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act requires each
issuer registered with the SEC to disclose in its annual or quarterly reports whether it or any of its affiliates have knowingly engaged
in specified activities or transactions with persons or entities targeted by U.S. sanctions programs relating to Iran, terrorism, or the
proliferation of weapons of mass destruction, even if those activities are not prohibited by U.S. law and are conducted outside the
U.S. by non-U.S. affiliates in compliance with local laws and regulations.

To comply with this requirement, HSBC has requested relevant information from its affiliates globally. During the period covered
by this Form 10-Q, HSBC USA Inc. did not engage in activities or transactions requiring disclosure pursuant to Section 13(r) other
than those activities related to frozen accounts and transactions permitted under relevant U.S. sanction programs described under
“Frozen Accounts and Transactions” below. The following activities conducted by our affiliates are disclosed in response to Section
13(r):

Loans in repayment Between 2001 and 2005, the Project and Export Finance division of the HSBC Group arranged or participated
in a portfolio of loans to Iranian energy companies and banks. All of these loans were guaranteed by European and Asian export
credit agencies and have varied maturity dates with final maturity in 2018. For those loans that remain outstanding, the HSBC
Group continues to seek repayment in accordance with its obligations to the supporting export credit agencies. Details of these
loans follow.

At March 31, 2017, the HSBC Group had five loans outstanding to an Iranian petrochemical company. These loans are supported
by the official export credit agencies of the following countries: the United Kingdom, South Korea and Japan. The HSBC Group
continues to seek repayments from the Iranian company under the outstanding loans in accordance with their original maturity
profiles.

The HSBC Group also acts as a sub-participant in a Spanish export credit agency supported loan provided by another international
bank to Bank Mellat. This loan matured in 2013 with claims for non-payment being settled by the export credit agency. A small
balance which had remained unpaid by Bank Mellat in relation to this legacy asset was recovered in the first quarter of 2017.

Estimated gross revenue to the HSBC Group generated by the loans in repayment for the first quarter of 2017, which includes
interest and fees, was approximately $45,000, and net estimated profit was approximately $45,000. While the HSBC Group intends
to continue to seek repayment under the existing loans, all of which were entered into before the petrochemical sector of Iran
became a target of U.S. sanctions, it does not currently intend to extend any new loans.

Legacy contractual obligations related to guarantees Between 1996 and 2007, the HSBC Group provided guarantees to a number
of its non-Iranian customers in Europe and the Middle East for various business activities in Iran. In a number of cases, the HSBC
Group issued counter indemnities in support of guarantees issued by Iranian banks as the Iranian beneficiaries of the guarantees
required that they be backed directly by Iranian banks. The Iranian banks to which the HSBC Group provided counter indemnities
included Bank Tejarat, Bank Melli, and the Bank of Industry and Mine.

There was no measurable gross revenue in the first quarter of 2017 under those guarantees and counter indemnities. The HSBC
Group does not allocate direct costs to fees and commissions and, therefore, has not disclosed a separate net profit measure. The
HSBC Group is seeking to cancel all relevant guarantees and counter indemnities and does not currently intend to provide any
new guarantees or counter indemnities involving Iran. None were cancelled in the first quarter of 2017 and approximately 19
remain outstanding.

Other relationships with Iranian banks Activity related to U.S.-sanctioned Iranian banks not covered elsewhere in this disclosure
includes the following:

e The HSBC Group maintains several accounts in the United Kingdom for an Iranian-owned, U.K.-regulated financial
institution. These accounts are generally no longer restricted under U.K. law, though HSBC maintains restrictions on the
accounts as a matter of policy. Estimated gross revenue in the first quarter of 2017 on these accounts, which includes fees
and/or commissions, was approximately $27,280.

*  The HSBC Group acts as the trustee and administrator for a pension scheme involving four employees ofa U.S.-sanctioned
Iranian bank in Hong Kong, one of whom joined the scheme during the first quarter of 2017. Under the rules of this
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scheme, the HSBC Group accepts contributions from the Iranian bank each month and allocates the funds into the pension
accounts of the Iranian bank’s employees. The HSBC Group runs and operates this pension scheme in accordance with
Hong Kong laws and regulations. Estimated gross revenue, which includes fees and/or commissions, generated by this
pension scheme during the first quarter of 2017 was approximately $840.

For the Iranian bank related-activity discussed above, the HSBC Group does not allocate direct costs to fees and commissions and,
therefore, has not disclosed a separate net profit measure.

The HSBC Group has been holding a safe custody box for the Central Bank of Iran. For a number of years, the box has not been
accessed by the Central Bank of Iran and no fees have been charged to the Central Bank of Iran.

The HSBC Group currently intends to continue to wind down the activity discussed in this section, to the extent legally permissible,
and not enter into any new such activity.

Activity related to U.S. Executive Order 13382 The HSBC Group maintains an account for a corporate customer whose owner
was designated under U.S. Executive Order 13382 during the first quarter of 2017. The customer made a payment of $370,000
shortly after the owner's designation, which was cleared locally. There was no measurable gross revenue or net profit generated
in the first quarter of 2017.

Frozen accounts and transactions The HSBC Group and HSBC Bank USA (a subsidiary of HUSI) maintain several accounts
that are frozen as a result of relevant sanctions programs, and safekeeping boxes and other similar custodial relationships, for
which no activity, except as licensed or otherwise authorized, took place during the first quarter of 2017. There was no measurable
gross revenue or net profit to the HSBC Group and HSBC Bank USA during the first quarter of 2017 relating to these frozen
accounts.
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Item 6. Exhibits

3(i)

3(ii)

12
31

32

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Articles of Incorporation and amendments and supplements thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3
(a) to HSBC USA Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, Exhibit 3 to
HSBC USA Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, Exhibits 3.2
and 3.3 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 4, 2005; Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA
Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 14, 2005, Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2006 and Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 31, 2016).

Bylaws of HSBC USA Inc., as Amended and Restated effective April 20, 2017 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 24, 2017).

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document"

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document'"

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document'"”
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document'"
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document'”

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document'”

(O]

Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2017, formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL") interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, (v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and (vi) the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, HSBC USA Inc. has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: May 4, 2017

HSBC USA INC.

By: /sl MARK A. ZAESKE
Mark A. Zaeske
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit Index
3(31) Articles of Incorporation and amendments and supplements thereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(a) to HSBC USA Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999,
Exhibit 3 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2000, Exhibits 3.2 and 3.3 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 4, 2005;
Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 14, 2005, Exhibit 3.2 to
HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2006 and Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 31, 2016).
3(ii) Bylaws of HSBC USA Inc., as Amended and Restated effective April 20, 2017 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to HSBC USA Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 24, 2017).
12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
31 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document'"
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document'"
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document'”
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document'"
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document'”
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document'”

1)

Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T, includes the following financial information included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2017, formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL") interactive data files: (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, (ii) the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and
2016, (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, (v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, and (vi) the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT 12
HSBC USA INC.
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2017 2016

(dollars are in millions)

Ratios excluding interest on deposits:

Income from CONtINUING OPETALIONS .....cueeutirtiertiitietiet ettt ettt ettt ettt etesaeenbesatesbeseeenbeentenbeentesseeneeane $ 296 $ 154
TNCOME tAX EXPEIISE. .. .eeeutiiiiieite ittt ettt ettt et e bt e b e et e bt s st e e bt e s et e e s bt e eabeesbaeeabeenbeesabeenseenane 152 79
Fixed charges:

Interest on:

SHOTE-TEIIMN DOTTOWINES ...ttt ettt sttt ettt s bt ae b bt bt bbbt st et e b e s e e eneenee 23 18

o) Yo 153 0 6 < o OSSPSR 242 197

ORETS ..ttt ettt ettt eb ettt a ettt h e b e bbbttt bt naes 3 6

One third of rents, net of income from SUDICASES ..........c.eevuiiiciieiieeiiecieeeceee e 7 7

Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0n dePOSILS.........cereririirerierenieieieeeecee ettt 275 228

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, excluding interest on deposits ...... $ 723 § 461
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges, excluding interest on deposits...........ccceveeieirerininerinene e T 263 202

Ratios including interest on deposits:

Total fixed charges, excluding interest 0n dePOSILS.........cereririirerererieieieieie ettt $ 275 $ 228
Add: TNLEIest 0N AEPOSILS ...cuveuriuieuieiieiieietieierte ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt ebe ettt sae bbb se et e b sae e ennennens 150 105
Total fixed charges, including interest 0N dEPOSILS.........ce.eruerirrirerierieieieteiee ettt 425 333
Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, excluding interest on deposits ...... 723 461
Add: INtETESt ON AEPOSILS ...euveueineenienieiieiieiee ettt ettt ettt b et beebe s bt bt et besbe st ete e eneeneenee 150 105
Earnings from continuing operations before taxes and fixed charges, including interest on deposits....... $ 873 § 566

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges, including interest on deposits .........cceeeveeerirerinererinese e 2.05 1.70



EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Certification of Chief Executive Officer

I, Patrick J. Burke, certify that:

1.

2.

5.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 4, 2017

/s/ PATRICK J. BURKE

Patrick J. Burke

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer




Certification of Chief Financial Officer

I, Mark A. Zaeske, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of HSBC USA Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 4, 2017

/sl MARK A. ZAESKE

Mark A. Zaeske

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. (the “Company’) Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report™) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Patrick J. Burke, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of HSBC USA Inc.

Date: May 4, 2017

/s/ PATRICK J. BURKE

Patrick J. Burke

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

This certification accompanies each Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to
the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by HSBC USA Inc. for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to
HSBC USA Inc. and will be retained by HSBC USA Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.



Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the HSBC USA Inc. (the “Company”) Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report”) for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.

I, Mark A. Zaeske, certify that:
1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of HSBC USA Inc.

Date: May 4, 2017

/sl MARK A. ZAESKE

Mark A. Zaeske

Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies each Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to
the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by HSBC USA Inc. for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to
HSBC USA Inc. and will be retained by HSBC USA Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.
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